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COPRORATE OBJECTIVES

VISION

*

Be a dominating player in salt
Industry & Allied products

MISSION

To produce/supply good quality of
salt & value added products.

To accelerate the process of
modernization/ machanization of
manufacture of salt and allied
products.

Make available quality iodized salt to

weaker  sections through public

distribution system.
Efficient utilization of resources.

Increase the market share of SSL
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Chairman’s Statement

At the 60th Annual General Meeting
Dear Shareholders,

It is an honour and a privilege to present the
60th Annual Report of your company. The
company started its journey almost 61 years’
back. Your company continues with its task to
build business with long term goals based on
intrinsic strength in terms of its brands, quality
manufacturing process and customer
relationship.

The Director’s Report on the working of your
company, Audited accounts for financial year
2024-25 and Auditor’s Report thereon have
been with you. With your permission, take
them as read. I would like to underline a few
salient features regarding the achievements,
constraints and tasks ahead:

Company’s Performance:

You as our shareholders have shown great
faith and belief in what we are doing and that

%
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ST T /T e b 2Ifeh 3R 33 ep FOfT 81 gives us the strength and determination to
farciter af 2024-25 & SR, SAMUHI HUHI HIBRIIR  keep exceeding your expectations.During the
fisel fomita af & 6566.85 @G 30 & fOvg  financial year 2024-25, turnover of your
4639.44 TRg TR ¥&T| 39 d¥ o1 4 2024-2547 company stood atRs.4639.44lacsagainst
5.6566.85lacs during previous financial year.
el af &% 1683.34 oTRT W & oY &b bl Rs.6566.85lacs during previous financial y
Ul BT S N 839.77 KT IUY el el o This year company earned a profit ofRs. 839.77
2024-25 % SRM, Ul ¥ 306441 Hiew e lacs against the previous year profit of Rs.
N —— 9,388 Y055 257 s e 1683.34 lacs. During the financial year 2024-25,

B R company produced 306441 MT common salt
SR T4 323076 Hiie and 29388 MT refined salt as compared to

TEROT T 3ﬁq 47064 Hifs < q&% THP DT 323076 MT Common Salt and 47064 MT

ST oMl el ®1e @1 S@dt g9, A GRT A refined Salt in previous year. In view of the

2024-25 o foTy IS ATHieT Gt =Tal foham T 21 cumulative deficit, no dividend has been
declared by the company for the year 2024-25.

I o N TEa Ul TEe: Significant Initiatives during the year:

faTor uger: Marketing Initiatives:

g fmfor, 7S Bfd o gER 3R TG i feareht %‘g’ Efforts are being made for capacity building,
qimfern CIE:%T oM & WM fdhU S @ € IR improving the brand image and enhancing
gt &1t e 3R IoRd J Sga afg @ geographical reach for sale of products.To
& forg, =rar 3R g1 9 ReprgaRal & ffifq seqrgf capture the market share and enhance revenue
B TR & oA Y U 9977 11 <& 21 ot Frafir significantly, strategy is being chalked out to
SR TR TTEe oMgR ot 927 &) &1 aoR 3§ 12t &7 penetrate the products manufactured at Nawa
T T T 1 . o and Gudha Salt Refinery into the market.

Company is also augmenting the customer

! SR & base on regular basis. Design of 1 kg packet has
been made attractive to attract the attention of
customersin the market.

gRa ol & fafaefievor

Diversification into Green Energy

HYAT T FR Sooft GRATSTIRT hY w7 & forv #df  Company has signed MoU with M/s SJVN
ity 9 et fifics (wasiisuel) & @rer Green Energy Limited (SGEL) for Installation
T STU R eeder fpv #1 wmeiar sug gy Of Solar Power Projects. In continuation of the
¥ 100 YTETe R TRASHT & 77 ST % SIRBR MoU a Right to Use Agreement for 100 MW
o G 10 ST 2025 Pt FsaRa Rt T Solar Project has been executed on 10th Jan

2025 and work is under progress.

3R RS TFICT UR 21
ufasg &1 AU Future Outlook:
TP IcqTe b forv AT &7 BT fApr: Development of new area for production of salt:

AR THG B IUGA &1 §6M & fow, ol In order to enhance production capacity of
3T faemTer UReah &1 Y Wiet 3R i v ¥@  common salt, company is exploring and
21 U IR T & foT Repre=Rt & IuANT foby STy developing the untapped huge abandoned
@‘ 4 6 K )A
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<
areas. Company is developing abandoned area

for production of good quality Pan Salt to be
used in Refinery to increase revenue.

Marketing Initiatives:

Company has planned for enhancement in
Sale of Packet Salt, for which efforts will be
made to increase the Refined Edible Packet Salt
production from Nawa Salt Refinery and
Geographical expansion of marketing
activities is planned to explore new areas.

Systematic Improvement:

Improve the visibility and business presence of
the company, achieve the sales target while
working for larger territorial footprint, wider
customer base and high value/quality
products.

Corporate Governance:

Company has complied with all stipulated
conditions of corporate governance as
stipulated in the guidelines on corporate
governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises.

Industrial Relations:

During the year, Industrial relations in your
company remained cordial.

Acknowledgement:

We are confident about maintaining business
momentum and delivering a strong
performance in the coming years with
continuous expansion of business in new
geographical areas and increasing customer
base.

I take this opportunity to thank the
Government of India, various State
Governments, officers of Ministry of Heavy
Industries, DPE, NitiAayog, Bankers, Business
Associates, Salt Commissioner’s office and
major customers for their advice and
continued support extended. I am also
thankful to all my colleagues on the Board for
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3191 GReP b BY H, PRIATE H AR o+ & fo1g 7o
I A & b ToTU STIepT G=aTg e =gl & A
31T gl FEMAT # 319 |t 3 RO, HERIAT, HEa 3R
IR 1 e el gl I H Figere @ RS,
SRR forit Y femom iR af 2024-25 &
AT feR0r UR ST g1 SRy ¢ fop fFrqerep b
Rare 3iiR a1ftfen eal ot SrgAIfed iR S-S
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their valued guidance and counsel. The
officers, staff and workers of the company also
deserve thanks for their dedicated work and
cooperation. In conclusion, I would like to
thank you for sparing your valuable time to
participate in the proceedings, as a
shareholder of the company. I look forward to
inspiration, help, cooperation and assistance
from you all in the coming months. Inow move
to the Director’s Report as well as the audited
balance sheet and the statement of profit and
loss for the year 2024-25. It is requested that
Director’s report as well as the annual accounts
be approved and adopted.
Sd/-
(Sanjay Banga)

(Chairman & Managing Director)
DIN: 09353339

Date: 26.09.2025
Place: New Delhi
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9Tt o1 ufdaeH \ Directors' Report \
uffa, To
QT The Members
ANR Alecd fafiics, of Sambhar Salts Limited,
ANR Aleed forfiics & dgal & forw To the Members of Sambhar Salts Limited

iR ATecd fAfies, SFQR & Qe Hed &l 3R 4,
& facfig af 2024-25 & o oiamoRten oy o
Tt et o ATer JMmgeht ahuet &t 60d arfifer Rurc

TR Rl BT Gl & T 2

HUT 7 fUsel 9 & T 65.67 RIS DI gl | i
¥ & SR T 46.39 FNIg a9 a7 BRI Y Bl
Ut Bl 61 Iuf J I MR T THH SN DI HdT TR
RIEl

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sambhar
Salts Limited, Jaipur, we are delighted to
present the 60th Annual Report of your
company along with audited financial
statements for the financial year 2024-25.

The company has achieved a top line of 346.39
crore during the financial year as compared to
%65.67 crore in the previous year. The company
is catering to the salt industry across the length
and breadth of the country forlast 61 years.

ICRIPEENEE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
Pt ot farftar fasroamy = g 2 The Company’s financial highlights are as
provided below:
@ T ) (X in Lacs)
farazor 2024-25  2023-24  Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
AR 3 IR 4639.44  6566.85 Revenue from Operations 4639.44 6566.85
= 3 113.86 167.85 Other Income 113.86 167.85
Pl AT 4753.30 6734.70 Total Income 4753.30 6734.70
ool gfg (+), T A @ (=) (1252.62) (421.65) Less: Accretion (+), (1252.62) (421.65)
Decretion of stock(-)
He: Jede 3R a1 B 4215.95 4305.10 Less: Expenditure for the year 4215.95 4305.10
TR Y & folt = (7T) excluding depreciation and
interest (Net)
gafafd & Fefe TR 2.84 24.06 Adjustments relating to 2.84 24.06
prior period
YIET 3R TSt | T el 1787.13  2827.19 Profit before depreciation 1787.13 2827.19
and interest
T eI 438.53 381.23 Less: Depreciation 438.53 381.23
IoUg™ & 9IS o 1348.60 2445.96 Profit after depreciation 1348.60 2445.96
e ST 429.18  429.38 Less: Interest 429.18 429.38
P | Tget am 919.42  2016.58  Profit before Tax 919.42 2016.58

4 9 X
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PR Y 79.65 333.24 Tax Expense 79.65 333.24
v & fory gg @ 839.77 1683.34 Net Profit for the year 839.77 1683.34
P R o SIY S et gy (659.97) (1399.36) Total Carry forward losses (559.59) (1399.36)
¥ 2024-25 P SR 3MMYH! HUT BT ealark et During the year 2024-25, turnover of your
af & 36566.85 oTRI | TN Al I¥ H 34639.44  company has decreased from 6566.85 lakhs in
oIRT &1 T 21 39 a9 & o &b Y, 31 A, 2025  the previous year to ¥ 4639.44 lakhs in the
e BT BT T o o TS B fwer af current year. With this year’s profit, the carry

: forward losses of the company as on 31st
:;c?}l.gc_;ﬁg Ws a;ﬁa;m E;l X 553:2 Tfr/ ij%lq March, 2025 are ¥ 559.59 lakhs in comparison to
d I previous year X 1399.36 lakhs. The profit in the
current year is 50.11 % less as compared to
previous year profit.
JMYPHT HUT 3 ST, W’f fafemfor gfhar @ik Your company continues with its task to build
e Aedl b A U afiaRe Rk & omgR ¥ business with long term goals based on
SrefepTiore oied & | GadIT S b I i @y intrinsic strength in terms of its brands, quality
S et 1 77 A § P A % T aRETer @Y manufacturing process and customer
- & & relationship. It accords high priority to
SN PP e rationalizing and streamlining operations to
bring reductionin costs.
o=t bt fRafer STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
for af 2024-25 & fofg @ut @7 o @ ®I 4 The Company's profit for the financial year
FIYRUT 79 31N G 79D b SUre iR fohl & 2024-251is mainly due to increase in production
gfg 3R < o s &b RO B and sales of common salt and processed salt
and saving in expenditures.
MY Ut i fergp 1T el R Goft f & The Authorised and Paid up share capital of
SR @9 T 200 g 3R T 100 A R euRaffg  your Company remained unchanged during
REY1 ot B sier it fige eed frfics, SR the year at ¥ 200 lakhs and ¥ 100 lakhs
R Ut 3IR ORI FRPR GRT 60:40 P I respectively. The share capital of the company
3 R B T R ' is subscribed by Hindustan Salts Limited, its
holding company and Government of
Rajasthan in the ratio of 60:40.
A1, P g sfiel ¥ Groe aad a1 oy fgsor - SSL was incorporated with an objective to take
o % Sevy 3 |iEeTd R R o, Ry w@nfeg OVer the Salt Works, which were earlier owned
- ST TR BT : and managed by its holding company HSL, at
ﬁqﬂmﬁﬂ;ﬁﬁ ¥ i 3ﬁ]§ %@jﬁ)?qﬁﬂ Sambhar Lake. The company has over 90 sq.
N a3 213 N , Je 3 S miles area at Sambhar, Gudha and Nawa in
e &1 21 o _ g | H gt Rajasthan. The company has diversified the
TS & SR AT b1 AT Zﬁ O R feT I o business on many counts and considerable
WW%’:{ AfT foeT o1 It Wﬁ%ﬁﬂtﬂfﬁ infrastructure has been added to produce
gt efar Siel 81 ¥ Yo7 IR TG H FHG  various varieties of high quality salt to cater to
& A 10 X y/
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Reprg) 3R IR T IR Flee wiic gl oK §
feIgRt B1RYeT @A 3R Woa g™ & foru, AT
HAlee Rt 7 ffifd Scurgl &t 98t 957 § iR
S Y RUTHRY §F1TS <17 <& B

el axf & gorer & Sudht duet & ified e 3|
THR &:—

qET H, e ®
fara=or 2024-25  2023-24
SilCE]
HAH THD 306441 323076
HATT FHeh 12 123
TRSh THD 29388 47064
faht /9
AMH THD 186477 216877
HATT FHeh 4 60
GRS THD 29866 47969
A & 918 a9
P 37T § AT
HAH THD 252409 177904
T THD 79 70
UiRSehe THD 1322 1806
SiulCE]

fad af 2024 -25 9 T THE BT TG 30644 1
Hifew < 8, 59 fisel af 323076 Hifew e o,
S 5.15% HHF g1 AQIIT THd P IueT § 111
wifees 1 bl ! 8 €, ST 90% BH &1 IRSHd THD
&b JueT H 17676 Hifgew T @ FH g8 g, I
37.56% PH I

fasht

Hot gRT fofi o & SR fusel af & 216877

Hifedh T & galeel 186476 Hifcdh o AHT FHd
a1 3fR fachia avf & SR fUsel af & 60 Hfiewm e &

qaaat 4 Hifed o TRvgd T9@ 6 faeht & T iR

the market demand. It has salt refinery at
Gudha& Nawa and Process Salt Plant at
Sambhar. To capture the market share and
enhance revenue, strategy is being chalked out
to penetrate the products manufactured at
Nawa Salt Refinery into the market with huge
quantity.

Comparison of the physical Performance of
your company vis-a vis previous year is given
as follows:-

Quantity in M.T.

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Production:

Common Salt 306441 323076
Processed Salt 12 123
Refined Salt 29388 47064
Sales/ Issues:

Common Salt 186473 216877
Processed Salt 4 60
Refined Salt 29866 47969
Inventory at the

close of the year

after adjustment:

Common Salt 252409 177904
Processed Salt 79 70
Refined Salt 1322 1806
PRODUCTION

The production of common salt in FY 2024-25
is 306441 MT as against previous year 323076
MT, which is a decrease of 5.15 %. The
production of processed salt has decreased by
111 MT which is 90% decrease. The production
of refined salt has decreased by 17676 MT
whichis 37.56% decrease.

SALES

The Company sold 186473 MT of common salt
during the financial year as against 216877 MT
in previous year and sold 4 MT of processed
salt during the financial year as against 60 MT
in previous year and sold 29866 MT of refined

%

2 11 X
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HUA b AHEFT TG D Gifds st af & o o
252409 Hifew e off, 9fd fisel af a8 177904
Hifows o off|

fafa

Hut A fo<fia af 2024-25 & SRM P Fafd &
a2

ST YSit AT

31 91d, 2025 T& FadT FHAT 31T Goft 1.00 IRIS

o oft| fEged recd fAfiics 3iR e AR
P IIF 9T 60% 3R 40% FHAT T2

AT
Rt &I 1 q@d gY, U GRT a¥ 2024-25 %
forT p1g marier enfye AT fopar T 21

JYR

31.03.2025 d& fégeam dAlecq fafics (dR®
HYHT) YR T 3576.50 ATI 31.03.2025 qH K0T
TR 31T /3T =TT 31.03.2024 T T 872.73 ARG
& o H dga} T 901.91 @G & T gl
31.03.2024 P! I 39 & JHEA 31.3.2025 P
Sl A Ut DY reuTafys IERT o7 oft|

AT TR fAfer @ Te=ia=or

MU HYT ¥ 31.03.2025 T fopdT oft fare ey
T pIg A TAFIRT g1 Y & AT TAFTRT D Dl
U1 ) fopa

AT Aee 3R vE HeudH g Hiffe

it av & SR -

RBR B st FefR gAR omf, e & wu=

7
foriar o & SR fUwet o & 47969 Hifgd T F  salt during the financial year as against 47969
gaTdel 29866 Hifgd e uRsad 9 o4 MT in previous year.

B INVENTORIES

The physical inventory of common salt of the
company was 252409 MT at the close of the
year against 177904 MT in the previous year.

EXPORTS

The company has not exported during the
financial year 2024-25.

SHARE CAPITALSTRUCTURE

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at
31stMarch, 2025 stood at Rs. 1.00 crore. The
Hindustan Salts Limited and Rajasthan
Government hold 60% and 40% of equity
shares respectively.

DIVIDEND

In view of the cumulative deficit, no dividend
has been declared by the company for the year
2024-25.

BORROWING

Borrowing from Hindustan Salts Limited
(Holding Company) was ¥ 3576.50 as on
31.03.2025. The interest accrued/ payable on
loan as on 31.03.2025 has increased to ¥ 901.91
lakhs as against ¥ 872.73 lakhs as on
31.03.2024. The short term borrowing of the
company from banks was nil as on 31.3.2025
againstInilason 31.03.2024.

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL RESERVES

Your Company has not transferred or
proposed to transfer any amount to any
reserve as on31.03.2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review-

* Shri Rohit Gupta, IAS, Commissioner
Industries, GoR was appointed as Director

&A12V
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W 03.10.2024 3 1% & wU F Ry
T

o off 9 PUR, MEUTH, W@ AN R,
ISR fIUTT, ISR IRBR B fiEct smurf
ARIST JMSUTH & ¥ W 19.07.2024 N
Qe & wu o frgerd fopa |

o sft g T, AwEl, THemgta @
08.03.2024 ¥ 21.05.2025 d&d JwHs!,
fRarfer. sk ar.ar.fer. o erfafeh uR iar m=m|

e YN SUW HAGW T I IRy fHiw
21.05.2025 & H1eq A & GOl 97, HieEet
Hiftarmguer ot sft fRrawg; ey & v wR R4 for.
3R 1.7 o, o Femet a1 31ferRerd YR Fim

U@ U eh I HIff:

HUT AT H gRT 203 & YFHHT & AR,
BT & TRT T drftfen st o g, Howd 2|
TToTaTT 3R faeRaia:

1.1, 39 IUIG! i Jorar iR U F FRAR
GIR IRAT 8, T SHaiRal & gicegar ok &
ad & ATEIH | Tt b Geft et g1 |t
TTerT 31R 5 o fefor &t ufehar Ayl faer &
HIETH 3 319 ATED! &l oI UG v & forg ufcreg
]

S

Hot 7 foT af 2024-25 & GRE DI ST FHR
& frar B

BRI W Afgensi & A Sedts (pum, Ay
3itx fRamwor) arfarffem, 2013 & TEa g

PYAT TRT PRI W et oft 9 Scdte ol A
IR Ry P Jom BRI R Akt & I=
Icdte (™, ey 3iR faror) srfdifm, 2013
& ded dlgelr pHeial b Wt et off Rreprad
AT FRA & o1 vep 1R frerra afafy @ Tod
far gl

w.e.f. 03.10.2024 in place of Shri Sudhir
Kumar Sharma, IAS.

* Shri Dinesh Kumar, IAS, Principal
Secretary, Revenue Department, GoR was
appointed as Director w.e.f. 19.07.2024 in
place of Smt. Aparna Arora, IAS.

e Shri Shivendra Nath, CMD, EPIL was
entrusted with the additional charge of
CMD, HSL & SSL from 08.03.2024 to
21.05.2025.

* Shri Sanjay Banga, CMD, CCIL was
entrusted with the additional charge of
CMD, HSL & SSL by Ministry of Heavy
Industries vide its order dated 21.05.2025
vice Shri ShivendraNath.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the
Companies Act, the key managerial personnel
of the Company is Shri Sanjay Banga, CMD.

QUALITY & RELIABILITY:

SSL pursues continual improvement in the
quality of its products and performance
leading to customer delight through
commitment and team work of employees.
SSL is committed to deliver value to its clients
through significant investments in quality and
in process of manufacturing of salt.

DEPOSITS:

The company has not accepted any deposits
during FY 2024-25.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK
PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee to prevent and prohibit
from any sexual harassment at workplace and
redress any such grievance of woman employees
as required under Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

%
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Frolt AREUT, Y U4 i R o9, dienfildd CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
ST 3R et g o ik EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
HUAT YR, 2013 6T URT 134 & Y du+l  As required under section 134 of the
(o) form, 2014 & 9 8 & MR, Srofl TR, Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
SN sraenyur, sFREH W Rem ) &7 3R Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
el ge7 21 Gk o @ e v 56 TR & particulars relating to the conservation of
' energy, technology absorption, expenditure
on research & development and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo are:
ol AREToT Conservation of Energy
Folt A&7 & forg fhu e U - Energy Conservation measures taken:-
o1l 6 @UT P P B & fory Ffaf@d er The following steps were taken to minimize
ISW Y| the energy consumption.
- DieRd YRR H Telge! god 3R F P - Use of LED bulbs & Tubes in office
S| premises.
- el @1 erfdreray SumhT 3iR St I - Maximum use of electricity and
BT ~GATH S| minimum use of DG set.
- e St - Tep1eT bl SU | - Use of maximum sun-lightin day time.
- E-aee N PIR IR A BT ST - Copper blast choke use in Tube-lights.
- SYITH T B R ATST H SUAN Y ST - Switch-off the lights, Computers, A/Cs &
qTeft AMZe, HRYER, U/ iR g CEK] other electrical appliances used in
UG € TR S (QUER T HIoH ) | organisationwhennotinuse (Lunch Time).
- P & 99T FIc dSe BT SUANT Tal - The streets lights are not in use or
[ERISISIRICESER R RIS Ei) minimum nos. are in use during full
ST 2l Moon-Lighthours.
—  IGCSR/IMFY SWfT W AN - Replacement of existing fluorescent
FARRNIC TS &Y TR Uil e oee lights by LED Street lights at outdoor/
S ST 2 common utility.
- I el Pl 37T DT oot A e - Steps are been taken to replace the old
A g2 & fofU e IBTT SR & motors with today’s energy efficient
motors.
- g die Hier BT SN (/3R - Use of correct load motor. (No
&I ATl WieR T SUAT g under/over capacity motor use)
- STl s & foru fafte Scure & | - Introduction of the solar Pumps in
@‘ A 14 X 7
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IR qui T gRe3T| various production areas to save
electricity.
- TR thaeR Pl SN W o fon éﬁefﬁ:l?\' - Capacitor Banks are provided and
b U 1Y ST € 31R Sehl SRR I checked frequently to maintain the
Y St 2 power factor.

- §|G.6 & LN | g 6 forg @é N - No use of broken wires/Cables or
aNI/deell a1 PH " PH Sl ATl wire/cable is used with minimum
AR /e T IYTIT & fhdT ST 2| joints to avoid the electric losses.

- el (&T&G‘I /HRET) 3 Erfor oy 2 - Preventive Maintenance of Machines is
P & forg wefit ot fFraes eRErd o implemented to reduce the friction in
feparr ire @, Ry fosteft @b g off rotary parts (Oiling/Greasing), which
HH BICT & MR o1l &l Fad gl g also reduce the power loss and saves

o _ energy.

- WA NLRARE] *F g ¥ o - Use of Limit-sensor in Pumps to avoid

ferfire ~e 1 ST the unnecessary running of motors.

- e ARel ¥ d3e IR I S R, - Light sensors are in implementing in

qTfes Sotf 3iR w9 aTfeh & gort 81 b | streets lights to save the energy &
manpower also.

- Qf‘a/ Tt AT & P, R 3R - HT/LT lines connectors, Insulators and

SIgeR~Teled &l g W AfIRT 1 et jointer-Plates are serviced timely to
g, TIfh §71 UR 1A ot f+mifor = &1, Rt prevent the carbon formation on these,
fersTett &t s/d el 2| which leads to save of electricity.

= focTel s & forg gecHHTer foT ST aret - Proper selection of wire & cable with

TS & IR TR AR heiet T Sfred T2 theload used to save electricity.
ERISISIN
d§t) defetiep It Hidl & IUGRT & forg I3 MY b) Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources

HeH ol U § HHT o &b forg srfafRes Faer of energy Additional investments and

SRy, AR PEE, AU E - proposals, if any, being implemented for

reduction of energy consumption-

T 3ﬁ_\’ Tol &l § ol & dfied f5ell 175 MW of SPV has been installed for
GBS b T 1.75 HTETE BT Gl ¥AMUT  company’s captive power requirements at
e 7 2, foraeh uiRurmRReY A1 &2 88 2 Nawa&Gudha areas, resulting in huge savings.
¥Y) It HREUT IUSHROT UR Yoit farer: S c) Capital investment on energy

_ conservation equipment: NIL
B R 2024-25 2023-24 G| No, Description 202425  2023-24
1 ftett 1 Electricity
(1) R ygte 21.63 21.66 (A)  Purchased Unit  21.63 21.66

(a9 fetare ufr &er) (Lakh KWH)
Egyl far (e ¥) 195.69 165.35 Total amount 195.69 165.35

%
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T R/ 9.05 7.63 R In Lakhs)

gfie % gfa fo.ar. gfa ger Average Rate / 9.05 7.63

Unit in ¥ per KWH
() v ST (B) Own Generation
(I) SNASRSRFB  0.047 0.146 (I Generated 0.047 0.146
oegq o Iue] Unit through
gfe (arg fp.are.) Diesel Generator
(Lakh KWH)

fep.ar e uifcy ofley 2.88 3.23 KWH Unit 2.88 3.23

I el Generated per

SRR Ltr. Of Diesel

ufq qﬁg Il 31.21 28.13 Cost per Unit 31.21 28.13
(ii) ¥R o1l & Aegq A (i)  Through Solar

IcuTied gfHe Power

(a3 fopettare ufa wicr) 25.266 24.676 Generated Units 25.266 24.676

(Lakh KWH)

MK . 92.682  90.454 Total amount 92.682 90.454

(P9 TF H) (Rs. In Lakhs)

NI /gf+e 3.67 3.67 Cost/Unit 3.67 3.67
2 SIeit TART APt & R 2 Julie Flora

< ( _ )T Fuel (Qty. in MT)

(o o ) - - Total Cost (Rs. In Lakhs)- -
3T R (P H) - - Average Rate (In Rs.) - -
3 DS B sAlD 1323.52 1595.34 3 Wooden Blocks 1323.52 1595.34

(AT T H) (Qty. in Tonnes)

Pl AT 54.78 60.64 Total Cost 54.78 60.64

(PR dRg ) (Rs. In Lakhs)

g = (-\sq-gj 1}[) 4138.98 3801.22 Average Rate 4138.98 3801.22

(InRs.)
4 3 / AR IeaTG QI 4 Other/ Internal Not Applicable
Generation

A (@) - - Qty. (Ltr.) Mobil Oil ; ;

AIfea afaet

el oflic - - Total Cost - -

ScqTeH &I Ul 313 @ud (Hifed a=): Consumption per Unit

(MT) of Production:
& 2 1 )%
6
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. dleNfihl s@am sgge 3k FaER

1. Tenfihl s@enyur, g iR TamER & forg
fehy T T | I
2. IRk WM & IRUMREGHY UTH AT S

Sdlg YR, fld g CI’>4-I‘\I, S EEASIRCIDIN

gfereeo arfe| LI

3. sraTfad dienfidt (ot af 6t gand | fise 5
gyt & SR IRITferd) & 9 J, fA=ferRad Sy
TR b STT el 82—

%)  Imafd dienfidt I

Q)  d Bl | EIVGHE]

M) o Tl e o eRE Y sraanfye g
T$E? BIWEH]

g) U & T8l AT HENfihT BT sraeisor el
gATE, Al DIg 8l Sl

7 <
PP faavor 2024-25 2023-24 Sr. No. Description ~ 2024-25 2023-24
1 IqTe P ufey 1 Consumption Per

of Production
- IdTeH 335742.34 329140.03 - Production (MT) 335742.34 329140.03
Hifeep <)
e 13.98 14.12 - Electricity (KWH)  13.98 14.12
fopettare ufar =er)
~ Seft TART +  0.0452 0.046 - Julie Flora + 0.0452 0.046
ThS! P sl S Wooden Block Fuel
&t IrgdyE Ud faeRT/yameret et ) @ B. Expenditure on R & D/ Lab Testing  in Lakhs)
(gt )
ot 0.00 Capital 0.00
3Madf 10.53 Recurring 10.53
ool 10.53 Total 10.53
PoT PRITR & . 0.23% Total R.& D 0.23%
Tfe % w9 ¥ el expenditure as
:  reprer a Percentage of
JHEr o b total turnover

C. Technology Absorption Adaptation and
Innovation

1. Efforts made for Technology absorption,
adaptation and innovation. NIL

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above
efforts e.g. products improvement, cost
reduction, product development import
Substitution etc. NIL

3. In case of imported technology (imported
during the last 5 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following
information may be furnished:-

NIL
NA

c) Whether imported technology has been
fully absorbed? NA

d) Areas where absorption of imported
technology has not taken place, if any.NIL

a) Technology imported.
b) Year of import.

24 17 X
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. fagelt gg1 3ref &k =

(I  fFrfdsem & fog & 7 Fafd ugal | Fafa
Tffafery, Scarel 3R Haratl & forg ¢ TRy

@ fder iR fFrafa g =
(ii) et wRgh IR Affa fageft gl

- faceft gg1 o o S

- faceft gor e g

a9 2024-25 & U HIARE YT R Ruid

By BTl

MUt HUHT BT AT & fh U FRAR Ahetar &
foTq, S 31U 31T URepT, TEh!, PHATRAT, T )
fRauR®! IR AT BT A FHST & U BORE
JTTRIRUT b df3eh HIFeh! bl SHTY W TRV | ha=T gRT
ZHITT 31T DIINC YA TN &I hfed fopar T g,
ST 39 37T YRBT &b U Fad PaRe fqprRT 3R
SefepTioten Jod o Bl U THE AT &

B BT AT B 6 BIaRe TR dad g 3iR
R 9 b A TE 81 I8 pHAN 3R Teh
G 3R 39T RS oI Bl dgM & oIy HTeH
IPEAT TM P IR H 34D g1 HrARe JIO B
eI Seed fade iR o1, uRERiAT 3R Ferud
& PARC FXPiT AT AR TG Ule= FRAT,
Tl dl fABRIT BT IR ST 3T hHT U™
PHRAT & 911 oI o &b 1&g Pl AATaH B 3 IR Bl
21 HYT BT AT € 6 SW aRT Bl g §
qGe, PIARCT Y P R | STFRedhar dal d_ 3iR
[t TRI W fcrefierar iR Semeftear a1 s & forw
319 HTa 31R Goft HATeT T AT SSHT A1y

AR IGPR, PIURT TR Dl AhTd gl Bl PIANT
AT D AT FfeTd BT AT AR 3o, T,
fsaerdr SiR =1 bl /a1 & Hlihd Al & HiR

<
D. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

(I Activities relating to export initiatives
taken to increase exports, development of
new markets for products and services and

exports plans. NIL
(ii) Total foreign exchange used and earned.

- Earnings in Foreign Exchange. = NIL

- Foreign Exchange outgo. NIL
REPORT ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2024-25
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY:

Your Company believes that for its sustained
success, it must maintain global standards of
corporate conduct towards its shareholders,
customers, employees, all other stakeholders
and society in general. The Company has
always focused on good corporate
governance, which is a key driver of
sustainable corporate growth and long-term
value creation for its shareholders.

The Company believes that corporate
governance is not just limited to creating
checks and balances. It is more about creating
organization excellence leading to increasing
employee and customer satisfaction and
shareholder value. The primary objective of
corporate governance is to create and adhere to
a corporate culture of conscience and
consciousness, transparency and openness, to
develop capabilities and identify
opportunities that best serve the goal of value
creation. The Company believes, it must
leverage its human and capital resources to
translate opportunities into reality, create
awareness of corporate vision and spark
dynamism and entrepreneurship atall levels.

Above all, corporate governance must balance
individual interest with corporate goals and
operate within accepted norms of propriety,
equity, fair play and a sense of justice.)

& A 18 X
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P PAT TMRV| SRR iR uReffar fofa &=
3R W fofal & e ah @l IgaR s & oy w
eI g, ST sicel B fRaeRept 1 faamg der aed g

MY HUHT BT FQAS TUSE FMAR HuT & I
3R fire & I3 e 3iR deg FefRa oo ot s
FRAT E — TS O alel HD R Yo afefd Ieurg!
BT It /MYfef AT, TP IR Hdg UG B
fefor & amegfrhtaur/qefiFiawor & uftsar § asft
AT, SARATEAT &7 Pl SUANT 3iR ATH1fA. hHiY IR
feRRIGRY ST

fAeerp Hea:

Tftfep ATEROT AT &Y &7 qeb U= &b gD Hecd
HI AT ST UPR E:

e queet § U Iredel QiR Usy e dfed drd
e afirer € | |eft figerent o <aférg foramor =i fea
TI"’IIT%:

@ <

Accountability and transparency are key
drivers to improve decision-making and the
rationale behind such decisions, which in turn
creates stakeholder confidence.

The Board of your Company constantly
endeavours to set goals and targets aligned to
the Company’s vision and mission - To
produce/supply good quality of salt & value
added products, To accelerate the process of
modernization/ mechanization of
manufacture of salt and allied products,
Efficient utilization of resources and Increase
the market share of SSL.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the company as on
date of AGMisasunder:

The Board consists of five directors including
one Chairman & Managing Director. The brief
particulars of all the Directors are given below:

M [BEAIES B AP ACE )| g Hryfe Name Category  Date of Qualification Directorship
sft / sfrach &Y ooft Fgfaa &t o s of Director  of Birth in other
& (Shri/Smt.)  Directorship Date of companies
Appointment
Forg 1T arege 28.06.1970 ¥ITHIR  figear Sanjay Banga Chairman 28.06.1970  Post Hindustan
Td e 21.05.2025 e s, & Managing 21.05.2025 Graduate Salts Ltd.,
frae HrftamTer Director Cement
Corporation
of India
Limited
fesrar PR, INBRY 17.02.1972 i, JRTIHITHUSR Dinesh Kumar, Government 17.02.1972 B.Tech Rajasthan
TR A Tifercht 19.07.2024  (Rifder) Huat, Wt Principal Nominee 19.07.2024  (Civil) State
TR, I, Ectied Gf gt o Secretary Director Power
T PR ST o, Revenue, Finance
< g ot Government & Financial
st of Rajasthan Services
Sepl, Wan:[ Corp. Ltd.,
Rufirer TR Essel Saurya
HIANIH, 3R Ui
' Company of
SRR, R, Rajasthan
G . T Limited,
= fet., I, SauryaUrja
3fffers e
fef
& 4 19 X
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SR, ST
favm,
NSTRRIT HARPR

TR PR,
Frere,
aRY ST

TRBIRY 31.07.1982 dl.ew.

RIS Jel”

it
Fgers

03.10.2024 (3ifFcen
SoltrI¥e)
AR &
yfeetds
grferdt

TRBIRY
i
RED

01.09.1969
02.02.2023

qidh saetic
U, 3TRAR

iiger, TRy,

SRS,

Siept, oI

TR THeE

TITICT ares
fafics,
Raga tg
PSRT (1972)
fafics, Ao
EISEa
HRURIT

JAith gfear
fafics,
Relive)

Government 31.07.1982
03.10.2024

Rohit Gupta,
Commissioner, Nominee
Industries

Department,
Government

of Rajasthan

Director

Naresh
Kumar,

Government 01.09.1969
Nominee 02.02.2023
Director, Director
Ministry of

Heavy

Industries,

Gol

v,

Company of
Rajasthan
Limited,
RIICO,
Rajasthan
Civil
Aviation
Corp. Ltd.,
RTDC,
REXCO,
Atul
Rajasthan
Date Palms

Ltd.,
Rajasthan
Olive
Cultivation
Ltd.

B.Tech

(Ele. Engg.)
Master in

Rajasthan
Solarpark
Development
Public Policy Company
Ltd.,
RRECL,

RAJSICO,

Rajasthan
Industrial
Corridors

Development
Corp. Ltd.,

Rajasthan
Skill &
Livelihood
Development
Corp. Ltd.,
RIICO,
Rajasthan
Export
Promotion
Council.
HMT
Watches
Ltd.,
Richardson

Graduate

and
Cruddas
(1972) Ltd.,

National
Bicycle
Corporation
of India
Ltd., HSL

y/
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i af 2024-25 & SR, AP Aol B TN d5b
11.07.2024, 23.09.2024, 19.12.2024 3R

y
( 1% G t 27.05.1988 Graduat Hindust: @
. rerna overnment 27.05. raduate industan
oot ity 27.05.1988 S Joshi, Nominee 29.09.2022 Salts
e, 29.09.2022 < S Director, Director Limited
EECIESIES s DPIT
g THD cum
3AY<h, Salt
HRA ANHR Commissioner,
GOI
43 Ua IufRAf: Meeting and Attendance:

During the financial year 2024-25, four meetings of
the Board of Directors were held on the dates
mentioned hereafter 11.07.2024, 23.09.2024,

fQud dedt dt d8@ M IR W ST, I
Bl & 3TR B! el | T eIt &1 gTctifeh, Pifds—19
TEMR & BRI, ST BI-hRAT & T1e9T F d3b
RN P TS| Bu=t Afra, areer iR yge fered
P Wef J AP FeId P D Qs queer
dod DY fAfFd gam Iorar g1 9IS BT ToieT gDt af
uge 1 & uRanferd s smar g1 91 Fafia siaRrae
IR IIATRIE AR /it oR T=t iR fFofg &=

25.03.2025 &I AR Dl TS|
19.12.2024 & 25.03.2025.
ﬁ'aETEﬁ ESIRIG ﬁ'&.‘ﬂaﬁ a% ﬁ'&!ﬂaﬁ I HISA Eal Name Whether Board Meetings Category Other Membership
aftFs gt o= Ty of Attended  during  respective of Director of Commitee
il dad * Gh_ﬁﬁ Diretor Last AGM  tenure of Director ~ Ships  of other Boards
Rk YR FRIHA Zoft E‘E’"‘? % HeHdn (Shri Directors Chairperson Member
A/ g H % aRH ALY G /Smt.) Held Attended
figdft  Sufd dew
i T3 Iufeufa
= : _ Shivendra Yes 4 4 Chairman 2 2
3 G 1T &8l 4 4 JYY 2 2
P yde Nath & Managing
o Director
e (AddL.
(a1fd. I9R) Charge)
aqurt SIve 1 0 ROR AT 4 - - Aparna  NA 1 0 Government 4
3RTET EH FR® Arora Nominee
) Director
I PAR el 3 0 WM I 9 - -
ﬁﬁ w ﬁ% Dinesh No 3 0 Government 9
AD Kumar Nominee
Director
IR IR Tl 2 0 BRI 7 - - Sudhir  No 2 0 Government 7
omgf e ﬁ'&?ﬁﬁ Kumar Nominee
Sharma Director
AT [ A 2 0 IR 7 - - Rohit  NA 2 0 Government 7
orf BRI 1fia et Gupta Nominee
Director
e PHAR & 4 4 RGN 4 - 2 Naresh ~ No 4 4 Government 4 - 2
Kumar Nominee
e
Director
oRoT Siveft :|3°[ 4 2 ENHRI AT 1 - 2 Prerna No 4 2 Government 1 - 2
ﬁéﬂ’cﬁ Joshi Nominee
Director
Qe Ause ufdar: Board Procedure:

The meeting of the Board of Directors are
normally held in Jaipur, Rajasthan and are
scheduled well in advance. However, due to
Covid-19 pandemic, meeting were held
through Video Conferencing mode. The
Company Secretary, in consultation with the
Chairman & Managing Director sends written
notice of every Board meeting to each Director.
The Board agenda is circulated to the Directors

%
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IR YT p facfi ugef i e awe o forw firerar 21

AR e AUger i RrmeRaT:

S PI AR HUAT Hl TP AT H TR
BT, BARe Uce| & FHlem iRk FIRF AT,
faframer argure™ ARG BT IR RRURDT &
feal i e AT |

fRee dusa g ik R E|Re
oot /et R == sk fufa o= 3R dut &
ot ugefa &t Tiem o= & fofv ves g & Tl
fQer® qued dod HI ol TS e Bl fafad
®Y § & St 81 I35 Pt ugel A FefRa gt &
3R ToleT 3R e fewuft fgeres @ 3rer 1 1fim
HY QA o S E 3R el SRITERT Al 3 & Ig
3P B @7 S1GT g1 1S YD e d byt & U=
& weftem aRar g iR S g1 fufRa @edt &
SFNIR WK XUHiferes foyofat afik =fifer femfor o weman
IRAT gl QP Avsed & IeA Bl Hut dl )
LTI b Ugd BIhl ¢ 3IR J Sfedrel &b Rl A =l
¥ foro woler A foeft oft et o1 Afdyfora =
RaTReT e & forg Tac= |

GEC| R R B IR

oraT qeter A o <At U dcedt & Aty g
& AT 3T PIANRE TR &b foTg ufcreg 81 I8 Jferd
fopa ST © fob ahueht erferfrm, 2013 HaRT 177 &
IR S (e Hee 6 $oa ik gwht erfhar)
g, 2014 & I 6 & AT HYT Bl AT URET
AT BT T PR T MATHaT T8l &1 BIAip,
ATt STd fI9FT, 9N ST IR ArefSife ey
AT GRT 14.05.2010 P TR AT & BIARE
g IR feenfden & dgd, a1€ 7 e o g

v,

in advance. The Board meets at regular
intervals to discuss and decide on business
strategies/policies and review the financial
performance of the company.

Board’s Responsibilities:

The Board’s mandate is to oversee the
company’s strategic direction, review and
monitor corporate performance, ensure
regulatory compliance and safeguard the
interests of the shareholders.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss
and decide on business strategies/ policies and
review the financial performance of the
Company. The notice of each Board Meeting is
given in writing to each Director. These
Meetings are scheduled well in advance and
the notice of each Board Meeting is given in
writing to each Director. The agenda and the
relevant notes are sent in advance separately to
each Director and only in exceptional cases the
same is tabled at the meeting. The Board
reviews the performance of the Company
every quarter vis-a-vis the targets set by them
and helps in the major strategic decisions and
policy formulations. The members of the
Board have access to all information of the
Company and are free to recommend
inclusion of any matter in agenda for
discussion in consultation with the Chairman.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is committed to good
corporate governance with best discharge of
its assigned duties. It is informed that pursuant
to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of
Board and its powers) Rule, 2014 company is
not required to constitute the Audit
Committee. However, under the Guidelines
on Corporate Governance of CPSEs issued by

Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of
J

&AZZV
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PR P T oIaT yRter fafey o o+ fobar 81 et &
T TarcoT G eTe! BT BRidIeT 20.01.2023 DI FHTH
B T 2T, SAfTY TRBR GRT Faais fFeren &t fFrgfeard
T A T T f3mT Taar et @ foham |

STt AfAfe H G-

31.03.2025 do oi@mNlen dffa o f=forfad
e 9mfiret o

1 =i forag ey
Hheget, @r.arfe. -

2 sft R PR, -
ey, IR ST HATeT

3 sfiwcl wRom Siveft, -
freeren, demgamset
g T 3G
11.07.2025 P! QORI AART HT g 50
UpR fHarmm:

1 off Ao 9rm, domet, |ranfa. - erege

2 st e PR, g, - ™
AR IS HATT

3 sftct ovom Seft, e, - <"
SIT3SISt Ag THD 3MYh

AT At Y d5d iR IufRAfa:

foa af 2024-25 & SR, HUT HY SRITANIET IR
P d5h 10.07.2024, 23.09.2024, 09.12.2024
Tq 25.03.2025 &I &S|

Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010, the Board has constituted the Audit
Committee to discharge the duties. Tenure of
all three Independent Directors of the
company was expired on 20.01.2023 ,
therefore, till appointment of Independent
Directors by the Government , the committee
was constituted without Independent
Directors.

Composition of Audit Committee:

Audit Committee as on 31.03.2025 consisted of
the following Directors:

1 Shri Shivendra Nath, - Chairman
CMD, SSL

2 Shri Naresh Kumar, - Member
Director, MHI

3 Smt. Prerna Joshi, - Member

Director, DPIIT cum Salt
Commissioner

Audit Committee was re-constituted on

11.07.2025 as follows:

1 Shri Sanjay Banga, - Chairman
CMD, SSL

2 Shri Naresh Kumar, - Member
Director, MHI

3 Smt. Prerna Joshi, - Member

Director, DPIIT
cum Salt Commissioner

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance:

During the financial year 2024-25, Audit
Committee of the company met on 10.07.2024,
23.09.2024,09.12.2024 & 25.03.2025.

4 23 X
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e deer Y oaRien ARy @1 T OIS @
ferdteror Feeft RrAgIal o 1 A B e e
qer g8 A da & forq fopar Sar g & eridfe
for=ToT, wemett 3iR yoferat &t g Aeted &l

Hegan afafa P sreger iR e

Ay o9 F o1 I Feuw
g, R s e agad 4
g SR orarler wffy &
Jegy Afgd AP A
fofi faemon @1 g 3k FHsH
9 T <ufh g

fodfl s e 9 U Tadd
Qe @ Qs qusa gRI
qfa o1 ey fge
ST

Z
7 <)
AR HTAM  UQ yoft IufRIa Name of Status  Category Number
(sft/ sfre) Soai Hraw  the of

Member Meetings
(Shri/smt.) attended
fara=e 1oy JTY Yy 4 Shivendra Chairman Chairman 4
wd ey Nath & Managing
Director
fAQers
R PR A IRENT 4 Naresh Member Govt. 4
Kumar Nominee
1o fQeres
fre Director
TROTT T PRI ) Prerna Member Govt. 2
S ] Joshi Nominee
Director
RCRED
rETIRYeT ARy e 6 ot Audit Committee Terms of reference:

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
constituted to assist the Board in fulfilling
oversight responsibilities and to ensure that
the framework of internal control, practices,
and systems are robust.

Membership Chairperson and Members

of the Committee

The Committee shall comprise
of a minimum of three
Directors with independent
Directors forming a majority
and majority of the members of
the Audit Committee
including its Chairperson shall
be persons with ability to read
and understand financial
statements.

One Independent Director
having Financial knowledge
will be appointed as the
Chairperson of the Committee
by the Board.

y/
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P 3R gqD Feft daep! F 9
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AT & ¥veaT o1 U fgTs ar qr
ey, STt ot arferes &Y, ghit

fopedt oft S35 o S arel wHt @
fofa ArgRe ggEa | fa
ST

Aftfer it fiferad gerg 72 o,
Rre @Rg g g, afufa o
fafed a1 S|% gRT WA fbw o
b aret Tt TRy, orfeRan
3R fIABIIBRT BT TRINT e |
qerg grft

oRYeT A B ves foHTe H @y
q P U% IR e arfevl af &
SRM eiaTaRier IRy 6 o
BT IR S5d B AR

AT & srezer a1 FRes Heal &
e 39 ey &Y oaf & Iifd
I aTet fdt off el R faeR

Secretary

quorum

Frequency
of Meetings

In the absence of the
Chairperson of the Committee,
the remaining members
present shall elect one of
themselves to chair the
meeting.

Reconstitution

The Board shall reconstitute
the Committee as and when
required.

The Company Secretary shall
act as Secretary to the
Committee and attend all its
meetings.

The quorum would be one
third of the strength of the
Committee or two Members,
whicheveris higher.

Questions arising in any
meeting shall be decided by a
simple majority of votes.

A duly convened meeting of
the Committee at which a
quorum is present shall be
competent to exercise all or
any of the authorities, powers
and discretions vested in or
exercisable by the Committee.

The Audit Committee should
meet atleast once in every
quarter. Atleast four meetings
of Audit Committee should be
held during the year.

The Chairperson of the
Committee or the Chairman of
the Board may each convene
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e & forg fopet oft | Aferfey meetings of the Committee at
& S oIl Al B any time to consider any

matters falling within this
Terms of Reference.

Dutiesand ¢ To oversee the Company’s

Responsiblities financial reporting process
and the disclosure of its
financial information to
ensure that the financial
statements is correct,
sufficient and credible;

*eTo review with
management, the annual
financial statements before
submission to the Board,
focusing primarily on;

a. Matters required to be
included in Directors’
responsibility statement
to be included u/s sec
134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013

b. Any changes if any, in
accounting policies and
practices.

c. Major accounting entries
based on exercise of
judgment by
Management.

d. Qualifications in draft
auditreport.

e. Significant adjustments
arising out of audit.

f. The going concern
assumption.

g. Compliance with
accounting standards.

h. Compliance with legal
requirements relating to
financial statements; )
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o e & forg fFQuss Hea
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RgTRtepT Y Rard &t Sira

PHT;

o 3HIGH & foTg e Ausa
@ aIfffes IoIc DI I
3IR ST AT

o JM-PURT KU AR Faa
Eﬁ\_rf\f‘—ofm;

o Sg ot 3a%e g, But B
SupHl a1 gRguRen @
e ;

Y geeE  womferal @t
e ;

o HifafRep oar wten & fow A
DT e DI RIBTRET FRAT;

o IdRP @l wWedl 6
frafes, afesrfie ok Fgfh
& ordf dem duHl H oRar
oter aeft fodt off Jar o forw
f2res et BT RIIRYT =T ;

o oRGT GRlerp P TaaAar iR
Uge dem oRar e ufdha
& uvrgefierar &t wter ik
ﬁ"WI:ﬁQ@:lT;

o TEYE &b A1 fomTE U i
THYETT hRAT ;

@ <

i. Disclosure of any related
party transactions; and
* To review & recommend the
Company’s financial
policies to the Board for
approval;

e To examine the financial
statements and the auditors’
report thereon;

* To approve and recommend
the annual budget to the
Board for approval.

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate
loans and investments;

¢ Valuation of undertakings or
assets of the company,
wherever itis necessary;

e Evaluation of internal
financial controls and risk
management systems;

¢ To recommend to Board fee
for Statutory Audit;

* To recommend to Board for
appointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of
Internal auditors and any
audit related services of the
company;

* To review and monitor the
auditor’s independence and
performance and
effectiveness of audit
process;

* Reviewing with the
management Quarterly
performance;
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*To review with the
management, performance
of external and internal
auditors, the adequacy of
internal control systems;

* To review the adequacy of
internal audit function,
including the structure of the
internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the
official heading the
department, reporting
structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

* To review the follow up
action on the audit
observation of the C&AG

audit;

* Provide an open avenue of
communication between the
independent auditor,
internal auditor and the
Board of Directors;

* Toreview the findings of any
internal investigations by
the internal auditors into
matters where there is
suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a
material nature and
reporting the matter to the
Board,;

* Consider and review the
following with the
management, internal
auditor and the Statutory

%
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HRAT 3R T BRAT; auditor:

1. 9 & SRM Hgcaquf fsa, 1.Significant findings during
AR frost  onaT gdler the year, including the status
Aot Bt RRRY ol of previous audit

AH 2 g recommendations;

o Rar & ot ot &5 @71 yar 2.Post-audit discussion to
ST % Fore arr gle & ascertain any area of
ot fere s concern;

o WSy Uell & AT HUA b * To give approval or any
Q- I HoRdt ST AT 91E | subsequent modification of
PIE HLET TR transactions of the Company

' with related parties;

o Hiusit afifee Rarc o1 Reprs o * To take on record CAG
T AuditReport;

o fREA seler Aifr & TEd * To exercise its powers and
I~ 4R 37T QTfehat ot carry out its responsibilities
YT HIEAT AN (g asmay be required from time
AT T =T T to time under the Whistle

™ ' Blower Policy;

o Qe HUSe GRI iETudier * To address and deal with
afafer o 9i TU s aHel such other matters as may be
gorr Hut AIRRM. 2013 delegated bythe Board to the

: f, =S Audit Committee and
& %TRT 177?3 matters referred under
AR B AT AT IR Section 177 of the Companies
I faeT | Act, 2013,
gTRsifAe afafa: REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

TR SN UG Al ST G &b Al ST fI9RT gRT
i 14.05.2010 @ IRT Hdiwdag & @daRe
g eelt feenfden & AR, e Hee A
aTRstfires AfAfer o1 7o fapam o1 duet & iF e
fQerep! BT BRIGIET 20.01.2023 BT AHTH & 7T 2T,
gHfely TRBR GRT Fad Feere &6l s g9 o,
AT @1 16 Faad fqerent & fomT fopam e

As per the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance of CPSEs issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises dated
14.05.2010, the Board had constituted the
Remuneration Committee. Tenure of all three
Independent Directors of the company was
expired on 20.01.2023, therefore, till
appointment of Independent Director by the
Government, the committee was constituted
without Independent Directors.

%
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SIIR-302022
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sitenfie &=,

SRIYR-302022

2021-22 27.12.2022 12:00 Usilpd
RGP Sit-
229, HIAY
enfis &=,

SFIgR-302022
Sﬁﬂﬂ'@?ﬂ
IS 7 30.08.2010 DI IRINIT YT S5 H IR

WPR GRI SR bag AESp & & Il
(A dro.emg.) § diaRe maRE W ar-fdern &
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Composition of Remuneration Committee as
on31.03.2025is as under:

1. Shri Shivendra Nath, CMD, SSL
(Chairman)

2. Shri Naresh Kumar, Director, MHI, Gol
(Member)

3. Smt. Prerna Joshi, Director, DPIIT cum Salt
Commissioner, Gol (Member)

GENERAL BODY MEETING:

The last three Annual General Meetings of the
Company were held as under:

Financial Date Time Location
Year

2023-24 24.09.2024 11:00 AM Registered
Office: G-229,
Sitapura
Industrial
Area, Jaipur-
302022.

2022-23  02.11.2023 11:00 AM Registered
Office: G-229,
Sitapura
Industrial
Area, Jaipur-
302022.

2021-22  27.12.2022 12:00 PM Registered
Office: G-229,
Sitapura
Industrial
Area, Jaipur-
302022.

CODE OFCONDUCT:

The Board in its meeting held on 30.08.2010
approved the “Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Board Members and Senior

y/
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3INIR 1S & AGHT 3IR aRS Teie & forg ceTiiies
JITAR SR SR AfTea BT Fot &Yl 3P AR 9IS &
Tl AR IS Faer il = i au &t a1 | 30
ol o iR aTiifen BHTER W bls & IuTer HI gR A 7
3R S FIQerep HUSe & FHET I@T T &1 AU b
IO 45 FRIGerent i RIS o aRAE & 0 H Herdt ¢

e eT qUe et ASH| b1 Tfdreqor

S & (2D BT BT P ATIARID Hised, AT
& 3fe A yRferd FxIT T 81 HUHr & BB A
et Tt uifte ggi iR Aecayul geArndl |
QDT P T —AHI IR 3TeRT HRIAT AT 2

fARerel 3R T v udhg Hifal 1 aTRsife:

Teh INBRT BUT 8 & A1, 31edel iR yge Feered
SR BRIt Qe BT TSI TR IRBR GRT T
fpar S 21 RN AMifhd afeRal @ Big
uTRsifie =8 foam Siar el s e, Feas
qugd 3R AT Y dodl § 9N o & forw sot Y
hIkd T BPGR 2|

TIR & ATY:
JqTSS

U T dgATSe www.indiansalt.com AT 3R
qft fRdeRe! & foTv STHBRY Blke dRat g1 HUT &

Management” in terms of guidelines on
corporate governance in Central Public Sector
Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Government
of India. Pursuant to this Board members and
senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code on an annual basis
within 30 days from the end of FY and same
was placed before board. The certificate of
Compliance is enclosed as Addendum to the
Directors’ Report.

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

Directors on board have been provided with
an introduction to the company’s business
model, area of operations etc. All the relevant
issues and significant developments related to
the working of the company are imparted to
Directors from time to time.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Being a Government Company, the
remuneration of functional director like
Chairman and Managing Director is decided
by the Government of India. Government
Nominees were not paid any remuneration.
The independent Director is entitled to sitting
fees for attending board and committee
meetings.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Website

The company’s website www.indiansalt.com
hosts information for investors and all

stakeholders. The Annual Financial
FSep Telr fefaor ds ga.tr\! 3 _ oJt & IR statements of the company are available on the
3R SISellS PR AN U H Juefed B website in a user friendly and downloadable
form.
%
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Official Newsreleases

The company communicates with
stakeholders by way of official news releases in
electronicand print media.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-
(Sanjay Banga)

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 09353339

Date :24.09.2025
Place : New Delhi
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T Tt 3R 30T e 59 RUIE & 1y et &
9T GATEH T99:

3MYh! HUHT FTSIHD 18T T UTH e b folv
g AAT fABRT Ugell &l WM ST b JTef
IRIET B Bl 7l D AT &1 GRIerer M
§99 & foTu plerer ey 3R e/ fHmfor, ufer
Jifemrgur, faerT 3R ufcramur uFifRIT i feem &
HEAYU! BHeH TR IoTY ST I8 &1 el uRaeT &
foTT UTEfIes s g7, TIS-TIcHDh TUTd bl 9 31Y
FHI - TR e HMT iR AT a1 srgdter
vifchaTatl o fUeel e 8! H agetd TR ARy gat 2|

et ot fReT TR O deToT ol ST R b
o v & &R Agea oy rfefem, 1961 & weft
AT AT < 3Tt Bl g el gl

9 foci 9 31.03.2025 & 3id H JMUPI Hu=t o
11 PRIBR 3R 70 IR-PRIBR AfZd 81 PN &

INEIEARCIREYE

o, SRR w9 fasetiT (o) SiR sud et (Tavg—
W) & folu Uql & IIRemr & - =it off sFy
R /gfaeail o eer § TRPR GRT SIRT feem—Fget
AR IR & 21 faher af o it o fafvyer SfoRi F erRafort
STIfT/3rgfo Sonfr /3 fiser ot/ oRiRes w9 |
falepeTiT SpeFaRa bt e TR 38

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
ANALYSIS

The Management discussion and analysis
statements are attached to this report.
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:
Your company realizes the criticality of aligning
human resource development initiatives with
strategic objectives to achieve organizational goals.
Significant steps towards skill development and
capability build-up, talent acquisition,
development and retention strategies are
continuously undertaken for being an employer of
choice. Human Resource policies and processes of
the company have transformed and evolved over
the years in order to stay relevant to the changing
environment, enhancement of organizational
agility and ensure compliance with the changing
rulesand regulations from time to time.

The Company remains committed to upholding
the welfare of its female employees and
confirms its compliance with all applicable
provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.
Your company has 81 employees consisting of
11 executives and 70 Non-Executives at the
close of this financial year 31.03.2025.
RESERVATION OF VACANCIES:

Your company is implementing the guidelines
issued by the Government with regard to
reservation of posts for SC, ST, OBC, Physically
handicapped (PH) and Ex-Servicemen (Ex-S) as
well as for any other concessions /facilities. The
number of SC/ST/OBC/PH employees at the
close of the financial year, in the various
categories remained as under:

AND

oot 319 @l 31add 319w 319 319 31 gRf @Y
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

No. of
SCs as on

No. of No. of No. of No. of Ex-
SCsason SCsason SCsason serviceman
as on 31st as on 31st ason3lst ason3lst ason3lst ason3lst

March March March March March March

2025 2024 20252024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Total
Strength

Group

11 12 02 01 00 00 02 03 00 00 Ot o1

A

il o1 06 00 o1 00 01 00 01 00 00 00 00 B 01 06 00 01 00 01

kil 16 12 04 01 00 00 09 08 01 01 00 00 C 16 12 04 01 00 00

i 53 49 20 22 o1 o1 22 18 00 00 00 00 D 53 49 20 22 01 01

gl 81 79 26 25 01 02 33 30 01 01 01 01 Total 81 79 26 25 01 02
%

A 11 12 02 01 00 00 02 03 00 00 01 01
00 01 00 00 00 00
09 08 01 01 00 00
2 18 00 00 00 00

33 30 01 01 01 01
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Tfar&1oT ve fehT:

HTa AATEE & HIETH A IcHEAT A & forg ufdramor
Uq faepr PRIhH b Hgaqul e &1 ol agerd!
TNt Sk T Pieret & A o7 @ & forg 3
FHHANAT Dl JorE], Scaedhdl § gIR iR e
HETRIT & SPHEAT UTH PxA & fofg 7Y AhihT 3iR
IER et PiereT BRI IR & foTu micarfad axa
2l

&3 v BT R - TR

Ut o fedt & ofareiicr 9T & o1 aTeft wfeHrsal o
R BRA B foTq T PRIy IR geTS H IS ISTHTT
PRI FART 7 370 TIRT TR R | 14.09.2024
¥ 28.09.2024 TP &< ugarsr g4r Tl &S o
FHAIRAT HT By U1 P & oY Tgare & R
fafre prfepd 3R TS MRfTa &t 7| doet A
I 2024-25 & SR TRIDHN, STIYR GRT ARATIT
&Y <1 & faftrer wfcrfafert & fopar a3 9w fora 21

PIANS AT STRIT 3R BeATUTR NI TffAferT:

PIUNCS AT STfeq

PIARE ARG IR JMUDHT HUt BT AT & P
PIARE AHTRTS SRR (HvdaerR) fopsdt oft qor
frT o v ywg fte e g1 focia ad 2023-
24 % fow U=t 7 T 20,16,57,440.43 &1 At
31ffe T | degaR, fomdta af 2024 -25 & RM, 3
Qelgdlf faxftar st & affad g e @1 2% oid gy,
HuT 7 HoerR Tfafafery w 7 28,39,885.00 W
fpul af 2024-25 & IRH, T YRT DY H

%
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Voluntary Retirement:

During the year no employee/ worker has
been voluntarily retired.

Training & Development:

Training and Development program is a vital
component for driving excellence through
Human Resource. The Company invests and
encourages its employees to acquire newer
technical as well as behavioural related skills
for improving quality, productivity and
achieve excellence in their respective areas in
order to stay with the change technologies and
newer skills.

PROMOTION OFHINDILANGUAGE:

The Official Language Implementation
committee constituted at the corporate office
and at the unit continued their efforts to
overcome from the difficulties in the
progressive use of Hindi in the Company.
Hindi Pakhwada was observed from
14.09.2024 to 28.09.2024. Various programs
and competitions were held during Pakhwada
to create interest among employees in Hindi.
The company has actively participated in the
various activities being organized by
NARAKAS, Jaipur during the year 2024-25.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ANDWELFARE ACTIVITIES:

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate Social Responsibility: Your
company believes that Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) plays a major role in the
development of any country. For the financial
year 2023-24 company earned a PBT of Rs.
20,16,57,440.43. Accordingly, during the
financial year 2024-25, taking 2% of average
net profit of 3 immediately preceding financial
years, company spent Rs. 28,39,885.00 on CSR)

A 34 &




)

7
17,03,931.00 35 S fopy 7, g o the o
11,35,954.00 393 547 fhv 7u| fofia af 2024 -
25 & foTq, dut 7 T 8.40 IRIS Bl I oM Affa
fpar| Ut dut SrfYfm, 2013 & aRT 135 &
SRR ¥ 3l B, saferw ot siferfa & wrae &
IR HITHIR & & foru 3rasges wrae™ foy
ST |

HrowamR fafafer & forg arfie Rurd:

1. dot & Hewemr A w dfim wovar-
(I - 1 % w4 N Aot

2. HIcaam Ay b\

<
activities. During the year 2024-25, Rs.
17,03,931.00 was deposited in Swachh Bharat
Kosh, Rs. 11,35,954.00 was deposited in PM
Cares Fund. For the financial year 2024-25,
company earned a net profit of Rs. 8.40 crores.
Company comes under purview of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore
necessary provisions shall be made for CSR
expenditures as per the provisions of the
Companies Act.

Annual Reportfor CSR Activities:

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the
Company- (Attached as Annexure-1)

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

PH. A9 fAeepue IS a¥ & dRM

1AM /UPpfaad W@  HivHaR
kM  wRfaH wfRfadH

Sl.  Name of Designation Number of Number of

No. Director / Nature of meetings of meetings of
Directorship CSR CSR

Committee Committee

Pt dod B held during attended
a=n =T the year during the
year
g AN AN UU NA NA NA NA NA

HTHIIR &I AT T 50 AG J PH gl

3. HeHR Affy &t wa, HeweR i ok 918
gRT AT ¥ivweR aRaisrHTi & d9-fors
HUAl Pl deARC W Uhe A W™
https://www.indiansalt.com/news-
detail.php?newsid=81 page=1

4. IR AT B O 1 8 & Iu-T77 (3) & IFAROT H
fopy U TR aRASHIRI & UHTa 3fdher & da—
foTeh o AT HRIGRT ARIL UGH I | - ARG |

Provisions of constitution of CSR Committee is
not applicable as the CSR expenditure amount
isless than Rs. 50 Lakhs.

3. Provide the web-link(s) where
Composition of CSR Committee, CSR
Policy and CSR Projects approved the
Board are disclosed on the website of the
Company: https://www.indiansalt.com
/news-detail. php?newsid=81&page=1

4. Provide the executive summary along
with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of
CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule §, if applicable. - Not
Applicable.
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() gRT 135 P IULRT (5)
¥ TR HUT BT 3
G Ty

314,19,94,250.00

(@) grT 135 &I IUgRT (5) T 28,39,885.00
¥ ITAR HUAT & 3
G o &1 I Hfcrerd

() froet faxfi auf &t -
HogeR gRASHIRN A
PrRicpAT T TfafafRry &

I L)

(°) foxfta af & forw -
Ac -3 I ST areft
<ifer, afe &g gl

(3) frcfrr o & forg ot
HUH3IR gIlica

(@) +(m)-(=)1

328,39,885.00

6.
() HogerR aRAISTRN
R T HI g Al
(el aRaSHT @R a1
ORATSHT & 3FATdT 3T GIAY)
(@) goIfAe 3Navged § < -
&6l T fer
(T7) THTT 3Mhe R I i -
TS M, Al AL B
(o) focftr o & forg oo i 1 T 28,39,885.00°
Dol AR () + () + (7).
* f¥r 17,03,931.00 39 w8 YR PIY § ST
NI T AR M 11,35,954.00 B9 Hug -] e
¥ ST RIT V|
(3) focfta aff & fofg @ &t 7€ a1 @ T H T
WW?’I’@T:

¥28,39,885.00*

Y%
(@) Average net profit of the Rs. 14,19,94,250.00

company as per sub-
section (5) of section 135.

(b) Two percent of average Rs. 28,39,885.00
net profit of the company
as per sub-section (5)
of section 135.

(c) Surplus arising out of the -
CSR Projects or
programmes or activities
of the previous financial years.

(d) Amount required to be -
set-off for the financial
year, if any.

(e) Total CSR obligation for Rs. 28,39,885.00
the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].

(@) Amount spent on CSR Rs. 28,39,885.00*
Projects (both Ongoing
Project and other than
Ongoing Project).

(b) Amount spent in -
Administrative Overheads

(c) Amount spent on Impact -
Assessment, if applicable

(d) Total amount spent for the Rs. 28,39,885.00%
Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)

*Rs.17,03,931.00 was deposited in Swachh Bharat Kosh
and Rs. 11,35,954.00 was deposited in PM Cares Fund.

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the
Financial Year:
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[ESICECE] G T &l Tg A9 (PR H) Total Amount Unspent (In Rs.)
¥ foru @d | aRT 135 &Y gRT 135 Pl IUYRT Amount | Total Amount Amount transferred
T pA | SUYRT (6) F (5) PR WGP & Spentfor | transferred to  to any fund specified
<far AR T STTAR T the Unspent CSR  Schedule VII as per
(I H) T P TS HTFIR qEE & AT Financial | Account as second proviso to
IR RS SIRING] ffde fosdt Mfer Year. per sub-section sub-section (5)
EZRUR) T g i (InRs.) under (6) of of section 135.
section 135.
it AR ferfer BRI Amount Date Name Amount. Date
Eﬁ o 1 o of of (inRs.) of
faifer Rl
transfer. the transfer.
Fund
28,39,885.00 LI L T g 17,03, 17.03. 28,39,885.00 Nil NA Swachh 17,03, 17.03.

R 981, 2025 Bharat 931.00 2025
@Y 00 Kosh
2_;; 11,35, 17.03 PM 11,35, 17.03.
o oed. 20m Cares 95400 2025
Fund
(W)Qé‘—d 3H & forg srfcrfven wifer, Al Eﬁ—s’; ?[ (f) Excess amount for set off, if any
Y T ey Rfr Sl. No. Particular Amount
("ﬁq?i ff) (In Rs.)
(1) (2) (3) o @ ®)
(i) grr 135 P IugRT (5) &%  28,39,885.00 @) Two percent of average net 28,39,885.00
B b AT IS profit of the company as per
AT bT 9Id sub-section (5) of section 135
ﬁf fer b (5) of
i ii otal amount spent for the ,39,885.
ii =p) 28,39,885.00 Total pent for th 28,39,885.00
TS Pl for Financial Year
(iii) Rrir o & fore = &t 0 (iii) Excess amount spent for the 0
Tl_s; Bifees vifd) (ii) _ () financial year [(ii) -(i)]
(iv) e Ry a8t & AR 0 (iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR 0
qRISHTRN o7 BrdHET T projects or programmes or
activities of the previous
Tfafer & Seus arferd, fthe p
gfe 3IE & financial years,if any
v) Amount available for set off in 0

(v) emmt faxftar auf & A€ oM 0

& forq Juerey M (iii) - (iv)
7. fUsat i facfia auf & foTg 3mRgeh SidRe AmHTiS
SRR fer &7 e

succeeding financial years
[(ii) - (iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

$H  Jddadl gRT 135 €RT 135 Ta<T 99 &RT 135 EicilcEi Sl. No. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount  Amount Deficiency
e faxfig H SuuRT I SuuRT T@ H Hisuarr fxfw aR«E Financial transferred Amount spent transferred remaining |, if any
a¥ (6) % (6) kS qg <far (5) *® a9f g\r Year (s) to Unspent inUnspent inthe toafund tobespent
fata fafa (?7 ﬂ') E;\"ﬁ T\'g?ﬁ T H CSR Account CSR Financial as specified in
o ' 3 f under Account Year  under succeeding
3 < - sub-section  under (inRs.) Schedule Financial
\?ﬂ_\' GTR T 2 6) of sub-section VII as per ears
e AN 3I§lﬁr ©) per y
@ﬁﬁ e Q\T\S[- 63 (-\"T ﬂ) section 135  (6) of section second (inRs.)
geaidRa < (. ®) fifde ffy (in Rs.) 135 (in Rs.) proviso
<ifar # TR to
(s. ﬁ) 3 g fe, sub-section
gfe qﬁg @- (5) of section
135, if any )
@‘ A 37 X 7,
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8. WWWW%WWW
gRETfRy 1S TS © 1 J1ffd i TS g fohig af ° @

ERRERIRIEEH]

IS &, At a1 1S/ 1ffa gtivre afvufra & e
TSt SIVGE]

fomT o o Piaive A SR & dgd 18 T3 a1
3t &t 1 Vet aReufrl & Fefda faeRor R

7
4 <)
<far BTN Amount Date of
(Wq?}l léf) & fofer (InRs) transfer
U U TY T Y TIU TIT AT NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

8. Whether any capital assets have been
created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year:No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets

created/ acquired NA

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s)
so created or acquired through Corporate

e RG] Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year: NA
®9 | E_ R l.ZIGTR’ P X il Sl. No. Short Pincode Date of Amount Details of entity/
m a _ 2l H od & e/ i/ particulars of the creation of CSR  Authority/
Gkl oReuRy Rk TR el @ faae of the property amount beneficiary of the
HfeH (=) @ property  or asset(s) spent registered owner
fra=or e or asset(s)
Fufy [including
1T complete
qer iR address .
a?:lhlocatlon
A of the
property]

m @ ®) 4) (@) (6)
AR A\ s
Uoflaor dEr,  uar

RISCHE
(et thics IToRa Reprs | g1 JIgIR Sof g ST
TIY, Telc F6R, HHM a7, TR 9 drifed /TR

o /am vy e fopy ST @nfev @i st Fuft
BT B qoT AT oft ST 6 I i)

9. IR Pt gRT 135 &I IUYRT (5) & AR
3IA g T T G U2 T et | fathed <&t
2, O SR IATG| — AR

10.89 TdedRT OIN0T g_d £ 5 HewsmR iy @
PRI R AR ol & HFR It
AR e & argeu 1

™ @ ®) “) ®) ©)
CSR
Registration  address
Number, if
applicable

Name Registered

(All the fields should be captured as appearing
in the revenue record, flat no, house no,
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/
Gram panchayat are to be specified and also
the area of the immovable property as well as
boundaries)

9.  Specity the reason(s), if the company has
failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per subsection (5) of section
135.-NA

We hereby declare that the
implementation and monitoring of CSR

10.

Policy is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the company.
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3D 1
fR.3.for. sraRe amie StReiffca (HTHR)
Hifer woT
HowreR gfee aehey iR S2ea:
St & oo & orgwu, Rarfa /aranfa. o
HITHIR TRl & HIegd | JHN 3R 9 FHEH H
g o DI IMT SIRT QT ORI I8 19+ |araii,
3ERYT 3R Ugell & WIETH W P Rl g, dqTMh
TR Fe et AT o A1 Teh AT B | RSFHGR
HIARE b oY H 3T fHebT DI T Rl €Y FHIS 3R
G & forg FoRaR faama Y agrar i i e |

fR.3.for. /<3 fer. Sfvsemr Aifer b Sgea:

(I e o |+t &Rl R 981 88 ufcegar g
AT, 3 et fRqeRent & f2al @ ggama
gY, anRfep, AT R iRy wu A
eI TR | 37U eI Pl FTfeTe AT |

T IT 31Ty ®U A WAl gRASHT a7
BRI T TIARRIT IR BT S AT B
AT o SR 9T & AT FAFT SraTe
& SfieeT &t Torard 31k 37l dweamr o g
5 gfRomg |

(ii)

aroeft TR Ugell & HIewH A
feanfer /A & o el age
ST DYAT AT HhRIHD Sﬁ?w%la;w%
RTeR Bfd 1 ggg a7 H T H=T|
Hifer i e faeryar:

- 9 dut erfafR-2013, due (TR
Hifer) fFR-2014 qom HItHeR td RRRAT &)
g fear-fden o Sfgfad smasadmaret @t

anfiret fpam T g

(iii)

Annexure-1

SSL Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Policy Outline

CSR VISION STATEMENT & OBJECTIVE:

In alignment with the vision of the company,
HSL/SSL, through its CSR initiatives, will
continue to enhance value creation in the
society and in the community in which it
operates, through its services, conduct &
initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth
for the society and community, in fulfillment
of its role as a socially responsible corporate,
with environmental concern.

Objectives of the HSL/SSL CSR Policy:

(I Ensure an increased commitment at all
levels in the organization, to operate its
business in an economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable manner,
while recognizing the interests of all its
stakeholders.

Directly or indirectly undertake projects
or programmes or activities that benefit
the communities and results, over a
period of time, in enhancing the quality of
life and economic well-being of the local
populace.

(iii) Generate, through its CSR initiatives,
community goodwill for HSL/SSL and
help reinforce a positive and socially
responsibleimage.

Salient Features of the Policy:
- It covers the requirements stated in the
Companies Act-2013, the Companies

(CSR Policy) Rules-2014 and DPE
Guidelines on CSR & Sustainability;
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- 9 HioqerR AfafafeRil & fofg g @i @ - It defines the thrust areas for CSR
gRyIa fopam mam g, S ot srfdifeRm, activities, which are based on the
2013 & G VI 4 Ifgfea niafafr w® activities mentioned in Schedule VII of
amenRa & the Companies Act, 2013.

_ s s oo a1 & b foser 9 g asf - It specifies that 2% of average net profit
& SRF i qg T B 2% ATHAR during the three immediately preceding
TRIFRRIT % forv smafed fsa se| financial years will be allocated for CSR

- &R feder gREeFN @ eRieE an
TfafafeRat, S bad Hut F BHEIRAT 3FR
wrferferer &t /T ST |

- Tt faren aef ot i oft STORITh / 3THRh TR
3TRICT 3FTeT ¥ & foTq TRT of STRIT STTQ, 3refid

TN FoTe Uil H I T2l 8Tl

- HoaeTR afRASTTRN a1 SrRigsHl a1 ffafery
q I IARIAY B &b ARG AT Bl
e et g

- STEl 9T 135(5) & dgd du+l gRT &d &l
ST gt T TaT TR SO | 31feren gl 8,
Il gRT 135(1) & T&d HrARS AHID
SIRGIRT AT & To7 B MaLFdHAT AT
&1 g1t 3fR oRT 135 &% T8d UgH ot T Ut
IffT & Prf, W AWl J, B & Foas
el GIRT e ST |

- PR Hedt $i Aot A iR Affr Ty -9y
R 3o+ HoRraTR ey  Fener o Fand! 8

Hroaam fifer & forg a9-foren:

THUHUA ?:ﬁ'Q?:TC’:TI_\’ i www.indiansalt.com = Sﬁf
&1 TS ¢ 3R 4 https:/ /indiansalt.com/news-
detail.php?newsid=81Page=1 foi & ATed A
TaRI™T TR ST el &

activities.

- The CSR projects or programs or
activities, that benefits only the
employees of the company and their
families shall not be considered as CSR
activity.

- Any unspent / unutilized CSR allocation
of a particular year will be carried
forward to the following year, i.e., the
CSR budget will be notlapsable in nature.

- Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities shall not form
part of the business profit of the company.

- where the amount to be spent by a company
under section 135(5) does not exceed fifty
lakh rupees, the requirement under section
135(1) for constitution of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee shall not
be applicable and the functions of such
Committee provided under section 135
shall, in such cases, be discharged by the
Board of Directors of the company.

- CSR Committee with the approval of the
Board of Directors may amend its CSR
Policy, from time to time

Web-Link to CSR Policy:

SSL CSR Policy is
www.indiansalt.com and can be accessed
through the link https://indiansalt.com/
news-detail. php?newsid=81&page=1

hosted on
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PAIUTAN TffaferT

HUT 7 A HaTEl @t wHt Janfie giaaw ugH
6 &1 prHaRal iR SHb Al JUr IRI-uT &
Tiat & T ARt o fifdhear giaer ueM @A
& foru, IR sp1s B A1 fafthead 3k IRT-afswd
wWIh Afed T gafdd 30 vl arerm et
Henferd g1 el af & SRM IR oRudrer §
11139 3MITER AT BT et fopam TT, o g9R
FHHARY, deared iR TR AN el &1 o
fafid iR wrfaiRa FHHaRal @ f:9ew fafdhe
gfden ugH el 81

99 JATHR BT Ulh IAIC g &1 DUl HHaiRAl 3R
Sffept & folq AT Hifthe iR A1 T & IR W B
AT @I gl DU 7 BHANAT 3R ISP IRAR b
qegt & fory Mo g™t iR waaar ot & g
HEAT IR Wl DRIcHH ot ST fohg £

[T &1 31ferap R Srfefa™, 2005:

RN AT Bl raegararatl & TR, Hu!
& ardtelir TRy iR dgla i T IR &
I BT DY JeITSE TR IR fhT 0 &1 UTH TS T
SR FafRd I9a & fidaR far srar 21 af & ke
B! DT 27 RIS 3MMAG 31k 01 T ardiet e
g3 a1 |t TGl ST Srdlet et FHTeT feba |

GICANCIUGIGIRECINYR

MU HU HeTeT IR AHISG AP A @ilep frpraai
& g & for ufieg 81 Rieral & argeff @ik
THIEG TRId A FHEE H GiIen & fon, garatie
IR 3R e Rrpd fawm, wrffe ek wferem
oM, 9RG WRBR F www.pgportal.in IR a9
3T R TUTTet g% Bl 8| TR TRDR &b e

WELFARE ACTIVITIES

Company has provided all statutory facilities
to its employees. To provide medical care to
the employees and their dependents and also
to the local residents of nearby villages, a well-
equipped 30 bed hospital with qualified doctor
and para-medical staff is operational in
Sambhar Unit. During the year under report
11139 nos. of outdoor patients which includes
our staff members, bandewals and local people
have been treated at our hospital. Company
provide free medical facilities to the regular
and work charged employees.

A large sized park is maintained for company
employees, their families and also for the
general public. The company is running
canteens for the employees and workers on no
profit and no loss basis. Company has also
organized sports event on the eve of Republic
day and Independence Day for the employees
and their family members.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005:

As per the requirements of RTI Act, the names
of Appellate Authority and Central Public
Information Officer of the Company are
posted on the Company website. Queries
received are replied within the stipulated time.
During the year the Company has received 27
RTI applications and 01 first appeal and
addressed all applications and appeals.

REDRESSAL OF PUBLIC GRIEVANCES:

Your Company is committed for resolution of
public grievance in efficient and time bound
manner. In order to facilitate resolution of
grievances in transparent and time bound
manner, Department of Administrative
Reforms & Public Grievances, Department of
Personnel & Training, Government of India

%
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¥ AR, D Rl o warea Sy T srafy
& HfiaR b ST 81 3MUhl ol TEEg ahip |
fRrepTerdll o FHTe & forg sTeft TRIRT e <& B

TR FE Y 3R Tyt A=A

HUH! PRI IR I TATEROT ST WG & forg gt
IRE vfag 21 Ugat & RaRia a1t @t sH1T e &
3retTaT, Jfcrieh gerRrour off foa T g

TIECIﬁfa?ﬁéQT:

HU THT - R SR} g 70 et wrwafey Fran @
UTei dect g1 399 Ugel, THUERTS = 09.06.2022
P 3MSSIT 2007 IR AL 2006 & Fanferd
T BT 01.04.2022 | AFL B & forq rgafey

frder TR T o 3R S ameer (ryufer fSer) &t ar],
fepa T o)

grETyS! i Raifer:

a & SR U IRT T IF W PIS AETee 781 it
T3/ Rard T

IR e, G, fasu= iRk TR R

B 7 IS & SR IS AT R DI W =181 fopar B
IR G 3R TR R @I T 1.19 a9 (fUset
¥ T 4.17 ARF) AT, ST SH3MeR BT 0.03% 2| s
3R TR R T T 12.43 @9 (fUsel af T 7.22
S Tl

IHT IASTDIY & AFS:
e af & R, DU gRT I WSty (g

v,

has initiated web-based monitoring system at
www.pgportal.in. As per directions of Gol,
public grievances are to be resolved within
specified time period.Your company is
making all efforts to resolve grievances in time
bound manner.

ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT AND
POLLUTION CONTROL:

The Company is fully committed to the
maintenance of the proper environment at
work places. Besides maintaining the parks
already developed, additional plantation of
trees has also been undertaken.

PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVES:

Company follows all the Presidential
directives issued from time to time. Earlier,
MHI had issued Presidential directives on
09.06.2022 to implement revised pay scales of
IDA 2007 and CDA 2006 w.e.f. 01.04.2022 and
the said order (Presidential Directives) was
implemented.

FRAUD REPORTING:

No fraud on or by the company has been
noticed/reported during the year.

EXPENDITURE ON BUSINESS
PROMOTION, ENTERTAINMENT,
ADVERTISEMENT & PUBLICITY:

The company has not spent on foreign travel
during the year. Expenditure incurred on
Business Promotion and Entertainment was ¥
1.19Lakhs (previous year X 4.17Lakhs) which
works out to 0.03%of the turnover.
Expenditure on advertisement and publicity
was< 12.43 Lakhs (Previous year X 7.22Lakhs).
CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL
EXCHEQUER:

During the year under review, the

contribution / provision made by the

%
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3iR Trsg ) | faftre ol /<t & U | ot
I /vrae™ fUse a¥ & 2475 ARG & HE T
107 ARG T

PIURE Ta14:

o af 2024-25 & folg PURE Mo & ot &
3T TR UHTOT9 aTfies U & g <@ 11 21 I
% SR SN IS il ST Dt AR, Fgeres Huse
AT T FRET 3R ¥ P R SR FHD! 3P
D BRI PraNe Ta-d R Rac H [fgd 2

oA el W Wefera fRenfden &1 srurer:

ot T e U TATRITes, BIaRe Mo R BRIRd
Hut Afya @1 o af 2024-25 & oW HoeT &
HINE Ta-d SFUTer Y09 aiffes Ruid § e
fem mar 81 fevafor o1 STR 39 YR g

s et & Hefera feenfagen @1 srguTer: o=l
<A fFQeel BT PRIBIA 20.01.2023 BT AW &l
T ATl FEaas et b FRIRR @1 TiitieRt vRd
BN &l PR GRT a7 Fqaen! o FRIfh & 915
s et | FEfdd Feft srueri @ SUTe
feparm StTe|

forerfRa fRemfider & AR 1€ wd okt aderm Afdfer
& dadb: BHu I B A 9IS B 5 TN R
% 21 9 & SRM, TagdariaR e Aued T
oTgT RIe |fAfT bl TR IR 95 g8, Eellih, HHi-
Ffl FeRl HY Uy & pRoT, fod Torgft &
3G H §GH THT W IR 21 &1 bl | wfasy §
ST &I XTSI

company in the form of various taxes / interest
to the National Exchequer, both Central and
State, has been of the order of ¥ 107 lakhs as
against ¥475lakhsinthe previous year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Certificate on Compliance with Condition of
Corporate Governance for the financial year
2024-25 is placed elsewhere in the Annual
Report. Information on number of meetings of
the Board held during the year, composition of
committees of the Board and its meetings held
during the year are contained in Report on
Corporate Governance.

Management reply to observations of
Corporate Governance Certificate:

The Certificate on Compliance of Corporate
Governance of the company for the FY 2024-25
of M/s H Nitin & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary on Corporate Governance
is placed elsewhere in the Annual Report.
Reply to the observationsis as under:

Compliance of guidelines relating to
independent directors: Tenure of all three
Independent Directors was expired on
20.01.2023. Government of India is the
authority to appoint Independent Directors.
All compliances related to Independent
Directors shall be complied after appointment
of Independent Directors by the Government.

Meetings of Board & Audit Committee as per
prescribed guidelines: Company is regularly
holding Board meetings. During the year,
Board and Audit Committee met four times as
required, however, sometimes due to non-
availability of members, meeting could not be
held on time for want of proper quorum. The
same shall be taken care of in future.

%
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Qe AUse ¥ AU TG B Ufeor: Qs Hedt o
et fQeTepl Y HUT P TR Hisel, IR &5
anfe ¥ gfRerr R TR 81 U O hrenTST A Haferd
Tt Uifiien gai iR Agcaqul gchHl 3 el ot
I -9 G 1T PRI ST & |

Hadhdr:

HAhdT fa9NT T e e Acehdl JTEbRT (e,
ST, R0, /.. 1. 3 forq igerer i)
B & 3R FADAT STfEBRY GRT AERIAT UG I ST
2l Serd ok faRe  dadar  wffafery
e far. /s anfor. daddr faum grr & St €1 I8
o Scehar ST (WHans) SR o Sk SR
(Y &b 121 Uh gexvtha & v H off BRf HRar B
FADhdT fIqmT ¥ o7 Fadar Jeeft TfafafeRy ot 6
STt €1 Aadar fa9mT res § fAsuerdr, aRgffar,
STaTeE] 3T ML &b STANT R BIehl SR T 2 |

eI T RN (LA H) | wH SRy &
SFFAR, AT STRAehall TG (1.0 86y, ) & g
% U T A 7N Y RI 31afy (16 3R 2024
- 15 99sR 2024) & SR faftrer afafafry & )
I APRE &b gRE, e fer. /aranfer. sdeRar
P Affpar IR ORI, IR M, e &Y
gonferdr 3R TfehaTy, ATgeR Faeadl iR e, TG
afTfe U= Uf2reror f&m a1 $9d 3TeATdT, Addhal (AR
SR fufeea fafter oomefiTd geRi & drIfeaT &g
Heifere faqmt et gferet fopam |

At i efir- Iy K wig & fow Tt H
TRPTT P TR, 28 3MageR 2024 H 3 AR 2024

v,

Training to new Board Members: Directors on
board have been provided with an
introduction to the company’s business model,
area of operations etc. All the relevant issues
and significant developments related to the
working of the company are imparted to
Directors from time to time.

VIGILANCE:

The Vigilance department is headed by Chief
Vigilance officer (common CVO for REIL, ILK,
and HSL & SSL) and assisted by Vigilance
Officer. Punitive and preventive vigilance
activities are carried out by the HSL/SSL
Vigilance department. It also acts as an
interface with Central Vigilance Commission
(CVC) & Central Bureau of Investigations
(CBI). Other Vigilance related activities are
also undertaken in the Vigilance department.
The Vigilance Department lays considerable
emphasis on fairness, transparency,
accountability and use of IT in the
organization.

Various activities were undertaken during
three months campaign period (16th August
2024 - 15th November 2024) - as a precursor to
Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW), as per
mandate received from Central Vigilance
Commission (CVC). During the said
campaign, trainings on Ethics and governance,
Conduct Rules, Systems and Procedures of the
organization, Cyber hygiene and security,
Procurement etc were imparted to HSL/SSL
employees. Further concerned departments
were conveyed for implementation of various
systemic improvements identified by
Vigilance department.

Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW) was
observed from 28th October 2024 to 3rd

y/
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TP AclehdT STRachd] AHTE (dTTseed) HRIT 17| 3h
U & ond, fRanfr /aanfa. sdeRar o
FITET A9 g T8 3R ot § T Tl IR 39
v R IR weRfa fbg U weriRal o STrReddr
thet™ & foTg Fraer, FRT g iR weast ufcrfiamait
BT I T T |

I Uil o AT ST IT AqEAT:

SO P UE AR UE o 3T AR TR S
BIfCST HUt & AT BId §, ST Ueh AR ot ot B
At HereT ver e eI & AT HH B O 3fR
forsue oI 9 & JMYR WR greeiid & T8 oft @ik foxf
fqavor 1 fezear g, St 599 a1ffes Rud & U 3rem @
P B Y Hod 2

URS D! feged  Alecd fafics (Ranf.) &

121 oY T HeifRre gar el ot feRuT R &:
faeror CIEll MK
(fte ) (=g H)

IR Wy J96 & fganfe 45 3.24
Bl facht

foreeat dree & fRarfa. o i 0.08 0.02

af 2024-25 & fow fRarfa. - 429.18
P T T

faframet /=amare /=amrrfieIon. grRT 9k
Tecayu 3R wifdre smeer S widsy § bt HY are]
fRAfY 3R Fares B u9TAa #-a &

et /=T /=arnfeeRen. gRT aiRd Pis
Hgeaquf 3iR wifcres aneer gl & St wfasy o Hut it

November 2024 as per CVC Theme- “Culture
of Integrity for Nation’s Prosperity”. During
the said week, “Integrity Pledge” was
administered to HSL/SSL Employees &
banners were displayed at prominent
locations in the company on the theme. Essay,
Slogan writing and Quiz competitions were
organized to spread awareness among the
employees.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The Company's related party transactions are
generally with its holding company, which is
also a government company. All related party
transactions were in the ordinary course of
business and were negotiated on an arm's
length basis and forms part of financial
statement, attached as a separate section of this
Annual Report.

Details of related party transactions entered
with the holding company Hindustan Salts
Limited (HSL) are as under:

Particulars Qty. Amount
(In MT) (in Lacs)

Sale of Sambhar Salt 45 3.24

Premium to HSL

Sale of Crystal Salt to 0.08 0.02

HSL

Interest payable for the
year 2024-25 to HSL - 429.18

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY REGULATORS/ COURTS/
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There is no significant and material orders
passed by regulators/courts/ tribunals

%
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Te] fRURT 3R FaTer P g avd |
rafRRe fa<ha AT yotrelt Y wafear:

focfia Ravfé & fRerriaar, aRere sk e
&T Y Iy IR T R ufcfopar, iR, ufehaman,
et aiiR fafmi &1 srgurer, aRwufl 6T gRem
iR ™Al @1 ot iR pore Suaw g
IR P oY ot § e 31idRep I JorTeft IR 6t
TS g1 JMaRe® oiar wigd S SHul gRT g @
IS GTHR Y 8, 3R s b myraefierar 6
fRaR R axar 21 e1iaRes kgt ater wfafafer ar
GRRT AR oikgT gterent & Fgfeh & o H aregh
We I uRafyd frar mar 81 oiar wter afafa |
MR G URieTdh GRT IR SN olxaT YRI& &
Ruaref &t e i

HUAt AT, 2013 B 9RT 186 & dgd BT,
RS 3R A 9T 1 faewr:

YT 3rfrfR, 2013 &Y URT 186 & dgd AATD
K0T, TRET 3R fraer o1 feror g7 arftfes Ruid & b
I s & ®Y H For fog foremor o7 fgear 21

ﬁ?—iﬁﬁ%@ﬁi:

Yo G A 5ff TH.UA. SRIaTe, TS AEIhNR,
sft T, e, IS g R SR sfmedt wfaar
FeRY B 21.01.2020 F IThH FYRE & rfeRgE=
6 IR J AT F1eT Y 3rafy & Ay AT ey et
a®, St off ugel &1, Faas eud & v § Ry e
o | 7t et @1 BRfdeT 20.01.2023 @i
HHTH 21 7 &7 |

v,

impacting the going concern status and
company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS SYSTEM:

Aninternal control system is formulated in the
Company to ensure reliability of financial
reporting, timely feedback on the achievement
of operational and strategic goals, compliance
with policies, procedures, rules and
regulations safeguarding of assets and
economical and efficient use of resources. The
internal auditor which is a Chartered
Accountant firm appointed by the Company
continuously monitor the effectiveness of
internal controls. The scope of internal audit
activity is well defined in the letter of
appointment of internal auditors. The audit
committee reviewed the reports of internal
audit submitted by the internal auditor.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES
AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Details of Loan, Guarantees and investment as
required under section 186 of Companies Act,
2013 forms part of financial statement,
attached as a separate section of this Annual
Report.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Administrative Ministry had appointed Shri
S.L. Agarwal, Chartered Accountant, Shri
H.M. Johari, Chartered Accountant and Smt.
Kavita Chaudhary as Independent Directors
w.e.f21.01.2020 for a period of three years from
the date of notification of their appointments
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.
The tenure of all Independent Directors was
expired on 20.01.2023.
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T Q9T gRT ENNoT :
Tadd el BT BRIBIA 20.01.2023 DI FHIH &
T 2T

a¥ 2024-25 & IR G&H G &g Il A $HI ST
qTeil TRia:

qeH, oY 3R Aed Jed faerT rfaf M, 2006 &
T8d ARBR GRT & 3R o7y ITMi (TWewg) & forw
Hrdafe wlig if sty i 2 off, v T8
Trae & o Tt i Haerat / favm /e grr
axgall 3iik [aret di FoT arfifes Wi 1 25% Jem
3R o1y Seml (TIues) & fopar S| 31 ufierd &
iR, Tt /Tt Safial & Faific arel ToTE |
4% IR Afge ST & FficT aret TR o 3%
TR T AT 81 9 2024-25 F GRM BRIG BT P
37.63 INIg T9Y ¢ 3R THTHWHS W WG BT P
3 4.76 RS IR £

Bt it facfia Rufr & wfda a= arer weeayef
uRad 37k aftragard, afe 1< &, <t 3w facita af
ot T Wefed g:vee A i fRaron ar s
FHI R B TesTA Henfaa T8l fFar g

o i facii fRfer @1 aifad @t atern @rg o
wife aRac iR e w9 fadiy af & &,
& dfter Tel g3

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS:

The tenure of Independent Directors was
expired on 20.01.2023.

PROCUREMENT MADE FROM MICRO
AND SMALL ENTERPRISES DURING
2024-25:

Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small
Enterprises (MSEs) was notified by the
Government under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
which stipulates that 25% of total annual
procurement of goods and services shall be
made by all Central Ministries /Departments
/CPSUs from Micro & small Enterprises
(MSEs). Within this percentage, a sub-total of
4% procurement is to be made from MSEs
owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs and 3% from
MSEs owned by women entrepreneurs. The
total value of procurement during the year
2024-25 is ¥ 7.63 Cr and out of the total value
procured from MSMEis34.76 Cr.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND
COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE
OFTHEREPORT:

No material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the company
occurred between the end of the financial year
to which the financial statements relate and the
date of this report.
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faria fAaRurar e avea H RaEhrefesa i

ygee = foxiy feror a1 Feud dea & Ruld o
TR wU A AN e fepar g1

A 9Tl BT ITRSIRIcT HUA:

Sl fafEH, 2013 & gRT 134(3) () &t
NI o AR AU e TdeaRT =Iyon
IR ¢ f:

(I  319rf 2025 3 w99 foxfta a¥ & forg arffes
GTat i TR H, i e 3 Fefed 3fd
TR &b AT AT @RGich] T DT Ul
ERIECINS

(i)  Frer! 7 WY egie iRt @1 wa= fpar &
3R I8 oFTIIR AT fobarr & &iR &1 fofar &ik
I oY € ST Sferd fadeyef € aifes 31
qref, 2025 & 3fd § HuT P Al DY RRUfT
3R I 31afY & foTw eyt & o IR &1f @t
TE! SR forsuer gfteptor e 51 |ep |

(iii) ferpl = Dot &I uRwuRml Hr Jrem 3ik
eNETerel 3iR 3 Jrfafiaaren &t Ad iR
I YT R & forq syt arferfzm, 2013
& U@ & AR 9IH g Rals &
RIRGTG & fo1u S IR warfe et Y 2 |

el 7 arftfer WIAT P FRARAT & MR TR
GRIERIRIT
(v) FRue! 3 A S & Tae) o1 sguTer
g am & forg Ifera vonferat GaR &t &
3R T guferal wafe w9 | IR HereraT |
B PR B

(iv)

v,

VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORBOARD’S REPORT

The management has not voluntarily revised
the financial statements or Board’s report.

DIRECTORS’” RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT:

As per the requirements of section 134(3)(c)of
the Companies Act, 2013 your directors hereby
declare that:

(I In the preparation of the Annual Accounts
for the financial year ended 31st March
2025, the applicable accounting standard
have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material
departures;

(i) The Directors have selected such
Accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgements and
estimate that are reasonable prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of 31st
March, 2025 and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period.

(iii) The Directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of the
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and others
irregularities.

(iv) The Directors had prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis.

(v) The Directors have devised proper
systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws and that
such systems were adequately and

y/
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IR & RFd iR Aglear wige = faxfia ad
2024-25 & fou A9 we@d s HUAl, dAICS
DTS, STIYR Bl AT oiaT uRieres PRy fopar
]

gifafe aar gdeml N RO w® yded B
feoaforT:

3TSCCH, SR = 31 AT, 2025 &I FHTH g9 o fofg
o o i foreRor 0R el aw Raid € 21 gTaias,
I B 3T M, H1U.SMR.3N. 3R 3raRe o w)
I I & ded &A= IMepid fham g1 |ifafdre o
TRieres St feTafort oR Uee T STaTe 339 UhR 7: -

7
wifafers o wiers: operating efficiently.
HUT AffRIH, 2013 & gRT 139(5) & gR ~ STATUTORY AUDITORS:

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India has appointed M/s
Bhandawat & Company, Chartered
Accountants, Jaipur, as Statutory Auditors for
the financial year 2024-25.

Management Comments on Statutory
Auditors’ Report:

The Statutory Auditors, M/s Bhandawat &
Company, Chartered Accountants, Jaipur
have given their qualified report on the
financial statement of the company for the year
ended 31st March, 2025. However, they have
drawn attention under “other opinion”,
CARO and qualified opinion on Internal
Controls. Management reply to the
observations of the Statutory Auditor is as
under:-
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HUT 3Mifeer RuId-2020 T ITAUF-T

3T BT 3R R smasadarsii ur Raid

Annexure-A to the Companies Auditors Report-2020
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I Ul el Uy, H 3TR SUDR &b HIY H:

(V) oW S S SR 3R Tadienvur & SIg-IR, ot F R, W 3R
SUDBRN i AT fJeaxur iR fRufer afgd guf foaror fam aret
S Repls 78l sAC &l
In respect of the Company's property plant and
equipment's:

i. a.(A) According to information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant & Equipment’s.

Hut Traferd gemell & IFNIR
Repls gt 21 gedifp, oam
el gRT di T2 feraforay ar
faftraa e o= forn T § 3R
Tle], foxfa af & GRM 7 W
e e S @ik S @R
o SITQT |

The Company maintains
records of property, plant,
and equipment in
accordance with prevailing
practices. However, the
observations made by the
Auditors have been duly
noted and will be addressed
and implemented during
the current financial year.

() &5 T TS THBRT IR FITBRUN & AR, DU 7 3 gRFUREAT
1 Syt Repls 78l 7@ 2|
(B) According to information and explanations given to us, the

company has not maintained proper records of intangible
assets.

HUt 7 2013 § eft ATFeRR
3R 2018 # TIRIRUA Hisyel
TG 9Tl I AIgCAIR
gR¥Fafi™l 9 31.03.2025 dd
3TUT SUART Tt TRT I foRIT &
ESCIACERURSICIRSEI RIS 1
HY 3 of T T & |

The Company purchased
the Tally software in 2013
and the HRM module in
2018. Both software assets
have completed their useful
lives as of 31.03.2025. The
details have been properly
recorded in the books.

(&) gee gRT & T SR T TR0 TAT b1 GRT IR
e T KA & AR, g9 Ui o difis e ufthan

AR Bl UphT & BRI, FGI
P T 37 &=IheT DI ST &

%
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3R ST Hifres T Ruid Ifya 7l &1 [ufRy, 3= Ud U
& Sford Yifcie AT & 3ra |, g9 uRFuiial & e e

greaitep, fofia af 2024-25 &
foru  uRgufial @1 Yifte

3R I gasd Yo & ey H fordt oft R w feooht o o
el gl

b. As per the information & explanations given by the
management and physical verification report provided by
the company, we observed that physical verification
procedure and their physical verification report is not
proper. In absence of proper physical verification of
Property, Plant and Equipment we are unable to comment
upon the discrepancies if any, in relation to physical
existence of assets and their book value.

AT G & g gl U
31Ut gR_AUTRT 31fyeRg -RaaTa
goel! § fReR guR ax &
3P ITTTEl, Gl NIl gRT
&t TE 3y fewfor @t oft a1
g af & SRM fafdeq
Aferferd frar Stram|

Due to the nature of the
business, the number of
items and Area is
significantly large.
However, physical
verification of assets has
been completed for the
financial year 2024-25. The
Company is continuously
improving its asset record-
keeping system.
Furthermore, the other
observations made by the
Auditors will be duly
incorporated during the

currentfinancial year.

i (V) Put Y rcaRe AR gRT FEAT MR R aF & SR T IR | SRATIRIET GIRT 0T &1 T8 Bt H
gededt &1 Wi Ao foparT TRIT 21 e gRT 310TTE TE sdel & | Fieere "ed  gRT ergHifed
Hferep TeATUT Y vt 31X UfhaT U=t & JMMBR 3R ISP AT | I AT DI oMfier =gt fova
& Ul & wey H Ifrd, Tl ik Suge el &1 iR Ay gRr | T E - uget ad o forw 10% 3R
i T & SRM, e TP IR @ T S fago et & | R ad 4§ dfcrad 5%

T § 75% IT I 31 Y et 8 S Fgeaquf & <ifde vt fonedt
I T IRET Wil ! Gl H T8l &1 T 8| T DY AT & 1R
TP P IR BT AP MR [T MR IR Hifcyepr Fam9= Fag g1
2 TNp T9P P R BT DR JIAMT 81 IRl NI Pl e
R fopam STTaT & 579 Q) 37dd: 1% 81 oIl 21 fahia aef & SR
IcuTfed / HSTRT AT &6 10% Pl R J YT b foIu Taer by v
2 g a¥ & SR 3ifcm wy J 1 by MU <RI R iR vaa,
IfE P &1, P FHRNIT R & 91 3ifeh U I A1 7 fobu 0 e_l b
HaY H TRIYP Teid R 5% UfT a8 6l R I yrae fpe v g, saferv
bl Y AT P FTIAR R DY 30T FpRf 9@ 9 B IRH TAD

P e SR AT 4,91,725
Hifeep T off1 31.03.2025 dh
THDH BT g8l ¥ib 2,52,409
Hifes = o, Safe Hifas Teis
2,00,593 Hifew e o, SRIdh
IRUMRG™Y 51,816 Hifdd e
&1 P g1 T UDR Pl P
10.54% & T3, S S GRI
IR AM 3eqd HMT &
feR 2
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ii.

Uit bY geict & foTq P AetThR 10% AT SAferep i febedt off fegrfey
o foTq oI%a YRiepl H IS FHIANST T8 el T 21

(a) The Physical verification of Inventory has been carried
out at once during the year by the internal committee of the
company on sample basis. The coverage and procedure of
physical verification of inventory followed by the
management is not reasonable, adequate and appropriate
in relation to the size of company and the nature of its
business. During the physical verification by internal
Committee, there is shortage of 75% or more in cases of
some heaps between the physical stocks and book stocks
which are material but no such shortage has been account
for in books of accounts. As per Company policy the
Physical verification of salt heaps on accurate and reliable
basis is not feasible because of the irregular shapes of salt
heaps. Actual wastages are adjusted as and when heaps are
finally cleared. The provisions are made for wastages @10%
of quantity produced/stored during the financial year and
@5% per annum on the opening stock in respect of heaps
not finally cleared after adjusting the excess provision if any
on heaps finally cleared during the year hence no
adjustment has been done in the books of accounts for any
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed during the year till the final
clearance of the heap as per company policy.

gdch  3cdldl, ‘i‘qnlfg)d HIH D
Hire & AR TRd Iy
3 & forg grae fby S
gl

The shortage calculated by
the Audit has not accounted
for the wastage limits
approved by the Board of
Directors—10% for the first
year and 5% annually from
the second year onward.

The total heap storage
quantity stood at 4,91,725
MT. As on 31.03.2025 the
book stock of salt was
252,409 MT, while the
physical stock was 2,00,593
MT, resulting in a shortage
of 51,816 MT. leading to an
overall shortage of 10.54%,
which is well within the
standard wastage limits
approved by the Board.

Further, provisions for
wastage are made each year
in accordance with the
approved standard limits.

vii. eI ShRIT &b HaY H g S T8 BRI 3R FIERRUT b SRR
(V) &t R H, 3R gH &t 1€ STFeRY 3iR FIEIpRUl &b SRR, A% W

T geeh, IUTG o, T afdhd o, SUdR AR 3 Hifcres Jenies
< fert Afed srfdanea denfes Su fm, St oft @R &, ot
SRT AHTI: Sford witiepiRat & 9 FRafird w9 3 SH1 6l STt <&
g1 59 3MfiReh, avf & 3id d <F 8 &I [ 3 ©g 78 ¥ 1l
6T Al & oy 3 Fafdra arg oft erfarfed fdr sprm &F of,
Ryarr fr=farfad &

vii. According to the information and explanations given to usin

respect of statutory dues:

(@) In our opinion, and according to the information and

explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues

ERSCRCIGICIR %‘qﬂlf{)d HlHD
e & AR TG a9
ey & fory yraeg= fpu S
g1 v of sdaRal & T &
PRI Ig Y dfed g, o
I JUUF eR SUAY 7 B &b
PROT ITHT UNH FAGH ST
TAT JET B T &l D
afiReh, o gd @HaRal =
Uget & 319 v 9 frapTer
foram g, forads uRumRay S
ST W1 95 81 U E 3R Al
Juue oft 78 2|

%
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including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities by the Company. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the
year-end for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable except for the following:

BT A BT Upfar AT g Jafer o forg
(g wug &)  <afdr wefer
Nature of dues Amount Period to which the

(Rs.Inlacs) Amount Relates

ST <
SISINEEZRI

EPF Payable on
CDA Arrear
BN

AT 1997 ¥
EPF Payable on
IDA 1997 Arrear

212 2018-19 & 2019-20

0.24 2018-19

SUIThaTT GRT AR ST WR X113
SET T SIElt 99 9@, I8
R But & @l H I
ST

The amount remains
pending due to certain ex-
employees having passed
away, making it impossible
to deposit their EPF
contributions owing to the
non-availability of their
UAN numbers.
Additionally, some ex-
employees have already
withdrawn their PF
balances, resulting in the
closure of their EPF

accounts and the absence of
active UANSs.

The amount will be
deposited as and when
demanded by the EPFO.
Until such time, the funds
are being held in the

Company's books.

ix. a. R I H U1 g <) 7 G SR FUEIRU & SR, HU A |bul by gl A SR HIC H
3ot BIfeeT Hut srerfd i Aecy forfics & 0 a1 SYR &1 |7t <&t oft, Ry aRomaeq
3TGRRTY H g &t B fUoat foxiia 9 a& ST Fad

ix. a. In our opinion and according to the information and |¥URT B0MHD Y&l 9 faciia
explanations given to us, the company has defaulted in the RART &b PBRUI, HUHT KU P
repayment of loans or borrowings from its Holding TG gzm%r T o @
Companyi.e., Hindustan Salts Ltd. Teiiich, SITST T I TR W

0T Tfergferat | Sworerar fod iy =| 9 geem | Rdfda o | af a8 fearm |

Ifed SuR | @1 M 3 RERIEIS] sﬁ?rﬁ’cﬁ feoquoft & 319 9ot Uy AhRIHSD 8 ST

1 il o ?m % T, DU awvEaT ¥ sk

JUR dM & foIT emaeds weH

Nature of | Name of Amount Whether | No. of Remarks, SEAI

borrowing, | lender not paid on| principal | days delay| if any S31 < & ok WF s 3R

including due date or interest| or unpaid T IR P ARG q

debt YD Pl IGT G &

securities
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SRRl | figw 3447841 Hew . [24 99 The Company had
efer ST g % 3576.50 accumulated losses over
arcf 3 s cred several years, resulting in a
T (e ) T - negative net worth until the
% 901.91 . .
-y last financial year. Due to
Unsecured: | Hindustan 4478.41 | Principal : | 24 years this financial position, the
Loan from | Salts lakhs | ¥3576.50 Company could not repay
related Limited lakhs the loan principal; however,
party (Holding Interest : interest payments were
Company) %901.91 made on time.
lakhs

With the net worth now
turned positive, the
Company is taking
necessary steps to further
improve profitability and
intends to repay the
outstanding loan and
interest amounts in a
phased manner.

Tt fareamont & At et 31 1 faa=oT o1 et 3 T 2 |

disclosed in Note No 31 to the financial statements

Xiii B UG &1 T8 AHHRT iR FIETR0T & AFAR, HUT = oIKdT TRIem
e o wrc e @l Mg T8 @l €, St fob ot srfarfam,
2013 & gRT 177 & d&d oigl Ui AR &t TRe1 & day §
3MMATH | oRaT qRIe AT Y dad DI regerar reue W& ey
QeI GRT &l STl 8, ST ut srferfd, 2013 & gRT 177 &
Taei & AgHT el ¢l Fafed vali & AL dut b FH -
St AfAFRM, 2013 & gRT 188 & IIHY &, STal f AR &,

Xiii According to information and explanations provided to us,
the company has not appointed Independent Director in the
Audit Committee as required under section 177 of
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Composition of Audit
Committee. The audit committee meeting is chair by CMD
which is not as per provision of section of 177 of Companies
Act, 2013. All transactions of the Company with related
parties are in compliance to Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, wherever applicable the details have been

SR 2023 | A1.A1fA. & IS
¥ Tads Feue & Fgfe T
e & ol ot T 3 g &
2| UfhIRTa Saegararall e O
P & foru, Fged e gRT
Taas el & faAT & o
GRYeTT |AfHfeT T oA fopa T e,
SRIp ereger oregel wd yey
29 | Ug v a9 db
SN W 59 de geaHe
AT 39D ¥dasl fHQeren!

& FRIfRR T2 <l

Independent Directors have
not been appointed to the
Board of SSL since January
2023 and continue to remain
unappointed as of date. In
order to fulfil procedural
requirements, the Audit
Committee was constituted
by the Board without
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Independent Directors,
with the CMD serving as
Chairman. This
arrangement will continue
until the Administrative
Ministry appoints the
required Independent
Directors.

xiv

T W S TS SR 3T TaeieRur o SRR, U H AR eRaTaRier
TUTTer! HISIG €, Ifh T8 Sh aRIRI b JTPR IR TPl b 3T
el 21 DU H 3TN IRITIRIET TUlTet! Bl Ueer R ggq by ST
b TG ¢ |

dl. ROl 3rafer b fory Siiep eraierenl Bt Rutefl wR =R fbar
YT

Xiv

a. According to the information and explanations given to us,
there is internal audit system in the Company but not
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
Internal Audit system in the company required strengthens

by the management.
b. The Reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under

audit were considered.

R (®) 3R (W) #1 FWR:-
e §, HU A AR o
e R o foru S afeprsce
Al B FRIfR & &1 g,
T & IHR IR Uil Bl
T | G gY, U BTey it
Ty & SR AR oiaT glter
& PRl 6 adtar ol @ik
I armaeaes &, O IAH e
ot |

Reply of Para (a) & (b):-
Currently, the Company
has appointed Chartered
Accountant firms to carry
out internal audits.
However, considering the
size and nature of the
business, the Company will
review and, if necessary,
revise the scope of work of
the internal auditors during
the current financial year.
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Basis of Qualified opinion - Annexure-B

AGTURIET 3raeiiehd / Audit Observation

UG BT STa1e /
Management Reply

)

a)

IR TS ACEDHR FIH gRT IRt facfl RaféTr w enale
ferfier FRIFOT &1 SIaTaRian W ARG Al & IgRIR, B! B IR
foaft RAIET W a7iaRes FRIA0 o fofy g @mae Arsd 7@l ¢, foaH
ST Jeia1, o ufha aiiR afaRTer ¢ & wrer—wrer Sged,
gfera iR I S8 G a1 favor onfiret &l

. The Company has no comprehensive model for internal
control over financial reporting incorporating risk
assessment, control process and gap tracking along with the
description of objective, process and risk associated thereof,
as per the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

S 3[gcIH P U 2 AT
IR fora T & qer aref o aef
& SR AAAS PRATE LS IR
AT

The observation has been
noted for compliance and
necessary action to be
initiated during the current
financial year.

) Uy, SO UG SUeRYT, el 3iR gt Raifé & forg Hfifore weams
fehaT Ifre el 1

b). Physical verification procedure for property, plant &

equipment, inventories and its reporting is not proper.

Hut gRT focfta o & SR
ariaies aferfcr & ATedy | §F IR
ofufl @1 wdifos JwmE
far wm for off, uRgufy
AT HchaT Pl 3R Fgg
& forg arey forflr af & emasgs
TfShaRTd GER N, oy S|

The Company carried out
physical verification of
assets twice during the
financial year through an
Internal Committee.
Nevertheless, necessary
procedural enhancements
will be implemented in the
current financial year to
further strengthen the asset
verification process.

) Uy, T UG SUGRT 3R YSiiTa drf -1 (Sriveret iR uet arft

Afed) & arfedea, gofar, Jedie IR 3Mded R Hut &l TdRe®
forttar fra=or gurett vt &1 | PRf T8 R @ 81 dut & O
Fufl, HIF T USR] 1R Gid Bri-Wf R (Hesegngdt) &

Jaft dHut gofiTd e -y
(FHesegansdt) & srfveral @t
WREE R G g, o ot
deiep oiaT Wied & GIa &
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WIRETG IR Teh IJuYch 3MARD FI0T Yullet Tal 2t 389 e,
T & YofTahvor 31R Gofianeur & ol UR 3fiaRas fFizor vomeft gafg
SR, Heeeg e, Jeder iR &g # Agcayuf Tord faeRor &
e 2|

c). The Company's internal financial control system over

existence, completeness, valuation and allocation of
Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work- in
progress (including materials lying at site) is not operating
effectively. The company did not have an appropriate
internal control system over maintenance of Property, Plant
and Equipment and Capital work-in progress (CWIP).
Further, internal control system over capitalization of
value, manner of capitalization is not adequate. This
material weakness could potentially result in material
misstatements in company’s Property, Plant and
Equipment, CWIP, depreciation and expenses.

AR Hlgeegangdl | Heferd
B 3 iR AR &
foga el Y e &
ST 3R I @1y, et af &
SR ST RIT ST

Although the Company is
maintaining records of
Capital Work-in-Progress
(CWIP), detailed records of
work orders and schemes
related to CWIP, as
suggested by the Statutory
Auditor, will be reviewed &
maintained during the
current financial year.

ffaer qeutem1, Ffagr uftwa, ara—eme fasdwor, ffigr ame &
3N, TRIG TfohaT dht gafedT iR wraefierar, den wiig § efea
=Y fafrs gl & e § Ut &Y 3TiaRes =0T gormett Tt &
A Brf T8 IR @ 21 T B, AGTIRIET UfehAT B SR TE YR TR @
o5 FrfaeT ufoha &1 aTer daeit &t fifer & TR T8l fomar T &1

. Internal Control System of the company with regards to

Tender Evaluation, Tender Processing, Cost-Benefit
Analysis, Estimation of Tendering Cost, Adequacy &
Effectiveness of Procurement Process, and various other
matters related to Procurement is not operating effectively.
Also, during the audit process it has been observed that
tender procedure has not been followed as per Company
Policy.

Jg garm w1 8 fF weig 3k
Y IMdcH § defera at
gfspamenl @1 du b @RI
fmEel-2023 & AR
PSS I Ui o STaT &1 39
Javg, @Rl gRT P
BIcI-A1dT Ufhara @it 6t
TgAM & g 81 39 QI B
e fpar mr g &R frferfad
JIRIHD HGH I ST &:

o FNRIT Wieididd IR D
HaTer ufeharat (TFendY)
& PR 3R PrRIfFRA &
qred | YUl | XgTER

T IgA™ Dl ST |

o oft Aeifera il @1 doet
& TRIg FREE-2023
B Belg | I PR P

e e o fafRa
gfepamatt | fpedt oft famrer
H TfRar 9 forRm Sem
3R IRIT PRATE Y AT |
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o I & AR JURHD
EARCIE | IC R AT
BRI Bl GEAT B
& folY -7 OR FHler
I STt

It is stated that all

procedures related to

purchases and contract
awards are strictly followed
in accordance with the

Company’s “Purchase

Manual-2023.” Despite the

same, some minor

procedural lapses have been
identified by the Audit.

These lapses are noted and

following corrective steps

are to be taken:

* Identification of gaps in
the system will be
addressed through the
development and
implementation of
revised protocols and
standard operating
procedures (SOPs).

e Allconcerned personnel
to be instructed to
strictly adhere to the
Company’s Purchase
Manual-2023. Any
deviation from the
prescribed procedures
will be treated seriously
and escalated
appropriately.

* Periodic reviews will be
conducted to ensure the
effective implementation
of corrective actions in
accordance with the

policy.

%
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) DUl & U fafe ST SR QeI & foTg efter uar 3 ei <1f3r b

gt UTH R =g SUIRh A0 YUTTef! a1 3T1d 81 AP 1T, o
amaftre 9 wfer @1 gitawon & A1y e T8 axat g, Rrid
gRumTRaRY facfia favon o Agcaqel Terd faavor & wawdr g 8iiR
ergTerdt At TR 8wt & Rrap aRvmeesy i 1y &
et ¢ |

The Company lacks an appropriate control system for
obtaining third party balance confirmations for various
advances & liabilities. Further, the company does not
reconcile the periodic balances with the confirmations,
which could potentially result in material misstatement of
the financial statements & may lead to fraudulent activity
resulting in financial losses.

GO 3raf & g, |t
gel} oY THT—THI TR A AF Pl
g & o 9 Y, R A 8 |
gft e g a1, fcfig af A,
arferepier gali & A9 AT H g &
UF UTH B P TR Ol by
ST

During the audit period,
balance confirmation letters
were periodically sent to all
parties, with confirmations
received from some. In the
current financial year,
efforts will be intensified to
obtain balance confirmation
letters from the majority of
the parties.

) o af 2024-25 & forv Tad oiar oiersd df R & a7 I

IRTTH & SMYR H Ifd Al & Y § Hu=T Bl ARG =0T
Tt & Faford T8l 81 @ 8

f). The Company’s internal control with regard to matters

described in the Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph to
the Independent Auditor’s Report for the F.Y. 2024-25 is not
operating effectively.

JrguTe gq Ale fohar T qen
TTe], focfta af & SR emaT®
PHRATS TRH PR G T8 B

Noted for compliance, and
necessary actions have been
initiated during the current
financial year.
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y,
7
FAH T g H RUIE iR SOR- SeAudH -
T I & YR H Aeffa
Reply on Independent Auditor report- Annexure-D
Referred to in “Basis of Qualified opinion”
%.4. 3@ed+/Observation T BT 19/
Sr. No. Management Reply

02. | &t 7 Afhet Farst gRT THTONT Jod & MUR WR | &g &I a1, 3R a1e], facfia af 2025-26 4
3T Ul T GoTh_ul fhdT g1 Ul Ioa, | 39D BIRaTg Yo i S|
T 3R Yufie < ot S Repts 7 v <t ¢
3R gaifery S uRifies Replé SR feaRor o
3UTT H, §H DU bl HURT, I 3R Iu,

HieeegaEtt, Toaer 3R o1 W & U1 &

ERICLISEECRER R

The company has capitalized the fixed | Noted, and necessary action will be
assets basis on value certified by Circle | initiated in the current financial year 2025-
Incharge. The company is not maintaining | 26.

proper records of revenue nature

expenditure and capital expenditure and

therefore in absence of proper relevant

records and details we are unable to

ascertain the impact of the same on

Property, Plant and Equipment, CWIP,

Depreciation and Profit of the company.

04. | Ul GEATTT P PHATRAT & I294.72 ARG P | byt =¥ o anrde dht 3ot =fifey o amerT fobarr
Y Pl PHUHT Dl oGl YRl H 100% 3Tl | 21 Uget, TeH PrIferdy & g 75:25 & gurd §
feparr 81 34 S pHeTRAl T A ot AT & S | A, Bl ardfed by o O 3, b A
frers o0 31 1.7 fet. b foTq B T PR R €, S | pHATRAl Y SrerT-3terT 9 o & &k I
Rl M S[@YRIT & [uRid g1 Sd | dd9 @1 ot gediaeer wx fear g1 gl a8
Repts /fraxor & armg o, g9 fRcfia Raxoll w | oRad= amg 2 g 2 o sqe o1 Fecagyf
5% U W Roqeht v # el E1 et | Rl e R S 1
TR 3 HATRAN & I BT AALA. A | oo aperman, 24-02-2023 1 SERKT 29840
et 7 qerfar &, A T Haiar & daid IS d5% H UIRT YR & AR e Heel
il T e figrar e fofics B T | ey gy uRee ot amifee o R T
QRIep] H 3T TIT €, ST U0 - 15 o 3R] T8l ¢
The company has allocated 100% expenses | The Company has revised its policy for the
of head office staff in the books of accounts | allocation of expenses. Previously,
of the company of I 294.72 Lakhs. It | Corporate Office expenses were allocated
includes the salary of staff who are not | toSSL ona75:25 ratio. Now, the Company
exclusively working for SSL which is in
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contrary to matching concept of
accounting. In absence of proper
record /details, we are unable to comment
on the impact thereof on the financial
statements. The company has allocated the
staff salary of head office in books of
accounts of the SSL but terminal benefits of
such staff is account for in books of
accounts of the Hindustan Salts Limited
whichisnotinaccordance with AS-15.

has segregated the staff, along with
transferring the corresponding staff
salaries. Although this change has been
implemented and no significant financial
impact has been observed.

Further, this change has been approved by
the Board of Directors as per the resolution
passed in the 298th Board meeting held on
24-02-2023.

06.

&Y JTUHT &I IRt AT T Urgde farfies
B IR BIKT & foTv T 1T ¥95.00 g &
AT Dl AR MBI A €, S el o auf 4
CWIP ¢fives & aica faxaman 11 g1 81 &hueit gRT
SUeTeY PRI TV fIeR0T 3R Tfeial & SR,
I aa= it wal o IR W G R . gl
T UBR, IR-Td a9 D 39 AT dF I-
TGP fRGTIT I & 3R Iergst or off St i
TP IST-TQTHR fRGRIT TIT B

We draw your kind attention to payment of
% 95.00 Lakhs made to M/s Sanbros Spares
Pvt Ltd towards canvas roofing and the
same is showing under head CWIP since
few years. As per details and records
provided by the company expenses
incurred for roof repair of various
buildings. To this effect profit before tax is
overstated to that extent and CWIP is
overstated to that extent.

Ferd tTsel IdHT H FohaT faymT & U1 &, o
orgio gfopanell & IR arel focit af o
AR FHITST T S|

The concerned file is currently with the
Vigilance Department, and the necessary
adjustments will be made in the current
financial year in accordance with the
Accounting Procedures.

07.

|1.91.fo1. B fRu MU BUT R AT

1. AL ogHied °g &l 301.12 &
MR, Ig AN fowa am o & S oft
qarfa. @& faa geu ABRIHS BN,
qranfe. e ar §r fohedl § Serne @
Hfgd TS BT YRT A Il h, clfche
HUH T 2021-2022 | oGl YDl H
GG T Afgd 3R G-I W Tl &l
g Tl b g1 Sfua Rers /faeror &

faxttar af 2025-26 & SR MEIH TfAFAT 37K
UIae fhe e, Fifes Ar.Anfer. o1 Fae o
fog g€ 2024 -25 W PRIHD 31 R 2|

faxflg af 2023-24 d&, Bl &1 ol Hed
SRUTCHSD 21T | gTeles, ot af 2024-25 # faer
I AHRIHS &l 7, WY, Al BI 3 &
e & foTq a1E & Awer TR foparm S|
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e H, g9 fadfiT faemon R g9 goa wR
feoquft ey o aRaHef §1

1. Intereston LoantoHSL

As Per Board Approval Item No.
301.12 it was approved that whenever
SSL’s net worth will become positive,
HSL will recover the all-short payment
of interest along with penal interest in
one or two instalments, but the
company has not provided the
provision of interest from differential
rates along with penal interest in books
of accounts w.e.f. 2021-2022. In
absence of proper record/details, we
are unable to comment on the impact
thereof on the financial statements.

The necessary entries and provisions will
be made during the financial year 2025-26,
as SSL’s net worth turned positive from the
financial year 2024-25.

Till the financial year 2023-24, the
Company’s net worth was negative.
However, the net worth turned positive in
the financial year 2024-25, therefore, the
matter will be submitted to the Board for
further direction.

2. DU b U gRT UATS TS fAfder wfdhar
& 3MYenT T fIfere foehar /aall @t srfua
o uga & for ffdre ffderant & srgfer
SfTEe Bl AR ATHRT BT ATEd &1 BTeAffep,
HU P T GRT 3 UfhaT H DI JUR 2T
e T |

2. Tendering procedure followed by the
management of the company
We would like to draw your kind attention
on inappropriate allotment of various
tenders to give unreasonable advantage to
specific vendor/parties. However, no
refinement in the same procedure was
done by the management of the company.
gps H fafte e Scure aEl H U
SR TR Pt q1e S Al 3 forg R
199.71 <RI & B AT P FATeie H et
Deficiency in allotment of Work Order
of ¥ 199.71 Lakhs for Construction of
new RCC surface well Brine in various
salt production areas at SSL unit.

ek (i)(7) 9 (i) (4T) & SRS DR -

1. 300dt Ardnfar. FRus Hea (9g A
300.23) ¥, foxfr af 2023-24 & forg
2.75 ARG HIf¢H T ATIRU THSD BT IcaTGH
ey g Ra fopam /m 2|

The replies to paragraphs (i)(a) to (i) (c) are
as follows:

1. Inthe300thSSL Board Meeting (item
no. 300.23), a production target of 2.75
lakh Mt of comon salt was set for the
financial year 2023-24

2. TH®H IUIeH & oAU 3Mags gcdh, q1g D
3MILTD IuTeerdl FATRT B 2, 50 Fall
& fomfor &t JromT 991 718 oft

2. To ensure the required availability of
brine, which is the fundamental
component for salt production, the
construction of 50 wells was planned.

3. il @ FEfvr te sraftie dgere, aRuRS
IR 9T &9 areit ufehar g1 IRUmR<ERY,

e ufthar & A1esm A Th g okt &
qegd | BH 99T AT & fidR 3masds

%
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(Q) U A O gice W i TRy fohg o ot
BT ST A TTH U 1 <Y MR SR OR uTfeat
@1 faft Ahall o Adgr Pl & g wrf
YT UeH fopar g, S ot oy ifd 2023
¥ fIog 8, S/afd dut Hif & 3R, 35
ARG 21f¥res & Hrf e Weft Aifder ufthar
P 1egq | S foby STH =mfv |

(@) The company has awarded work order
for surface wells in different circles to
the parties on the basis rate of L1
received from Om Prakash Jat without
floating tender on Gem Portal which is
against the Company Purchase Policy
2023 whereas as per Company Policy,
work order more than ¥ 5 Lakhs to be
awarded through open tender
processing.

(&) ot GRT eI AT B gRT fohy e &
T R aMed § feanl TR AdEl gu
Rifor ¥q Pt e &Y & vga, o Y Rt
THIOT O UTH A8l AT 3R 3y qepeiteh!
ey ft R 8T Y | Ut & B fFamTaett
&1 Iguter fopg o1 & arf ereyr smafed
Bl DI FAfdgr AT o1 Igua fhar T
ST GRT ShGRI b Y&l H U i AT b
S R B, 2 it Ry e Y, hrger oY
URT R G &1 AT T |

(b) The company has awarded such work
order without fulfilling the technical
criteria. Before awarding the work
order for construction of RCC surface
well, the company has not obtained
experience certificate of the any
awarder to whom work has been
allotted and other technical
qualification also not fulfil and work
order has been allotted without
making compliance of company’s

<A1 H 3l T 0T GRT BT HH T |
The construction of wells is a highly
manual, conventional, and time-
consuming process. Consequently, it
was not feasible to complete the
required number of wells through a
single agency via the tender process
within a short timeframe.

Iugth PRPI DI LM H G BY, DU b
Yo 7 HUT & fod F 3T waram fofa
foram| eremrer wd vey Qe A Qs ged
1 01.06.2012 & RN 288 d5d |
rgAIfeT arfeRdl & FRfdhd Ui & od
Fer T (1) (1) 3R %Y T  (2) &
TR 9T aTfehat &t v fopar, Tt s
e, 2023 F AT 1.0H TS 1.5
TR SR SR R 50 3t o fmfor &t
JTFART et

Considering the factors mentioned
above, the Company’s management
exercised its best judgment in the
interest of the Company. The CMD
exercised his powers in accordance
with Sr. No. A (II) (1) and Sr. No. F (2)
of the consolidated Delegation of
Powers approved by the Board of
Directors in its 288th meeting held on
01.06.2012, thereby permitting the
construction of 50 wells at the notified
rate as per clause 1.5 of Chapter 1.0 of
the Purchase Manual, 2023.

SR U & YRUMIRawY, du=1 = fq9rdH
Hgd gRT 2023-24 & forg fefRa 2.75
g Hifed o S IUIGH A& Pl UR IR

foram, 3iik 3.25 oIg Hifee e @1 UfeeRie
39 TG UTH |

glelfeh, TTIRIeeD GRT So1Y Y figatl e
sy & He & forv Aie fhar STar 21
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Purchase Manual and violated the
tendering policy of the company. The
Management process the file without
checking whether parties are fulfilling
technical criteria or not by the
violation of Company policy in favour
of contractors.

B A O UideT & qIEIT H T 21.71 ARG
&1 T AT 2, IfhT 39 MR W 9F
add & AreTm J fAfdg SR fey fee
¥178.00 TG &1 B Mafed ax feam T
2, S ot it o Aify & 3oy A ¢ @ik
i & foge Feere deat gRT g ot
T2l

BT GRT Y SR H Sy fhar w1 g b
o AT % IRT 1.5 & TR, Nedel U va e
g @ Ay & B off @ @& e
PR BT ATPR | TS 1.5 THUPR 81—

o / Jgae ufcha frawTaet & e H faem
Qs BNT| SRATERY Al H, HHA-GR-
e YR W e Ud U§e Qs &
fIfere STgHIGT |, ATl A ATl & SMER R,
&St PIRUI H et bt SFgAfT < ST |eet! g
fraet &1 o1 Hbls U@ & J1edqq |
31eTe] Ud UEe Q9T Y & ST

W We H Ig T HU A I b 1 2 b
wa/gey ufhar famEe & ey |
fareret gty @I SiR e & PRl @
FA-T-Hd AMYR R HAwHer & Al
IgAleT & w1 Repie fomar S o 2,
lfdT O AMEl § A O A & gie
TIRI GRT SRO B A1 e &Y gamr &
TS ® QIR T & oreue wd ey e gRT
fomre @1 AR & TS ¢ 3R PUHT bl B
T 3R & BT ST PR g AT PR
! foiTa Jeam & Aha g

5. As aresult of the above measures, the
Company exceeded the production
target of 2.75 lakh MT of salt set by the
Board of Directors for 2023-24,
achieving a historic high production of
3.25lakh MT.

However, the points raised by the Auditor
are noted for future reference.
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© The Company has awarded contract
through Gem portal of . 21.71 Lakhs
but on the basis of this .178.00 Lakhs
of work has been allotted without
floating tender through Gem Portal
which is not as per Company Purchase
Policy and deviation from Policy is
also not approved by Boord of
Directors.

In reply of Company, it has mentioned
that as per purchase policy para 1.5,
CMD has power to violate the any
clause of the policy. The Clause 1.5is as
under:-

Deviation with respect to the
Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual
shall be rare. In exceptional cases,
deviation may be permitted for
recorded reasons with the specific
approval of CMD on case-to-case
basis. The deviation shall be reported
to CMD through Unit heads.

In such clause it is clearly mentioned
that deviation with respect to the
Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual
shall be rare and deviation may be
records reasons with the specific
approval of CMD on case-to-case
basis but in such cases neither
deviation has been reported by the
unit head of SSL along with reasons
nor deviation has been approved by
the CMD and work has been allotted
to awarder ignoring purchase policy
and interest of the company which
may cause financial loses to

company.

(i) 9 Tz &= ¥ 717 O & fRmfor afik smaegs | 871 (T), (F), () &R (3) &1 W T TPR 8. -
g o & e & _
aimmﬁgTa;mﬁET 20993t 1. 3004} Ar.41.fa1. e Heat S (Hg A

300.23) # forflg af 2023-24 & fog
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(ii) Deficiency in allotment of Work

(©)

Order of % 269.93 Lakhs for
construction of new pans & required
infrastructure development in main
line area.

HUHT 7T B AT &3 H Y U9 & o7 iR
3MaeTed YA e & e & forg Hrd
3T 3feqed 2MfES W 3 UTH Ut 1T R b
YR R U b a7 S U=t ERie Hifa
2023 & G g, SEfh dur i &
3R % 5.00 RI ¥ 3 P P Gatt
fyfereT wfopar o e 3 Sy S =nfey)

The Company awarded work order for
Construction of new pans & required
infrastructure development in main
line area to the parties on the basis rate
of L1 received from Abdul Shahid
Khan without floating tender on CPP
Portal which is against the Company
Purchase Policy 2023 whereas as per
Company Policy work more than %
5.00 Lakhs to be awarded through
open tender processing.

(&) du T JHIhT AFEST B R By AT &

QT R QT & QU1 # &g &5 H U 9
foefor 3iR eraeges i gra & fawrT &
o0 BRf 3Ny UM &R I Ugel, HuHl gRT
T ft SPER B HRf amafed o 2, IaT
ST THTOT O3 HTH e Rt 7RI & iR o
cepieht ATy off G A T o )
& Y HgeTel o1 rguTer by AT & e
3T AT R T T 8| Te 7 I S
RE! € a1 eI, BRI & &l H DUl el B
SeeTer ehRch IS el Hiehall H of foran |

The company has awarded such work
order without fulfilling the technical
criteria. Before awarding the work
order for Construction of new pans &
required infrastructure development

2.75 g HIf¢d e ATHRUT THE Dl IcuTgd
& fAgfiRd fova wam 2|

Reply of Para (a), (b), (d) & (e) as follows:-

1.

In the 300th SSL Board Meeting (item
no. 300.23), a production target of 2.75
lakh MT of common salt was set for the
financial year 2023-24.

g o & I & fog a1 &Y At &
3T, TS TG & folg 1,750 TY U &
foIfor &1 AT IR i TS off|

In line with the Board’s approval for
infrastructure development, a plan
was formulated for the creation of
1,750 new pans for salt production.

deIaR, 1,750 ¢ 49 & fmfor & forg
06/04 /2023 I T MfIgT STRY I 78 oft|
3R Pg UHAT AFGEl P PRI, Dl HLH
amgfcfenat & fen, Rraes aRumesd
fIgT 3 Thet & |

Accordingly, a tender was floated on
06/04/2023 for the construction of
1,750 new pans. However, due to the
large scope, high value of work,
complexity, and stringent eligibility
criteria, no capable supplier was
found, resulting in the tender being
unsuccessful.

g9 Jifafh, 9 @1 FHfr e srcafiin
UfehaT g1 g9feTy, fopedt Tep Toivit o ATeTs |
AT ufthar & qreaq I ey FEIEf §
3T T § U 1 fFmfor ORT1 vt e

SR

%
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in main line area and the company has
not obtained experience certificate of
the any awarder to whom work has
been allotted and other technical
qualification also not fulfil and work
order has been allotted without
making compliance of company’s
Purchase Manual. The Management
process the file without checking
whether parties are fulfilling technical
criteria or not by the violation of
Company policy in favor of
contractors.

(&) fdeT SRSl & AR SheR B HRf

()

JMAfed T A Uge! 9 AR AT Jffarf
o, olfe Ul gRT Ffdar gwaEs o
Sfgfad 59 Ws @1 3rgurer by 9T Hrf
3frafed @ foam

As per tender documents it was
mandatory for the contractor to take
Labour License before allotting the
work to Contractor but Company has
allotted the work without making
compliance of such clause mentioned
in tender documents.

() FfIeT SFaast & AR 3T HUAT ol U4

TP IUTG & foly SUIh U AT g ar
3= U b Il & H Y U faepfia
PR @ folU =IIaH A &) A BT, S b
g AT & AR U e Jed dHi AT
b & AR &, oAfebT ol GRT Tae o g
TTepriteht AT O fera feby T ehar =fifer e
IgE PR g U Bl arrfed @R foam
gl

As per Tender Document qualified
lowest rate will be applicable for
developing new PAN in other
company production area if company
found deemed fit for PAN salt
production which is only applicable to

Additionally, the construction of pans
is a highly manual, conventional,
unstructured, and time-consuming
process. Therefore, it was not feasible
to complete the required number of
pans through a single agency via the
tender process within a short
timeframe.

Sudth qHt vggell W feeR PR gu, Pyt
geeE q ot & fgq § AT warad g
foran| sregsr wa uey g 7 Feerd ded
&1 01.06.2012 BT IR 288df da o
rgHIfed aTfhall & ARfehd T & oH
T (1) (1) ok o9 v wh (2) &
ST 9=t eTfeRait & T fapat 3R 50 =Y
U9 3R FEfdT oraRiReT & e & forg
fifaer @1 g <1 ' 39 faRw od &
ref o o e =pAaH R U 6 3
&t B Y 89 % ot o forg ar arft, afy
HUH 3 TP ST P T SUGRh T |

Considering all the aspects mentioned
above, the Company’s management
exercised its best judgment in the
interest of the Company. The CMD
exercised his powers in accordance
with Sr. No. A (II) (1) and Sr. No. F (2)
of the consolidated Delegation of
Powers approved by the Board of
Directors in its 288th meeting held on
01.06.2012, and permitted the tender
for the development of 50 new pans
and related infrastructure. This was
subject to the specific condition that
the “qualified lowest rate” will be
applicable for developing new pans in
other company areas, should the
Company deem it fit for salt
production.
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the extent of eligible contract value as
per purchase policy but the
Management of the Company has
misused such clause and allotted the
PAN work in violation of Purchase
Policy without considering technical
qualification of the contractor.

(%) B gRT Y Uicet & q1eqq | 19.28 g

1 ST T TRIT <ifeT g¥7eh JATER UR it
uidel & Hegm A Ffaer SR ey fee
¥250.65 oI &1 i 3rrdfed H foam i,
S b B g A 35 SRR T SR AT
3 fomrem P dedt g off ergHifed =l
gl

The Company has awarded contract
through Gem portal of X. 19.28 Lakhs
but on the basis of this ¥ 250.65 Lakhs of
work has been allotted without
floating tender through CPP Portal
which is not as per Company Purchase
Policy and deviation from Policy is also
notapproved by Board of Directors.

HUHT T U IR H S B & b s ify
& T 1.5 P AR, AQHS! T AfT b febeft
ot XG5 BT forder = &1 ARBR &1 @S 1.5
S UBR &

o/ Jgae Ufehan fraHTaet & Hag | fages
qets BNTI| SRATIRYT HHell H, HHA-GR-
e YR GR 31eTe] U9 Tee 591 &
fafere argAeT | &S BRUN A fameT &t
argHfer &t ST Hael! 81 farmrem Y gae g
TG & HIEIH | 3TEIE G Te e Fgud Pl
QST

3 WS U Ig T ©U A g9 fFar g fb
wa/gay ufkbar Rammaet & way A
farrer gefw g1 3R f=re & SR A
PNT-T-H MR UR 37e8T Ud yge fFAgerd
& fafdre sHica & Wiy Rais fan o
Fhar g, AfpT W ga g Farar.an.for. &

6. TGIER, 99 1,150 WAl & fadRT &1 Hrf

fAfaer & vTe I =IAaH ¥ WR |9 & fog,
3R fUweft wom @1 gre @Rd gy, bul J
D TR T 3R gegd ShaRl A S
oraf IR 3iR I =Aaw R 3reifd RRIfod
R R 8 fmfor orf o7 & forg amaeH
A fhu

Accordingly, to assign the
development of the remaining 1,150
pans at the '"qualified lowest rate"
received from the tender, and
following past practice, the Company
issued wide publicity and invited
applications from willing contractors
to execute the pan construction work
under the same conditions and at the
"qualified lowest rate," i.e., the notified
rate.

o9 foofor vep srcafiie A 3R gRuR®
nffafer g S v siffel gRT ft el 21
gaTe fAfagT geaia Aff 3 smaga!, R
q ITfpIeT THG IUIGH H Rl TAT @fh
o, & fUSet 34T 3R &l & YR TR T+t
JTAGH! T TTe Hedidh foha |

Pan construction is a highly manual
and conventional activity carried out
by local labor. The Unit Tender
Evaluation Committee thoroughly
evaluated all applications based on
past experience and the capability of
the applicants, most of whom were
local individuals involved in salt
production.

oRUTRaRY, WeM et | fafted
3FFHIGT UTH &R, Id UGH T Tef R g4
3R P faHEett, 2023 & AL 1.0 F
GE 1.5 % TR ARRIAd R W, 50 4T &
a1 5 @ aneer STRY fhy

& A 68 X




)

Ific U@ gRT RO & /1Y e 6

o &) S B 3R A &) Hiewst gy e a1
ToRt &t 7S g 3k Byt it s Aify 3k iR
& I FRA Y REPR 7 a1 B BT
A 8l Al g

In reply of Company, it has mentioned
that as per purchase policy para 1.5,
CMD has power to violate the any
clause of the policy. The Clause 1.5is as
under-

Deviation with respect to the
Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual
shall be rare. In exceptional cases,
deviation may be permitted for
recorded reasons with the specific
approval of CMD on case-to-case basis.
The deviation shall be reported to
CMD through Unit heads.

In such clause it is clearly mentioned
that deviation with respect to the
Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual
shall be rare and deviation may be
records reasons with the specific
approval of CMD on -case-to-case
basis but in such cases neither
deviation has been reported by the
unit head of SSL along with reasons
nor deviation has been approved by
the CMD and work has been allotted
to awarder ignoring purchase policy
and interest of the company which
may cause financial loses to company.

8. Consequently, work orders were
issued in batches of 50 pans with due
approval from the Competent
Authority, following past practice and
at the notified rate as per clause 1.5 of
Chapter 1.0 of the Purchase Manual,
2023.

9. SWRIth U &P TRUMHARGRAY, o = e
Hgal gRT 2023-24 & forw fafRa 2.75
Rg Hifed e 9 IUIGH &d Bl IR R

foram 3R 3.25 oTRg Hifeep e @1 Ve
I Iq1e UTH |

9. As aresult of the above measures, the
Company exceeded the salt
production target of 2.75 lakh MT set
by the Board of Directors for 2023-24,
achieving a historic high production of
3.25lakh MT.

AT () T IR

o =7 PRf & forg AT SHearfh 20 ¥ @ off,
ATV T TSI UTH T & i Mgl el 2t

Reply to Para(c)

Since the manpower engaged for this work
was below 20, there was no requirement to
obtain a Labour License.

(iii) 99 TS &5 H T SeUTEH o B ST B
e ¥ Ffe | (st Aty qrorsiferar)

(iii) Deficiency in allotment of Work
Order for Production of Salt in main
line area. (Mr. Manish Bajdolia)

(7) o iR Aot deeare™ ot gRT i 849
Tqh AT BT BRI A dR AT e d o™
Hut & T W st Ty qeEifern @t

ey & AeTd | uRga fhar mn oiR W
MBRT gRT faftrad srgmifea foram T a9,
U 3fTee dHusT & Afcrt iR memet & AR &
fepam |

As per the Company’s policy, the proposal
was submitted through the Screening
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2023 & ATHY TEI 8l TEET GRT AFAGT
ot &t Hifer & g T 81 PR QY b
TR, UG P hael I SHGR GRT
fepaT ST e & R 8 o Fmfor fopa @,
<Ifep ST GRT S 21l T e el fopan
T

Production of salt in PAN constructed
by M/s Veer Teja Construction
Company has been allotted to Mr.
Manish Bajdolia on the instruction of
M/s Veer Teja Construction Company
which is not as per Company’s
Purchase Policy 2023. The approval by
the Management is not as per
Company Policy. As per work order
production work can done only by
contractor who has constructed PAN
but such terms have not been complied
by the company.

). #d IR AT B¥eFIE BT F e T

6 PR &b 91 & PR 98 THG IUIGH BT
PR TN goTSer™IT B EdiaNd PRl
aTE 8| Fefera draRar 7 off Aeefe ega
&1 b feh S e foneft aik Y exariaiRa
eI fopaT ST HebelT, @ifepT bR b 15T T @
U, 5] AR IS ehegiarel Uit cb I R
TP IUGT BT PRI FAIY STl Bl
Jrrafed a1 IRrd g IR I8 aranfa &
& UTTOIRY GRT SFFAIG & | I FIE B0 |
YT Sl PN—dIT PT HHAT gl US&T TRT
3THIGH P & oG PR—T AT BT B B

. M/s Veer Teja Construction Company

made application that due to tax
burden he wants to transfer the work
of production of salt to Manish
Bajdolia and concerning staff also
made note sheet that since the work
order can’t be shifted to others but
looking to burden of tax it is
appropriate to allot the work of

Committee at the Unit and duly approved
by the Competent Authority. Accordingly,
PAN allotment was carried out strictly in
accordance with the Company’s policies
and practices.

O dR ST e HuT Pl bt 8 IRy
T PRI AT AT T ; Ivg D IUTGH BT Pl DR
&I |far T o7 gafey, et off Brf ereer @
FAMTART B BT T & T8l ol

M/s Veer Teja Construction Company was
assigned only the work of pan
development; no salt production work was
entrusted to them. Therefore, there is no
question of shifting any work order.

) off SheR & S B MUR R HIS 3de
eI foparT T ; Sfeeh, ST IR UTH vall | 99T W
T 3fTdSH! b 3MUR TR 3fTde by V|

No allotment was made based on
instructions from any contractor; rather,
allotments were carried out based on
applications received from willing and
eligible parties in due course.

gIclfh, Ih OheR & AEHATRID fad 3ot
ST T & SR U HEeH gRT ST I
R ot R o a1 a8 el daer vEes gRT
TS A Y SATAGeD] b &l |IHa AT 3R 399 =
TIC! b THg P aTex febtt off uer py arfivet el
feparm T e

However, due to the commercial interest of
the said contractor being inadvertently
associated with salt production in the
specified pans, his opinion was also
considered by the Company’s
management during the allotment process.
This consultation was limited only to

%
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production of Salts to Manish Bajdolia
in place of M /s Veer Teja Construction
Company and it is approved by
Competent Authority at SSL .It is
clearly case of tax avoidance working
of the company. The approval by the
Management is tax avoidance practice
against the law.

applicants deemed eligible by the
management and did not include any
parties outside the pool of eligible
applicants.

(iv) 99 TS &7 H T SeUTEH &g B TS b
e H AR | (M aley)

(iv) Deficiency in allotment of Work
Order for Production of Salt in main
line area. (Ram SukhChoudhary)

Bt W9 deedsM duHr gy M 8 A
T IUGT BT HRf F sft I degdeE
HUT & Frcer oR sft I g et @l smafed
fepar rar 2, ST Uit <Y g ifer 2023 &
3FTEY el &1 VEEE GRT STgHIGT HuHT Y
AT & ey 98 B PR & IFNR,
UG DR dhael I SbgR GRT fobar ST
weodl ¢ R 89 @1 fmfor fpar &, s
U1 GIRT S 9! 2T UTel &1 fepdl T 2 |
Production of salt in PAN constructed
by M/s Ram Construction Company
has been allotted to Mr. Ram
SukhChoudhary on the instruction of
M/s Shree Ram Construction
Company which is not as per
Company’s Purchase Policy 2023. The
approval by the Management is not as
per Company Policy. The approval by
the Management is not as per
Company Policy. As per work order
production work can done only by
contractor who has constructed PAN
but such terms have not been complied
by the company.

R I Decde U 7 3 fhar
TR P 13T P PRI TG TP ST DT DPri i
R G G Pl ERAIANG BT AT Bl

T)

SO DY AT B AR, TR DTS bl ThIfAT
iy & AT A uRga fhar mar oiR wed
TIRIePRT gIRT fafereaa srgrtea foham | degaR,
U 3fTde duet &t Hifcral iR germen & R &
ERIERI

As per the Company’s policy, the proposal
was submitted through the Screening
Committee at the Unit and duly approved
by the Competent Authority. Accordingly,
PAN allotment was carried out strictly in
accordance with the Company’s policies
and practices.

B Y dReFe BUHT B had U BT B
BRI 9T T oAT; Se THD UG BT PIg PRf
T8I dfar T o) gafen, fodt off @rf aneer @t
CIFTIRT &R T U & 8] ST

M/s Ram Construction Company was
assigned only the work of pan
development; no salt production work was
entrusted to them. Therefore, there is no
question of shifting any work order.

S T, et off SoheR o e & JMIR W
PIS 3MMde =g fopar m ol /vt andeT sTgd
3iR T v&ll GRT FHT R IR 3TaGH| & IR
R U Y |

Furthermore, no allotment was made
based on instructions from any contractor.
All allotments were made based on
applications submitted by willing and
eligible parties in due course.
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yee 71 7 oft Acefic § 5 o= & A B
QA g, TP IUGT BT PR HFH M
HECFT BT b ¥ TR St I g Ares
arefed R I ¢ SR T ALALfA, b
&M TTfRRpRY gRT STgAlfe fopan T/ 21 I8
¥YE B 3 PU el PR A T BRIYUITEAT Bl
el 81 Ueed gRT 3gAIed & & faog
PR 3 TG I &

M/s Ram Construction Company
made application that due to tax
burden he wants to transfer the work of
production of salt to Mr. Ram
SukhChoudhary and Management
also made note sheet that looking to
burden of tax it is appropriate to allot
the work of production of Salts to Mr.
Ram SukhChoudhary in place of M/s
Ram Construction Company and it is
approved by Competent Authority at
SSL .It is clearly case of tax avoidance
working of the company. The approval
by the Management is tax avoidance
practice against the law.

Fifde 8 o 9 IeueT § 9= 8N & DR,
3T UfehaT & SR DUl b TEE GRT SHD!
R R Al fER fhar T g8 W daet gegd
3G g o aTeR fopedt off vef U AR e e

However, due to the commercial interest of
the said contractor being inadvertently
associated with salt production in the
specified pans, his opinion was also
considered by the Company’s
management during the allotment process.
This consultation was limited solely to
applicants deemed eligible by the
management and did not extend to any
parties outside the eligible applicant pool.

(v)

fAfder gwEs SR orgay &t et @
T g1 BT
Non compliances of terms and

condition of tender document and
contract.

ffIeT Al & SR, ShGR Bl HuT &
lepiel & SFAR YRG! ST faepfAe T
BT 3R u facfia aff & ofd H Raors &
forg ot @1 faatl &t ufcRit & A1 SdhgR
SRT fanRyc g ST T THTOT TR el
BT oifehT Faforfad amett & gaff ¥ 7 &
fa & ufer wega &t € @ik 7T & fdy 7w
I /3 FR BT fFaRor SiR 1AM i ufey
TR 1 8: -

ied RIS Ao WIgae

g gvaeet & gram e ok gaf &
TR, IS B & fApRT T THTOT TR fohg
S d® PTAE AP BT PIg TEg™ T8 gl
el & A & 915 g A ufohar et gl
SHUT gall ¥ e ager o foru |fhd B A Srgacit
HRarg ff R 2
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fafiee : 80.95 ARG
AR 3heN : 157.70 IRG

IH ST AER) : 7.89 oG

As per tender documents, Contractor
shall develop the infrastructure as per
approval of the company and submit
the proof of infrastructure developed
by the contractor along with copy of
bills to the company at the end of each
financial year for records but in
following cases parties has neither
submitted copy of bills not submitted
details of payment done / amount
incurred on the same along-with copy
of invoices: -

Kharagodha Salts Pvt Ltd : 80.95 Lacs
Mahadev Contractor : 157.70 Lacs
Ram Raj Choudhary : 7.89Lacs

SPER I ST A B A1 g FHN D
3TRIR, ¥180.96 ARG Pl AN H gi-ara
</ &1 IR BRf fodar 2023 I a1 397
Ugel ORT BT T, ST 3t e qRT A& g1 8
3R 3 TS IUTG | JHA 2l Faval 2
B BT TG BT P Bl BT eI TEI G
el 2 3R qHEiiar S9 &1 UreH |7 B &
q1g ) SPER BT YA P T 2

As per agreement with Contractor Ram
Raj Choudhary, development of India
of ¥ 180.96 Lakhs to be completed on or
before December 2023 which is still not
completed and it may cause of losses of
production of salt. The management of
the company is not looking after the
interest of the company and making
payment to contractor even after non -
compliance of MOU.

As per the payment terms and conditions of
the tender documents, there is no provision
to withhold payment until submission of
proof of infrastructure development.
However, the Company processes
payments only after verification of bills by
the Production and Civil Department
committee. The Company is also actively
following up to collect the bills from the
parties.

T FHHM gt 6l Suereddar AT e 3ik
TG A& UTH e &g JATS! @i & I
g, aFl uel & S et FEnfa W U@ oy
TEHfT & 81 3heR gRT faemfia gt ra &t
STeA iR AFRe vl g1 faftred deamos
foparr ST et &, 3R SrmasTed ufafar uger & oof
CaNIkecakd

Ty ffagr et § g e & e &
foTQ S o HTae Afferd 8l 8, T +ft cTea &
forog Tep Seute o @t & fofu e el Ry Hisg
gl

For the development of infrastructure to
ensure adequate brine availability and
achieve the production target, a common
understanding was reached between both
parties through mutual agreement. The
infrastructure developed by the contractor
has been duly verified by the Production
and Civil Departments, and the necessary
entries have already beenrecorded.

Although the tender documents do not
include penalty provisions for
infrastructure development, penalty
clauses exist for shortfalls in salt
production against the target.
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(VI) a1 § 100 #mare $it - fRra |k st
aRETST1 & forg Trerdiee i ot ferfics
& AT SYYRT & AfABR &b T (3MRYY)
g3l

(VI) Deficiency in right to use agreement
(RUA) with SJVN Green Energy

Limited for 100MW ground mounted
s_olar power project at Nawa.

HUT 7 A1EGT H 100 WMETe $Hi - 9k
it GRESHT & forq Teeidie fiF Tt
fafice & d IWT & ABR BT W
FEEIT (3TRYY) fora g SiR \weiiar s &
TR PIGIT ToiRdT Pl TR & JAfIDHR
& T BT G Sty & forg <7 B Al
e gJee &l Pt RN BT 5% B X A dh
TSN & Y § YoM & T arudt a1 ot
AR REM ST T A /ST AT g,
Qlfept DU GIRT X 34,15 TR 0 bl Tt
dep T el ol T

The Company has entered right to use
agreement (RUA) with SJVN Green
Energy Limited for 100MW ground
mounted solar power project at Nawa
and as per MOU Implementing agency
shall pay/ submit a refundable
security deposit @5% of the total
amount of annual charges including
taxes payable for entire duration of
right to use agreement in the form of
bank guarantee to the first party but
Company has not taken such bank
guarantee of ¥34.15lakhs,

g R o71R 9T B Hogd 3 R T &
ST R & | IE & SR 3 Wbl fAeran & fob
St &t fAfaer ufesar 3§ facfig srFafaan
g, o ot ot faig I gt wahar g
R3S IRUT U9 BT SITHE SR
3RV TGl 2

T gl TR THOIGT & A1 T -l T @ 3N
S8 e & §op TRET STHT PR BT YT fm
2l

The matter has been discussed with SJVN,
and they have assured submission of the
Bank Guarantee shortly.

gRT ol A Fefrd Big ff orf 399 uget T8l
feam a1 21 ug wiisy 4 98 39 R srafaee &Y
FHTET3N BT GelT ST e 7T Uep GHSIAT S0 &
TEd I DI T8 U BT RIS TRASHT 2|

No prior works related to Green Energy
have been awarded earlier. This is a small
initial project undertaken under an MoU to
explore the potential for future large-scale
implementation.

%
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The Company is continuously giving
the tenders without following
company policies and against the
Borad Approval. The reply of the
Management indicates that there are
financial irregularities in tendering
process of the company which may
cause of suffer financial losses to the
Company. Due to various uncertainty
involved, consequential impact of the
same on Financial Statements is not
unascertainable.

SPaR & AT gY AT D AR, IHGR Dl ATl
TR W 18 gIRIeT T Il & 3iR o1er giRiet =
B Y RRT o IcuTeH AT ST ST BT @
clfdh Ui & TeE GRT JTged i 37fcrd B o
qd AT FIffia o= fSar ST ey & ot &
TR TE € 3R ot & i & Rhermh g1 vae
q IR 7RIQT Piecdex WR T 35.24 oRg, BRI
QR deed wrsde fafice w % 9.67 @@
3R T I TeRt R ¥ 8.68 ARI & JAMT AT
& fory TAfd o= ST 30 ey | a¥f & forg o 2
53.59 oG $H fem@mr . 3R fafder s 39
AT TP ST-TGIR fGERIT TAT| Hu=t 7 St
T TS T & ST AHGS! & TR T8l 81 ATGs)
% SR fare THIEE ARl o 3 9ew B
el Rud 15 Al & fieR 39 o9 o= fean
STTQT, ST HTHAT HEIRAAT & fofg ST SITQ|
A rarfer. 7 9gg #Emeygds (3h) ek
ATJT.feT. & T 3 ST Y SreeraT H SIaIRt
BT T foa g, T 399 ShgR & foedt oft
TG Pl oM g fhaT 8, I AFiGel & 30U
& 21 HU e, AT 3R B SrgaTe T
I R Ut el axal g, Ry doet o forfi

B &l T ¢

As per agreement with contractor, the
contractor has to achieved target year to
year and in case of non-achievement of
target production penalty has to be levied
but the Management of the Company

U1 HeTerT Tell o UGe <l At R I8 ¢l AT,
forchia 9 o arg9ge BRars i Su

Company has been reviewing the
performances of the parties. Necessary
action will be taken in current financial
year.
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deferred the penalty till finalization of the
contract which is not as per term of contract
and against the interest of company. The
Management deferred the penalty leviable
of ¥ 35.24 lakhs on M/s Mahadev
Contractor, ¥ 9.67 Lakhs on M/s
Kharagodha Salts Pvt Ltd and ¥ 8.68 lakhs
on Ram Raj Choudhary for future. To this
effect profit for the year under stated by
53.59 Lakhs and Misc. Deposit overstated
to that extent. The company has constituted
DRC which is not as per norms. As per
norms Dispute Resolution Committee
consist 3 members. One by Company,
another by Party and third by mutually
both. DRC report to be submitted within 15
days thereafter within 7 days by CMD
hearing and 15 days to be dissolve
otherwise matter refer to arbitration. But
SSL constitute DRC under the
chairmanship of GGM(O) and other 3
members of SSL but has not include any
member of contractor which is not as per
norms. The Management of the Company
is not punctual in adherence of process and
legal compliances and which may cause of
financial losses to the Company.

12

&1 3T e forir faaron & feoguft wvear 20
 3rfalReh 9. 19 IRy &Y AT aRqufRiay &
et o & wu o gufar T &, S - 15 &
T & ITTHY el gl M &, U T BT
FfIfRM, 2013 &1 I 111 & TS 1 & IFAR
"PHHARY AT’ B TBCIHRUT Y AT T B

3rguTer =TEl fhaT &

We draw your kind attention to Note No.
20 of the Financial Statements whereby
plan assets of ¥ 9.19 Lakhs over and above
the defined benefit obligation have been
shown as Prepaid Expenses which is

HU P IR g a1 g (TeenEgt) &
A1 HE Nt A TP ale], Uifersdt g1 7 Uiford} &
eI S5eT HHATRAT B HaATFaRT o1 FIa=
& gfaer & for wma W e o Faer gHfda o
gl

The Company has an ongoing policy with
the Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of
India for several years. The primary
objective of this policy is to ensure timely
investment of funds to facilitate retirement
benefit payments to employees.
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inconsistent to the compliance of AS-15.
Also, the company has not complied with
the Disclosure requirement of “Employee
Benefits” as per Division I of Schedule III of
Companies Act, 2013.

BT T TAMSAT GRT 30.09.2024 Y Pl T 7T
¥ AMYUR W, 22.10.2024 P UANSH H
3172.76 &g @I 49T fBam| wga-15 & dgd
AP SIS AT3N & IFUTeH H, Ut 7 Th
was SHifhd BH B TEIH A TP SHifhd
i axml, PR 31.03.2025 & QI
¥163.57 aRg MgfiRd &l

The Company invested ¥ 172.76 lakhs with
LIC on 22.10.2024, based on the demand
raised by LIC as on 30.09.2024. In
compliance with the statutory
requirements under AS-15, the Company
conducted an actuarial valuation through
an independent actuarial firm, which
determined the liability as on 31.03.2025 to
be¥163.57 lakhs.

degR, ¥9.19 oIy (Jrfd, 172.76 oG -
3163.57 @RE) &1 31fcriveh M i 1R G
17T 21 399 31 o i faemon o gdea e
& 3fcfa gof fopar ma g 8iik 39 fomita af 2025-
26 & SRM IUF BH de oAl & fIog
RIS fham STem|

Accordingly, the excess amount of ¥ 9.19
lakhs (i.e., ¥ 172.76 lakhs - ¥163.57 lakhs)
has been treated as an advance payment.
This advance has been recorded under
prepaid expenses in the financial
statements and will be adjusted against the
liability arising during the financial year
2025-26.

13

qrfad Jedicd R & IR, ey —gI
fqaxor ¥ IugH @ $19.95 ART Gof fhar ST
TRV o1, AP TEe = Ary—g1f+ faavor § dhae
35.45 o9 oy &1 39 WK, TIe] a¥ &l oty
¥14.50 ARG 31ferep foxaman . g iR ada= e
oft A} <A e o feaTE TS B

foig e 12 WU 10 IR o A H, I8 it o
fopar a1 fomfta af 2024-25 & RM, T
TGt Uiferedt & SR UAsTed! Pl ot T14.64
ARG BT YT T 771 S99 9 % 5.45 &R Te],
forcfiar aef @ |aifer & oiR I8 -1 I o g
fopar T 81 A9 %9.19 ARG, ST 91G < 3aferi A
e €, ol et RIgia & 319y, ol gReiepl
q yded &7 & o4 B SRId U A ot 1T T & |
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As per the actuarial valuation report,
gratuity expense should have been
recorded in the profit and loss statement of
19.95 lakh, but the management has
shown only X 5.45 lakh in the profit and loss
statement. To this effect the current year
profit is overstated by ¥14.50 lakh. and
current Liability is understated to that
extent.

In continuation to the response provided at
Point No. 12, also submitted that, during
the financial year 2024-25, a total amount of
%14.64 lakhs was paid to LIC towards the
Group Gratuity Policy. Out of this, ¥ 5.45
lakhs pertain to the current financial year
and has been charged to the Profit and Loss
Account. The remaining % 9.19 lakhs, which
relates to subsequent periods, has been
appropriately accounted for as prepaid
expenses in the books of accounts, in line
with the matching principle.

BT 7 TASTEHT Uiferdt & Y™ & AMUR R
It g @ AT & gl aggaR, facde ad
2024-25 & oIy daet T 5.45 ARG &l IS
I P wY H gof fpar W1 g, Safd dHifhd
el & AR I8 319.95 &RF o7

The company has recognized gratuity
expenses based on the provisions of the LIC
policy. Accordingly, only ¥5.45 lakhs has
been booked as gratuity expense for the
financial year 2024-25, as against 319.95
lakhs as per the actuarial valuation.

gTeiltes, are foxtta aef & SR g% Arwer &Y eften
bl ST 3R I 3ATaede 3T Al ol YRiepl §
TR FHRITST by ST |

However, the matter will be reviewed
during the current financial year, and
necessary adjustments will be made in the
books of accounts, if required.

14.

& fofl feru & gy-wg-daitgiy SugH
(arfrafy o) & Feafdd fewalt W 6 6t 3R
e IMpid dxa &, R sdrm w=r g b
31.03.2025 T® JUGH & foIv Quar 382.12
ARG oft, AT TRT— 15 & dga fdra faer =gl
T T 39 ITATET, HUHT 7 HuHT rfarfE,
2013 &I IIAT 111 F T 1 & AR HHAR
T P UHCIPHRUT I AT BT UTA g b

2l

T &g A faar

Noted for compliance.

Ig YT fae wu & Tml siftel & fou =gt
SIAT A FEYd 8, BTeAifep 39 oIl & foTu Fafdrd
farer Ty farcfia af o Gk fopam Smem |

The amount pertains exclusively to the
gratuity liability for confirmed labour,
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We draw attention to Note No. 6 Regarding
Death cum Retirement Gratuity
(Retirement Benefit), to the financial
statement, which describes that Liability
for Gratuity as on 31.03.2025 was provided
for T 82.12 lakhs in the books, but no
investment was made as required under
AS-15. Also, the company has not complied
with the Disclosure requirement of
“Employee Benefits” as per Division I of
Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013.

although the corresponding investment for
this liability will be made during the
current financial year.

15.

ot af 2024-25 & U o/ET gl QiR
ot uida & T eeller § T4.71 oRg &
IR &, SraaT e afsd 81 e & arara 4,
&9 U & o faaRun W s gg W ferof
B aRTgef B |

There is a difference of ¥ 4.71 lakh in
turnover between the books of accounts
and the GST portal for the financial year
2024-25, which is pending for
reconciliation. In the absence of
reconciliation, we are unable to comment
on its impact on the company's financial
statements.

focta af 2024-25 & forg Sfivadt aififes Re
STHT e U 3TTa9h FHRIST fhT ST |

Necessary adjustments will be made at the
time of submission of the GST Annual
Return for the financial year 2024-25.
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Annexure- E to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Emphasis of Matter
AGTORI&T 3raeitad / Audit Observation g4 &1 STard/Management Reply
1. & fxfia Reol § o2 of o & Fafda SR Ugel, Dot B AT b IR, R B
e T 28 HI 3R AMUDT A Bl | 1 Td qut & forg it o S ol
Fxa £ R 9arT T & 5 oY & ke 2023-24 P sramRien Rald 9, o= oM 3
U 7 e DI Dl g3 W H STef &1 ATfer H qra e & forq Tfid e & |99 J T 0y
afads 5T &1 frset af o= orf & IoRg IS AT T, Fifh 30 oigieh- Rigidl &
I 2Ry & U § e o i e, ooy =T T o) aROITRaReY, Ut gRT
R S af I g% Ao dig w9 9 ATl bl THIET o T8 SR Fqerd HUse GRI
fpedi § 93 W | ST 1T & o T & 3THIGH & TG I Pl AL 3iR o fawa
fopam T o, Steifs el aYf | vEes A fofy T
foran g b et faQiy aef o =) oo R fopan Previously, as per company policy, the
T $ I I e P T-gI faaxor o Kuccha Work was deferred over five
SMfiet foparT STTQT | oiRgiert Aifer  aRec & years.
PR 7T 7Y 3 T § T 194.00 oG &1 Jfg In the Auditor’s Report for 2023-24, a
w3 qualification was raised regarding the
) deferral of Kuccha Work over five
1. We draw attention to the Note No. 28 ears. as it was considered contrary to
regarding Kuccha Work Expenses to years, as L y
the financial statements. which accounting pr1nc1ples.' Consequently,
) i ! the matter was reviewed by the
describes that during year company company, and the policy was revised
has changed the policy for written off and implemented after approval by the
Kuccha Work. In the previous year Board P PP y
kuccha work is deferred as revenue '
deferred expenditure is being written
off in five equal annual instalments
beginning from the year in which such
expenditure is incurred whereas in
current year management has decided
that the total expenditure incurred on
Kacha work in a particular year will be
included in the statement of Profit and
Loss for the same year. Due to the
change in accounting policy the
current year expenditure has increased
by ¥194.00 lakh.
& A 80 X
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fri=rep vd ATt UNi&rehs <l fewaforT:

Hu B fof g 2024-25 & fov AR ATecd
forfies & affe faxdiar foaron R wRT & 56 @
TeTelaT e (jiush) 6 eig feogof 98t feft 21
T Td 3TTHIR:

QT RT IRBR & AR fIurn vd H3mer,
faoraR TR e FATer, sitenfie Hiftr vg HaeH
ST AN T Fh 3MMGeh 3T GRT & T Igifed
HERIaT & oI ool goRdT @k dRAT dTEd &
ST TR TRBR & fAfyeT fasr g fw e
HeArT & foru oft arueft e @ o 81 Qe T
dot & At TS P Uy b gRT R W RE
HEAN Ud I & o o cfsra aeh ded gl
QT e Qe SRATaIen (ST Ug PraRe
¥ fore off emR @k FRd §1 31T H, Fead qusd

UfegdT Ud ST &Y ARTET el 2|
39 Heal & folg @ fif ek |

31T WG e e

: SI3EU: 09353339
TP 24.09.2025

321G :l's;ﬁ@

@ <

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER &
AUDITOR GENERAL:

Company has received Nil comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(CAG) on the Annual Financial Statements of
Sambhar Salts Limited for the FY 2024-25.
APPRECIATIONS &
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their
appreciation of the valuable assistance given
by various Departments and Ministries of the
Government of India particularly Ministry of
Heavy Industries, Department of Industrial
Policies and Promotions, Department of Public
Enterprises, NitiAayog, Ministry of Finance,
Planning Commission and Salt Commissioner
etc. The Director also Acknowledge the
support extended by the various Departments
of the Government of Rajasthan. The Directors
also express their sincere gratitude to all the
customer of the company for their unstinted
support and confidence reposed in the
company. The Directors are also thankful to
the Principal Director of Audit (Industry &
Corporate Affairs), Statutory Auditors,
Internal Auditors, Bankers and all other
stakeholders for their continued co-operation.

In conclusion, the Board places on record its
appreciation of the individual and collective
efforts, commitment and loyalty of the
employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Sanjay Banga)

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 09353339

Date: 24.09.2025
Place: New Delhi
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e 6t Ruid & srgerus
&g Tt 3R fascyor:

FENT AT IR AT a¥ 2024-25 & gRM
PHRITR T 6566.85 ARG A TCTR T 4639.44 ARG &
TIT ST 29.35% T BT g iR IcureH @ g fiee
a9 & T 6988.50 7RI TCHR ALY H T 5892.06
ARG BTSN 15.69% Pl Bt B

TR 3R FHSTRY: DHUIT & U ST 90 f HieT oy
& 2, RraaT o v F9@ iR ey ifaftrn &
IUTG & foTT SUANT fopam ST 81 ot 78 ST
T T IR FTS & 31N FIR THD BT IcITGT Pe dleil
THHTS HU | HUHT b TRT STHIAT TR IR g iR
A SHeTfh g1 Ut & FaTficd aTet 98 IcUTG &
BT TG PR & oAU fIemmer Fremt h nmazand
gt & 3R FTeA &Y Y &b BRI AR et & §
JNfTEFHLT &1 TRIT 1 TAHT @M gRT WHipet & f=mfor
31 gflet 5 T T Gk UdTE SR g3t & |

HU! B Gegar THSHH T B AR & for ST
f3pU ST aTet 31 SR DY THRATIT BT HATHAT PHeAT
US @l ¢ 3R gHR IUTG & T AT Y9 i
1 fog 81 Ut AR 3fiet 31k I AU & 31y
FRIA P g™ P foTU I3 TRITT I & 2| Iored Reprs
Y Tt wfaf¥ar eidy Afepavl § gig @1 geT PR §
3R HuT I Repls H IR o fofg S axich |
= At U R TR B

37V 3R GRPIVT: HU F U G IGH & fory
gfe gFRITSt graT &1 ot = arom uReah SeuteH &t
& GTOGR H oIoft 1 7 3fiR faftre a¥iet & e &
TG & foIU TR &1 & et & forg v
Y&l 81 BUl ST WIfEhIgs Wlee 3 Sk e aftfd
UG & ATETH A IR fRiqRT 9T W@l gl U

<
Annexure to Director’s Report
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS:
Industry Structure and Developments:
During the year 2024-25 the turnover was
decreased from %6566.85 Lakhs to 34639.44
Lakhs which is ¥29.35% decrease and the value
of production decreased from I6988.50 lakhs
in previous year to ¥5892.06 lakhs in current
year, whichis¥15.69 % decrease.
Strength and Weakness: Company is having
about 90 Sq. mile land area, part of which is
utilised for production of salt and other
activities. Company is having known brand in
salt production & is the only Company to
produce Kyar Salt. Company is having
experienced and dedicated manpower at grass
root level. Huge resources are required to
manage company owned large production
area and lack of resources had resulted into
encroachments in the Sambhar Lake area.
Construction of anicuts by locals has hindered
free flow of water into the lake.
Company is facing problems of Illegal
borewells used for theft of precious brine and
encroachment of our production area is major
concern area. Company is taking major efforts
to remove illegal borewells in and around the
Sambhar Lake. Wrong entries in Revenue
Records are root cause of increase in illegal
encroachments and company is making all its
efforts in legal manner for correction in
revenue records.
Opportunities and Outlook: Company is
having sufficient infrastructures for increasing
the production. Company has expedited
revival of our abandoned production areas
and making efforts for development of
untapped areas for production of salt by
various means. Company is enhancing market)
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WSaR IT IUIEIR Ueef: af & SR ATeRor -1
BT TG 30644 1 Hifew e @1, Safhs fset af 78
323076 Hifgwd e ol RepEs 806 BT IAGH
29388 Hifew & @1, Safd fisel af a8 47064
Hifed e o1l af & RE Hut 7 186473 Hifew e
AR 96 iR 29866 Hifed e Rprgs Ha 94T,
S9fp fUsel a¥f ag 216877 Hifcd < ATLR THG
3R 47969 Hifed 1 Rigs THH ST /=7 2|

NRAT Fer: ST BHael AR 1S R TG
TP BT IUTG 3R feht o I g1 it safaraar &
R 379 MU o & H THD &b eI H IR T3
2 3R U T ISP T ufegyf At g1 e,
g 5 i TS JurarT o BRI, Hu+T it arfeat
& A1 UfcRugf - H Fe g |

MR FE=or gumrell 3iR St wafaar: Hut 3
3riaRes oiar utem TR/t @ @1 9= & forw v
TICE AGDHR BH DI ATARD Gl TRIeidh & v §
gk foma 81 31iaRes oikaT uRter ufehar aoet o |t
HgaqUl &1 Bl HaR IR arell gunferdl § INdG
=0T STer bt qifEeT &t [Hter B & fore ferg
& TS &1 DU b U T oikaT qte |fdfer g 9
3riaRes oikaT uxterapt Y Rure bt Fefter oft et &1

e ueefa & ey # A<y ugef = == St
SR fUset 9 & 31683.34 ARG & A9 Pl JoT A 3
839.77 TG BT 1Y it fovam =)

e STy e 5 oy af & oig s fe.
7 81 gt o, 91 11 31f¥pRT ik 70 iR-
PRIGRT M I af & SRE ALATA. F 3fenfis

planning for installation of Solar Power Plant.
Company is also exploring opportunities for
export of salt.

Segment wise or Product wise Performance:
During the year production of common salt
was 306441 MT compared to 323076 MT in
previous year and production of refined salt
was 29388 MT compared to 47064 MT in
previous year. During the year Company sold
186473 MT of common salt and 29866 MT of
refined salt compared to 216877 MT of
common salt and 47969 MT of refined salt in
previous year.

Risks Management: The Company is only
producing and selling common salt and
process salt. The numbers of private players
have now ventured into production of salt in
nearby area and Company have to compete
with them. However, due to our good quality
of salt, company is able to compete with
private parties.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy:
Company has appointed a Chartered
Accountant firm as Internal Auditor to carry
out the Internal Audit activities. Internal Audit
process is designed to review the adequacy of
internal control checks in the systems covered
all significant area of the company. Company
has an audit committee who is also reviewing
thereport of internal auditors.

Discussion on financial performance with
respect to operational performance: The
Company has incurred profit of ¥ 839.77
Lakhs compared to profit of ¥ 1683.34Lakhs in
previous year.

Human Resource development: SSL has 81
employees consisting of 11 executives and 70
Non-Executives at the close of this financial

%

4 83 X

p
2 <
QAIeR UTeR Wfic ST bl H IS &1 %81 €1 BUl  share through value added products like
T & fafa & s +ft danne @ &l Double Fortified Salt etc. Company is also

7,



e

Z
e gyl 32 | SgaR o ugef & o, ot o
01.04.2022 3 LT 2007 ITTHH AT PR T 70
2, Rl A SH9rfeh Y 9910 3@ B Aee et &k
el ufcrarat a1 oft e fopam ST A

PIURS AMEIRIP R@: HIRe ARG IR
AMUH HUH B AEAT g fF daRe AMiiie
SIReIRc (HeR) fosdt oft qor & T & w
TG Jfier fmar g1 fadfia af 2023-24 & forg
HUA T 20,16,57,440.43 T9F H7 dEE i
foparT| aegIR, faciia adf 2024 -25 & GRM, 3 geadt
faxfiar a9l & ST g 1 DT 2% oI 8Y, DUT
HioaeTR fcfafert R 28,39,885.00 U W oy |
a¥ 2024-25 & GRHM, TG YRd DN H
17,03,931.00 9 54T fhy MU, vy =i the o
11,35,954.00 39 AT fopv 0| fofer af 2024 -
25 & fofg, FHut 71 8.40 IRIS TUY BT Jg T 31
fpar| Ut dot Srfdf M, 2013 & aRT 135 &
SRR § 3fIcht §, $fey dut A & wrae &
TR HITHIR g & foly eraeges wae™ oy
ST |

2023-24 & R IRIASHI iR PrRiBT:

faqur ygeT:
g fFmfor, o Bfd § IR iR Icure &t fadht &
forg Himferes uga sem & T fru S Re €

IOTR H fegRT 8TRIST e 3R XoRd sgM & forg,
T 31K e T Reprg # Fifa Screl @t st am
T GIoTR B T bl Y ST of 98l 2

SHUT I TR R UTEe YR 91 %8l ¢ IR 4
TR T & Wiem & foIq 1 fhetl o Uohe o1 feoTed

v,

year. During the year industrial relations of
SSL remain cordial.Due to improved financial
performance IDA 2007 pay scales have been
made applicable in the company w.e.f.
01.04.2022, which will help in retaining
qualified manpower and will also attract good
talent.

Corporate Social Responsibility: Corporate
Social Responsibility: Your company believes
that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
plays a major role in the development of any
country. For the financial year 2023-24
company earned a PBT of Rs. 20,16,57,440.43.
Accordingly, during the financial year 2024-25,
taking 2% of average net profit of 3
immediately preceding financial years,
company spent Rs. 28,39,885.00 on CSR
activities. During the year 2024-25, Rs.
17,03,931.00 was deposited in Swachh Bharat
Kosh, Rs. 11,35,954.00 was deposited in PM
Cares Fund. For the financial year 2024-25,
company earned a net profit of Rs. 8.40 crores.
Company comes under purview of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore
necessary provisions shall be made for CSR
expenditures as per the provisions of the
Companies Act.

PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES DURING
2024-25:

Marketing Initiatives:

Efforts are being made for capacity building,
improving the brand image and enhancing
geographical reach for sale of products.

To capture the market share and enhance
revenue, strategy is being chalked out to
penetrate the products manufactured at Nawa
and Gudha Salt Refinery into the market with
huge quantity.

Company is augmenting the customer base on

regular basis. Design of 1 kg packet has been )
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TP IR AT & |
gRa ol ¥ fafdefiasor

GO T AR Soft GRAIHTST B FATET B A
TaodieT fH oot feifics (Tsfister) & @y
AT S TR EIER Y €1 39 Fwsilar s &
%T H, 100 HEe AR IRASHT & oy ST &
JNfIBR BT AHSAT 10 SHARY 2025 T fsurfea faman
TIT & 3R PR TRy & aref 2

ey &Y Bt Ao
TP IcUTS b forU AT &7 BT fApr:

AR THG H IUGA &9dT §gH & forw, dHo
TR faener aReah &l &1 @It iR fadhRT ax &l
21 HU IToTT g & foru Reprg=t § ST fahg ST
qrel 3BT Ul Al U THH &b SGT & fofg
ek & T faepRT I & B

fAguE uge:

Ut = Uobe THB T fSh sem D IET I T,
s fofy Far -me Rerg ™ & afksga @rer dae
T T IUTGH T & TR Y ST 3R AT & &t
@It & fore fquom ffafery a1 Jimferes faedR o=
&Y I S8 TS B

FIFRRAT GYR:

HOT <hT LT 3R ATRATRIe SUfRAfT 5 FoR gl 3R
S &1 UGTRIE, ST ATeeh TR SR ¢ Hed /Jurert
el IUTQI < foTq T et g faiehl cter 3Rt febarT|

made attractive to gather attention of
customers in the market.

Diversification into Green Energy

Company has signed MoU with M/s SJVN
Green Energy Limited (SGEL) for Installation
of Solar Power Projects. In continuation of the
MoU a Right to Use Agreement for 100 MW
Solar Project has been executed on 10th Jan
2025 and work is under progress.

FUTURE PLAN OF ACTION:

Development of new area for production of salt:

In order to enhance production capacity of
common salt, company is exploring and
developing the untapped huge abandoned
areas. Company is developing abandoned area
for production of good quality Pan Salt to be
used in Refinery to increase revenue.

Marketing Initiatives:

Company has planned for enhancement in
Sale of Packet Salt, for which efforts will be
made to increase the Refined Edible Packet Salt
production from Nawa Salt Refinery and
Geographical expansion of marketing
activities is planned to explore new areas.

Systematic Improvement:

Improved the visibility and business presence
of the company achieved sales target while
working for larger territorial footprint, wider
customer base and high value/quality
products.
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TR AigaT-3ruTer $i gfe

Ig gt &t SIeht @ 136 woaevet = 9eff e nued &
! 3R TIUHUS & g Ue§eH P 1T e
3IFERUT 3R =fiepa &l wep wfean FafRa & g iR
PIS HUHT DI JsTge IR IR fpam T g1 IS 3R
aivs weee = 31 97, 2025 Y qHH facdta avf & forg
Ih Al & rUTe Dl g Bl &

e Hedt & foTg o ol 3R A
g/~

(=1 q17I)

3rege vd vey g

SIS 09353339

feATd: 24.09.2025
T T3 gt
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Code of Conduct-Compliance Affirmation

This is to confirm that SSL has laid down a
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all the
Board Members and Senior Management of
the SSL and the code is posted on the company
website. The Board and Senior Management
have affirmed compliance with the said Code
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Sanjay Banga)

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 09353339

Date: 24.09.2025
Place: New Delhi
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ANR ATecd fofies

SR |

#9 IR Aecy fafies (druet) & 31 9, 2025
B 9 ¥ P AT IR IRBR, YR SN W& Al
STH AT, Al STH fI9FT, gRT Braly ATdSif+h
&7 & SUYPHI & T HURE Ta-1 IR SR Arfefefer &
affd & AR PHIUNE T & 2T Dl SFUTT Bt
Sitar Y &1 (‘Arfefafer’)

T BT BT b BIANS Td+¥T IR Hfcde/ Raic &t
eI T T HFIT GIRT FETI STRIA qeardst
T el v g e o gt weften & forg g
R febu U 2T, ST oft 1 &

HHIT b TG D RTHGR ¢ b BIARE Tawi< Dl ot
6 IIUTHT FATFIT BRI PHIARCT Ta= i ol hi
U AT P & fow St gRT Sira
MR 37UTE UfharT wa fohar=aae &t wfterm dep ot
Stra e 21

N gy d BN sty geeT Ud g9 Ry
USR] & AR, H THTIORT PR g ol = Facist
fqernt 9 wefa feam-fden, v fges auee
Qe @1 ufdeor qer FIQd AUSH T SigTuRier
qfafa & dodt F§ iR & rfaRaad wft mgcayuf
Ugqgel & Agy o Anfelier § FufRa &t 72 ordf &
FHEIAT GIRT SITATAT D TS B

%

CERTIFICATE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,
Sambhar Salts Limited
Jaipur

I have examined the compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance by Sambhar Salts
Limited ("the Company') for the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance by
Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by
Government of India, Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises, Department
of Public Enterprises (‘the Guidelines’).

I have studied the Report on Corporate
Governance of the said Company and also
examined the relevant records and documents
maintained by the Company and furnished to
me for my review in thisregard.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance is the responsibility of
Management of the Company. My
examination was limited to review of the
procedures and implementation thereof on
test basis, adopted by the Company, for
ensuring the compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance.

In my opinion and to the best of my
information and according to the explanation
given to me, I certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions as stipulated in
the Guidelines in all material respect except
guidelines relating to independent directors,
training to new board members and gap in
meeting of Board and audit committee.
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b ATNGT H I8 HUF Ral g b H R
3TYeIRgT T IuZeria Ud AT Bl Ag! il & Ud I8
=1 Y 37eherul 2 3R 7 & rurl b ity farol wR I
&I ARFIfERT ¢ SR U U/ Braeit & Hisy b
gl & oy 7 o anard g 3R 7 & ydeH g
b2 7RI et 2 T b forl GereTT U THTell e 2|

g/~

e FAfae g=2am™ ga=iar

YfaeRyr oo afea

AGHIT &1 Uk 9632, Hidl 11673
ISIMETT : TH0O0963251001143952

feqTd: 02.09.2025
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I further state that I have not verified the
correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and it is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company and also such
compliance is neither an assurance as to the
further viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

sd/

CS Nitin Ghanshyam Hotchandani
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: F 9632, CP 11673
UDIN : F009632G001143952

Date: 02.09.2025
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HiWR Wiecd ferfics, STAYR, & 31 AT, 2025 &t
THE oGl R e ifafm, 2013 it grr
143(6) () & 3rfa YRd & F=d vd TggeEn
WRieren 6 feoaforT

Hroe s, 2013 (erfirfrm) e ded FrafRa
fortar Raie fpu ST atel arf g1 & oIgaR 31 71
2025 @ 911 99 & folv AR Aleew fafics, &
Tt =T &t SaRY druet & Teeet b gt
g1 Srff T &t et 143 (10) & 3refF SeeiRad
3ThEIUT HFDI &b AR T 3h&u & MR R,
fIfRm & aRT 143 & o1 facdla faron w
T TR A 2, It & a1 139 (5) &
T 9RT b =P Td HEerdl uRierh GRI e
deTfe oEToRIerep fFIGR 81 ST ol ater Rare
& 23 JA18, 2025 F Ik GRT VAT IR o &l
Ieelg [T T 8|

# R & 9% U9 HgeRdT Ried H IR |
e &Y aRT 143(6)(T) & 3fcrid 31 AT 2025
P T 9¥ & oIy AR Aecd fafics & fofi
faaRuTl T STIYRD oRaTuRIaT TEl Px @1 ol fora
2l

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER
AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(B) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SAMBHAR
SALTS LIMITED FOR THEYEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of
Sambhar Salts Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 in accordance with the financial
reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility
of the Management of the Company. The
Statutory Auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible
for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under Section 143 of the Act based
on independent audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 23 July 2025.

I on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial
statements of Sambhar Salts Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2025 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act.

TRA & FRIFF U6 TEeRaT For and on the behalf of the
Tierp & 1T Td & AR Comptroller & Auditor General of India
8/~ Sd/-
(1. o HAR Bive) (Dr. Pawan Kumar Konda)
SIS OSD
(SN TG HIART A ) (Industry & Corporate Affairs)
3 fegt New Delhi
TI: 3 foocd! Place: New Delhi
fetie: 12 RidrR, 2025 Date: 12 September, 2025
& 4 89 X /A
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I AT URI&ThI INDEPENDENT
G| qﬁﬁg:[ AUDITOR'S REPORT
ufefa To
TSR, The Members of
JIWR dreey forfies SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED
Cisib! ﬁa%uﬁ & W&ﬂ ) RO Report on the Audit of the Financial
Statements
IR I Qualified Opinion

I IR WTeew foifies (duHl) & wgaa fadiiy We have audited the accompanying financial
faaRuT < eramuie i 2, O 31 71, 2025 dep statements of SAMBHAR SALTS LIMITED
P ferefiar fRAfY foaror 39 vy @ o & fow oy (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
3R gIfyr @1 faarur 3k Fhd) uarg o1 faeror, @ik Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of
forefi foemont & forq fewafor o Agcayuf ogi Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows
At iR 3 INHS SHeR! @1 @Riy for the year then ended, and notes to the
Afeyferd g (oY o facfir fraRor ahgt St | financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information (hereinafter referred
toas “Financial Statements”).

gAY X A iR BN waii SR % oR ik In our opinion and to the best of our
g 12 1Y TuEieRuT & R, gAN Ruld & affed information and according to the explanations
]I b TSR b UM A afofd ael & yal /Frfae given to us, except for the effects/possible
gTa Y 31fIRed, SRIG ot faxor ey gt effects of the matter described in the Basis for
ST % | 3D TFHRI o0 & ik yRa ey Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
dR R ipa aaieT Rigial & ey 31 @f, aforesaid financial statements give the
2025 TP HYT b ATl h AR aik 97 fyfyy ooy information required by the Act in the manner

FHTH Y b foTU §9ch oI 31K P vl UdTg BT gl SO required and give a true and fair view in
3iR fFrsger geg <l & conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025,
and its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

T I BT MR Basis for Qualified Opinion

Rl aq—:la'q-cﬁ—é’r T gfofg ama] & IR &g g We draw attention to the matters described in
PR 2, NP uva /q9fad gara iR d Al STe g9 Annexure-D, the effects/ possible effects of
IRIT AETaRte ey g o § eRqmef §, afehg which and matters where we are unable to
®Y F T 90 w9 3, i foarun & forg weeayguf £ obtain appropriate audit evidences,
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3R 3TSAILRITS &1 TR AT P SFIAR AT 3T
Afcre g Y g fpa &1

FHRT {91 2 5 89N GRT UTH oRGTIRIeT 187 gHN
TIffed T & v 3MUR UgM o & v wafg ik
Iferd 8l

Hg<d & HTHA

&7 forfia faamon & el gmet & IR F s Rard
¥ IgeHd § W M AHNT axd &, B W
SUINThd! T AT 3MERH gl 37 AHl b qae J
TR I ARG Al & 1S 2

focfa faeRur 3R S9 W oar wWigrd H Raid &
SrfafRerd s ST

BT BT ISP Heal 37T TGN & oy T gR 1
I BN H e i Rad, vega Tt 3R
fadyor Ruid 3k wraRe waa Roid anfae €,
At 399 faxfiar foaRor @ik 99 R AR ol uRieid
&6 Rard aftyfera =21 21 o Ruld &8 39 ot wterdh
H RUIe H IRKG & 91 IueTed TRV S 6 SHIG
21

<
individually or in aggregate, are material to the
financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Awuditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"”)
together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the
ICATI’s Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Annexure E of our report
regarding matters referred in financial
statements, which requires user's attention.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Information Other than the Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the Director’s
report, Management Discussion and Analysis
Report and Corporate Governance Report but
does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Other reports

y/
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o fIeRu TR gAY I 3T ST Dl haR gl
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U SUAed 8l g, 3R gafory g faci faawun silk
N WR kg1 IRIeTeh b RUIE & 3TelraT 3 STHBRT IR
Rare =78 axa &l

o faRoi 1 TR FA & TN TG Jawe H
et

HUHT B Fued Heel 37 Rl faeRul & IRt &
qeg ¥ Huet erfafrm, 2013 (erfifm) & arT
134(5) ¥ 9ATT ¢ gt & forw RTAGR &, S o
&1 foita fefy, facfiar e oiR el vaTg &1 |g!
3R frsuer gfeptor < €, S R § 31 IR IR FhR
fohT T oiRgiepT Rigial & SFNR 8, re arfifrm
T gRT 133 & dad MG ekl AP A &,
52 dut (oiam) fM, 2014 & 9 7 & A1 UgT
STY | 597 RFHGRY | Syt bt gRadfRl T gRam 3k
ArETYS! 3R 3 S IHAdTsl Pl b 3R ITH]
U R & forq rfefRm o et & SaR 93t
oI ReplS b1 RaxeaTa oft anifivet € ; STeh ogic
Hifcrat @1 =TI ofiR amdeH; fd @R fadeyuf fAofg
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are expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does
not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express anyform of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identifiedabove when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. The other information is not
available to us as on date of signing the report,
and hence we do not report on the information
other than the financial statements and
auditor’sreport thereon.

Responsibility of Management and those
charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of
y
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3R STTHM I ; e vty ariaRes faxdta fFamon &
feoTe, Prafrae 3R WavETa, S fa<iar faaRon 6
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Hifcrep T SAI A Geh €, WS aareel a1 e b
BHRI G|

focfla faavor IR axa 99, U§EE dul A
Tfrfafert & w9 o STRY Y& Y & BT et e,
AN BF W, Fafid & Fefea amell &1 G dA
3R SRFTH & TRAARRAT MR BT ITANT B & foTw
RreR 8, 919 do 5 weed o o q91d B At
AT S PR T SNICT g1 IGdT ©, AT VAT e b
JTATAT hIg IR T Tl

e HeeT Ut 1 it RulféT ufshan i qava
& forg +ff SR 2|

faxitar faamon Y aETaten & forw aEmiers! @1
gifica

NI IE2T 39 IR H Ire SMARTT UTH &_T & fob
I w9 ¥ facfia = e Tera 9 | 956 €,
g ENRITEIEY AT JfE P BRUT &Y, 3R T AT Y
Roid SR ax1 e gaRY I afeyford g Sfd
el 2 5 AT & SRR SRS b kATl ghel
U Hgeaqu! TTeTd Y BT UdT QT SIe I8 AING &l
TAd B GIRETIS! AT JfS F Il & Tl ¢ 3IR So

adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the
management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs

%

4 93 X

v,

2




]

7

7
Hgaqul AT ST € Afg, e w9 [ a1 o
firetran), 9 31 forii faamon & SR R SuzRTdharen
ST forg g anfefes frofat ot srfa ax & Sfud vy
W Y& Y ST Fehelt g

Y & AR U oaaRieT & e & ®9 d, g
UIeR Ui o € 31k IR oIRATIRIE o R YR Heg
Y G & | 89 I8 ft vl &

a1 FfE & PRU, T AREH b T IARA
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& AT TTH Px difeh VAT oRITONIe HfehaTd
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will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional Scepticism throughout the audit.
Wealso:

* Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for
one Resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal
financial control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates

y/
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BT Goich o, R Trepciaeur off Feferd g,
Rk T fadfa favor sidfiRa o @ik
TN Bl 3 TRE A TR PR & b fag
ERSIn

Aifcreper it faexol & T ga= & A= & S
ARHIT U T TT Pl FIATHR, Tg FHTGHT 1 & b
thd fodiy fdarol & e Sfud ®9 A SR
SyarTRal & anfdfe Fofa gfad & s €1 &
AT T 31K ToTeHd HRD! R AR axd &

TR IRGTORIET BRf &b SRR Y AT T 3R
AR P & IR BT JedidhT oeeT ; 3R

and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements

in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the

economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We

consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in

(I

Planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and
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(i) To evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
weidentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given
to us, we give in the Annexure-A, a
statement on the matters specified in the
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act,
we report that, except for the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BISHR, oIKdT J¥dd] & ITH &

gffed I & SMuR H aftfa gme & srfaRad,
IR T °, Swfh foxfta faemor arfdfas &t
YRT 133 & dgd [y oRgipd A=d @
3rUTe axd 8, Rig ot (o) faw, 2014
& R 7 & 121 ugT SIu|

ST 5 85 ST R 8, U SIRBR Ut 8 &b
A1, duHr 3rfefd, 2013 & ORT 164 &
SU-GRT (2) HURC Al & T H
SATERTTT FET SHUHIAR 463 a7 05-06-
2015 & AR AL Breft ]

9) DU DI i Raifén w araRe iy R

o gafEd iR W fREUT A gRdred
ggefierdt & F9g §, g ot § gART 37T
RO 2, 3iik g Rard fachy RaiféT o ot
& raiRe fofia PRIz ft gafgar @ik aRere=
gegefierar 0k Ueh Fffe X @ch el 2|

STRRTT T ST 463 (2) i 05-
06-2015 & 3F9R, 3ffafd & grT 197
RGN HUFRT R AR T8 gkl g1 agIuR,

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of accountsexcept for the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above,

Except for the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion,In our
opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

As explained to us, being a Government
Company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of
The Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable as per Notification No. G.S.R.
463 (E)dated 05-06-2015 of Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure
B, andOur report expresses a qualified
opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial
reporting.

As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated
05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
and Section 197 of the Act is not
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applicable to the Government
Companies. Accordingly, reporting in
accordance with requirement of
provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is
notapplicable on the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The Company has not disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial
statements for the year ended 31.03.2025
(Refer Note No. 32 to the financial
statements”Contingent Liabilities and
Capital Commitments” to the extent not
provided for). Moreover, the company
has not maintained proper records and
details for compilation and ascertainment
of the impact of the pending litigations. In
the absence of such records and sufficient
details, any consequential impact on the
financial statements is not ascertainable.

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material
foreseeablelosses.

There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year ended March
31,2025.

(a) The management has represented that,
to the best of it’s knowledge and belief,

other than as disclosed in the notes to the}
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accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management hasrepresented, that, to
the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we
considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their
notice that has caused them to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(i) contain any material mis-statement.
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v. Pl GRT 99 P GRM DI HI HING &1 v, The company has not declared or paid
A T fepam 7| any dividend during the year.

vi. TR S & oMYR R, s q_teor o9 o vi- Based on our examination, which
off Hu 7 3191, 2025 P FTH o avf & included test checks, the Company has
foTg 3o @rat Y gl B ST T P o used accounting software’s for
SETehT ATFCIIR T IUANT b 2, raH aiffee maintaining its books of account for the
o (HureH o) giaer RS oxey & gfaer & financial year ended March 31, 2025
3R g AiTeder 1§ aof @+t Uil o & forw which has a feature of recording audit
R ¥ Frferd BT g1 AP 3T, ER trail (edit log) facility and the same has
JGTORIET & SR & 3iffse oot gfaem & arer operated throughout the year for all
DSBS DI Bl HHAT el fHelll SHb Irfaied relevant transactions recorded in the
SYRET & WaRwgTd & foTu derfies arverai & software’s. Further, during the course of
SFINIR NS ST T HEUT GRT T 7T B our audit we did not come across any

instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with Additionally, the audit
trail has been preserved by the company
as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

3. & AR P gRT 143(5) b FGER, BU1 3. We are enclosing our report in terms of
&Y gIan! 3R 3Tfea! dHY Tt Sirg & 3MYR W, Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of
ST fob B+ ST 9T IR 84 & T8 SIHeRT such checks of the books and records of
3R FEIRR & IFAR, ARA P REFAD 3R the Company as we considered
HEICTET URIee GIRT ST et 3iik Su-fder = appropriate and according to the
ST —T H 379+ RUIS et R %@ ¢ information and explanations given to us,

in the Annexure-C on the directions and
sub-directions issued by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India.
I WSTad U8 Ul For Bhandawat & Comapny
IIcs o@dR  Chartered Accountants
ARAT ot AT 000497xT  FRN: 000497C
g/- sd/-
¥ PIR SIS Shubham Kumar Jangid
APeR  Partner
FEHAAT W1~ 473715 Membership No. 473715
3T.ME.TT: UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847
254737 1591.77.3178.371.7% . 81.8847
I SIYYR Place: Jaipur
f&i® : 23.07.2025  Date: 23.07.2025
zzza’ 100 X Z




TS T URieTd Hi RUIE BT qae—ar

Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(31 91 2025 P FTH T F fa<fiar fAa=oN w AwiHR
HTecd forfies & Wewll &l gIR) waas ol wierd
A S 1w it Ruid & ' fafdre siik s
3MmaegHarsl uR R’ U & 3ianta ;e 1 5
el

i. Ut By GEs iR Sumon & e H:

. (V) & dF TS STHaRT 3R TR &
& AETHE fdaRur iR fRufar wfgd gof
fereroT fazamet gu Sferd Reprs 1 T e £

(&) & € 7€ SeR 3R TuEieR B
AR, dut 7 ond wuRwl & Ifua
RepTS T8l SIY & |

g U§EH gRT & TE STMaRT 3R Fqier
3R B gRT UG &Y TS ifies e
Raid & ogaR, & g & «ifis
Fa wfosar 3R ST Hifcrs =
Rod Sy @ 21 |ufy, @3 sk
IYPHRT & eI Hiferep AU & 11a H
g1 duftl & wife s ok I
¥ oI & Aee H faqafort R feogoft
Cag R RERES

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our Independent Auditor’s Report

of even date to the members of the Sambhar

Salts Limited on the financial statements for
the year ended 31st March 2025.

i. In respect of the Company's property

plantand equipment’s:

a.

(A)According to information and
explanations given to us, the
Company has not maintained
proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property,
Plant &Equipment’s.

(B) According to information and
explanations given to us, the
company has not maintained

proper records of intangible assets.

As per the information &
explanations givenby the
management and physical
verification report provided by the
company, we observed that
physical verification procedureand
their physical verification report is
not proper. In absence of proper

physical verification of Property,
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Plant and Equipment we are unable
to comment upon the

discrepanciesif any, in relation to

physical existence of assets and their

book value.

F. g < TE STHBNT 3R TqIHNur d2T 89N SRT C. According to the information and
ST fohU U 31fyeRal 3R AR ofh fRIT thigles explanation given to us and the
3R AoRies e FuRT & o frorat &Y records examined by us and based
foreter fRfer fararor <Y frfdr uR i b aMaR R, on the examination of the title deeds
e o R e e 2 e of freehold and leasehold

immovable property situated at
Sambhar Lake as at the balance
sheet date, we found the
discrepancy details are as follows

Fufy a1 el a8 F AN R ORG |97 YR, |GRT @fY- [t & AW W T 9

fareor o) Held in name of | AT 9T, ST T BRI

Description | Gross q7 I STEl Iugeh &l | Reason for not being
of property | carrying RedgR AT |Period held-| held in name of
value HHANT ¢ indicate company
Whether [Tange,
promoter, where .
director appropriate
or their
relative or
employee
I (98 W) |0.001 G | HUT & =g A 1. 957 it & &hal
Land 0.001 Lacs | PUMREINI 37aTs 38400 Tahe Bl 2648
(Lease Land) 3R IRT TRBR & Tehs (6620 stEr) qH
RIS SRR & IS RBR & AT
T J Ug W ferare = &1 Al
gffr, St 90 of Hier IR S =IRITAT &
I1 57,600 THs o faaRrefi= 2
I 2l AL, & ue § e
Company have gl
iiase la}?(\i/ T 2. 424.80 Uhs qH T
rou .T. TS
Krish?lamachari Freft 7 SeaTeept GRT
arfcrepHoT feparr g3t 2l
a 102 X /A
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Award and
Gazette
Notification of
Govt. of India

1. Area of main Lake
38400 Acres. 2648

Acres (6620 Bigha) of
land is under dispute

which is 90 Sq. with the Govt. of
miles or say Rajasthan. Matter is
57,600 Acres sub-judice before
Land. Hon'ble High Court.
Stay is in favour of
SSL.
2.424.80 acres of
land is Encroach by
Pvt. Salt Producers.
I 53.29 @RI | BT I T i 1. 1T e, AR o
(Y Bles )| 53.29 Lacs | WIIGRY 4 2l H116.41 Ths Y TR
Land Company have UTfoth] IR oieh &b AT
(Free hold own Khatedari fqre § & A g
land) Land.

9 SR, SR &
Trel fraRmEf Bl

2. 3 IS, IR ol Dl

18.12 s A faaried
g1 T Y1 SR &%
qer famrefi= gl

3. 9fggyyT, TaT |lec
23.71 Ths qH
fanfea &1 amen et
dIc, FamT Rt &
He faaRrefi= 2

1.16.41 Acres of land at
Rawan Tiba, Sambhar
Lake is under dispute
with Municipal
Corporation, Sambhar
Lake. Matter is sub-
judice before the
Hon’ble High Court,

Jaipur.
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2.18.12 Acres of land
is under dispute at Beg
Shed, Sambhar Lake.
Matter is pending with
Railway Jodhpur.

3. 23.71 Acres of land
is under dispute at
Sahidpura, Gudha Salt.
Matter is subjudice
before ADJ Court,
Kuchaman City.

I fiotales g & 3Mded & folu Ioe™ IRBR
SRT B oo Sts fsurfea =12t &t 7 8, otfds ot
daet It HUMTERS YRFBR | Heed hicipd! UG
Y 2 ol Tz S o Tt & b Rt WK A
AR Ao foAfics & fov YR IRBR BT 99 AT &
Ug R 5.50 oG 39 UfT a¥ & arfifep ugT fvme R
I &} 8 3R IR IRBR B! AR Aleed fotfics am
q TP HUA TR FRAT AT 3R AR ATeed
fAfICE Pl FHT -9 TR HU=T T gavdT Yol &b 40%
T AT T ISRERIT TRBR o Uel H Ju 3ieT e
fopT SITE, ot AR & A1 3} T g ot
Sl fsqifed 2t fham 11 &, Sfery ot & A W
afey 3 ofiefep o fevuft 78 &1 g B

g, ST o veee gRT g gfd fosam a8, duet A
31 97, 2025 B THH I & IR AT FUf,
T 3R IUGROT (IUART Y FURT & STfIBR
fect) a1 3t Hufty o1 gt Tl e

g, TEYE GRT 4 o TS SATHPR! & 3R, =7
HURT oiFeT ey SrffFr™, 1988 3R Sk
Te&d SV TV ST & dgd buHT & fGATh Brg

No lease deed has been executed by Govt. of
Rajasthan for allotment of said leasehold land,
but the company has provided only
photocopies relating to V.T. Krishnamacharya
award in which it is mentioned that Govt. of
Rajasthan has given the land for 99 years lease
to the Govt. of India for Sambhar Salts Limited
on Annual lease rent of Rs. 5.50 lakhs per
annum and Govt. of India should set up a
company namely Sambhar salts Ltd. and
Sambhar salts Itd, will be allotted free shares in
favor of Govt. of Rajasthan to the extent of 40%
of the paid-up capital of the company from
time to time, no lease agreement has been
executed so far with Govt. of Rajasthan, hence
not commented on the title of land in name of
company.

d. As informed to us by the management,
Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the
year ended March 31, 2025.

e. As informed to us by the management,
there are no proceedings initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding

y/
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ii.

oft SR uRY ¥ o T PIE PRI g o
fed T8l 2|

(31) Ut <t 3riciRes AT GRT FHAT YR TR
Y & SR U R H HTe Br Htferes Aeamoe fasa
T B YEEH GRT SIS ¥ AT & Hifcrw
I Y ARt 3R UfhAT Hu= & MHR R
AP I Db UHfd & a9 § Ifed, g3
3R Iugh & g1 dU T & S Reprs
T X 1 i Feld 3R g wela & S ga
TRE & [T OR St T feRFIferi 71t & Ul
it & foq Hgcayul 21 off aiR &uet & fiftr &
TR TS B R BT AP 3R [Faa=g meR
R Hifcr T g T8 ¢ facfia af & gk
IcTfed /9eTRT AT & 10% i g1 A JUTT &b
T sraer= fovg g & ot o & SR @ifm vy
q A1 fhU MU R wR 1fiRes waa (I Hig
&) B FIRITT TR & g1 3ife™ SU A ATH
T fp U R & HeY § URMYS ¥eid W 5% Tl
s &Y R A wag fhy T E, Al BT hHY
I & TR R &t 3ifc Rt dd ad &
SR U Aoft & J1et o foTT ot e 10%
T I 31fere Y et oft fasdwifer & forw ean
qRIhl H hlg AHTIISTT T8 b TRT &

1.

any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made

there under.

(a). The Physical verification of Inventory
has been carried out at once during the
year by the internal committee of the
company on sample basis. The coverage
and procedure of physical verification of
inventory followed by the management is
not reasonable, adequate and appropriate
in relation to the size of company and the
nature of its business. During the physical
verification by internal Committee, there
is shortage of 75% or more in cases of some
heaps between the physical stocks and
book stocks which are material but no
such shortage has been account for in
books of accounts. As per Company
policy the Physical verification of salt
heaps on accurate and reliable basis is not
feasible because of the irregular shapes of
salt heaps. Actual wastages are adjusted as
and when heaps are finally cleared. The
provisions are made for wastages @ 10% of
quantity produced/stored during the
financial year and @5% per annum on the
openingstockinrespectof heapsnotfinally
cleared after adjusting the excess provision if
any on heaps finally cleared during the year
hence no adjustment has been done in the
books of accounts for any discrepancies of
10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed during the year till
the final clearance of the heap as per

company policy.
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V.

iii.

(9) & & T GaT 3R TP P IFTHAR DU P

ura RIS IUY A et prfefier goft
GRET & 3MYR TR dopt A7 facfia el & af &
SR H THeTRR Ich AT BT ATH T8l SORIT ¢

g0 & 71 e iR TaeiepRur 3 SRR e aYf &
SR U & STTTeRa! Y gHRY STid & MR TR
HUT F HUT I, 2013 HY GRT 189 &
JTeRTa §TT 10 IS o Aaferferd dhufera, waf,
Hfor I ariiqRY 3T 3 uell @t B faer
eI fopa 2, g RS A7 GRe U el Y & AT
0T <l Uepfl H g K0T AT IMMIH el [T 8, A8
g AT & I1 RRMA gafery, oMy &
REMG 3 & TS (iii) HY Ufdd gRT Hut R
AL el Bl & |

iv. ST b & Qe fobam T g, Ut 7 IS S,

e, TRS a1 JRam A& & g, @ DU
rf¥f®, 2013 & gRT 185 3R 186 &
T AT 81d &1 TGINIR, 3MeeT & 6s 3 (iv)
&% UG B IR AR T8l aId ol

AR T F AT g4 &) T AHBRY 31k Tt
& PR, ARG Roid § & et qorm aust
3rf¥f®, 2013 & &RT 73 | 76 T fosdt o=
TG WY dT D JeRd g9 Y ot
& 37efH, STET AFY &, HuT A, 2013 &
e 3(v) & UIGe AR 8! & |

(b). As per information and explanations

1ii.

iv.

<

given to us the company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees and has not
availed the said limit during the year, in
aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of
current assets.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the record of the
company during the year the company
has not made investmentin, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advancesin the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or other parties
covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, requirement of Clause (iii) of
the paragraph 3 of the order is not
applicable to the company.

Asinformed to us, company has not given
any loans, investments, guarantees or
security where provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable. Accordingly, provisions of the
Clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
the under the directives of the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

y/

%
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Vi.

HUHT GRT &Y ST aTelt saTaTes Tffafer &
forq ot arferfRa™, 2013 h1 9T 148 &l
SUYRT (1) & fFlq g IRBR GRT AR
31feial & e & e & o w2l
AT, MY & TS 3(vi) & it Raife
HYH! IR AL Rl gt

vii. duTfie BT & HeY § g9 §F TS STHBRT 3R

TR & TAR:

(31) BRI H, 3R B <) TE THDRT SR TR

S e, Jed aftfd ax, SUaR iR
Aifte dare gern dfga Mffarg darfre
T, S off AR &1, M dR WR St gRT
3fyd rfrmRal & ot afia wu A ST fean
ST Vgl &1 $9 31T, 39 Ia¢ H < g ot
fAfdarg fer o & 3fd & SHF T B P dRRG
I BE TN W 31 &Y smfy & forw e &
arfcrierd geprar &l o |

Vi.

VIii.

and the rules framed thereunder, where
applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not
been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the Company.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
Orderis notapplicable to the Company.

According to the information and
explanations given to us in respect of
statutory dues:

In our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, have
generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities by the
Company. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect there of were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they
became payableexcept for the following;:

HIAT DI Upfal

Nature of dues

fdr (. a7 )

Amount (Rs. In lacs)

3rafer formy Afdr wafea g

Period to which the Amount Relates

A0 TR &1 27 Sfium

EPF Payable on CDA Arrear 212 2018-19 & 2019-20
TSIV 1997 WR Y SUIVH

EPF Payable on IDA 1997 Arrear 0.24 2018-19
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(@) g &t 72 a 3R FqiaRr & IR, HieT U (b) According to the information and
aT R, IS Ry, HHaRY IoT T, TR, explanations given to us, there are no
Rt e T . T o, IS 5, T dues of goods and services tax,
' ' ' e provident fund, employees’ state
qfefe v, U 3R =g I ST Afr el insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
2, ST fopdt frame o T ST 18 &l TS B service tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been
deposited onaccount of any dispute.
viii. B &t T T SR TUEHR b IGRR, DU T Vidi. As per the information and explanations
¥ b SR IR AT, 1961 P dgd PN given to us, the Company has not
frerfeor . e Ry N vgal ¥ oot 78 Y e surrendelred or di(siclgsed ;nybiniomeé
. . reviously unrecorded in the books o
foreft oft a1y ot oy & o H WA a1 e e Eccount, i}rll the tax assessments under the
fopaT 81 AGTAR, QY & G 3(viii) & WY Income Tax Act, 1961.as income during the
AR el 81 & year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(viii) of the Order arenotapplicable.
ix. @ BN @ H R 8 & T FFT AR ix. a.  Inour opinion and according to the
PR B IR, DY 7 I R information and explanations given
: G S to us, the company has defaulted in
P A e W s the repayment of loans or
A1 SR B G 5 b H1 2 borrowings from its Holding
Company i.e., Hindustan Salts Ltd.
U1 UfcrgfcrRit | SROGTaT fraa fafy R Afy | gqeem |foeifeg ar | afg o fewooft &
qied YR & | T DT YA el foharm [IT 1o YA 7 U | Remarks, if any
Yepfcl Name of o) Whether  |TU f&HT &t
Nature of |lender Amount not principal [T
borrowing, paid on due date |or interest |No. of days
including de]ay or
debt unpaid
securities
e ardf | feged 4478.41 A |HeIE 24 ¢
K0T ATecd fafics | 4478.41 lakhs 3576.50 |24 years
ITgRfard (YR Hu) ol
Unsecured : | Hindustan SN
Loan from | Salts 90-1'9_1 o
related party| Limited Principal :
(Holding 3576.50
lakhs
Company) Interest :
901.91
lakhs
zzzz 108 X Z
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G, BRI H qerr g & TE T 3R wqetaRur &

ST, U1 o Tt off e a7 forfar e
3T KOG GRT AP Ihahdl! Gl gl
ICRIRRINS

g & T o IR TEIHRU B AR, BT
TG /N & AT IUART B [T T=A &
fore o Reprs /faaxur € w@m 8, af & gRM
HUHT 1 DS ATQRT KT AL fordT 8, S T8
S oA el gl 8|

AR T § q2T g S TS g iR FeRr &
SRR, AT U= & foita farunt vy STra
& TR, DU GIRT TR IR TR TS T3
IR BT SUANT Serfafdy Sgeat & fore gl fopan
T2

g9 &t T 7T 3TR FEaROT & MR, DU A
3Ot gD HUAT, g HUAT a1 FYh
STl & SIRIAT Bl GRT R & fofg a1 I fory
et off 3epTs a1 AT A pIg GFRIST T2l ol €

g & T o IR TUEiHRu b AR, BT
aY & SR MU gD HUAT, Fgeh Sl a7
gt dufat f < 7 wfngfert @ AR
TGP K0T T8I e &l

() U&eH GRT B TS oIRaTIRYeT Hfehamat qor <
T STFPRY IR FAHFRT & YR W, Hut A
Iy & SR ARMAID ATISIHD VAR 3T R HY
ATIATH GBS (FH0T IUBRON ) &b ATETH

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to
us,Company has not declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or other lender;

According to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has
not maintained any records/details to
verify the end use of term loans, during
the Year Company has not taken any term

loan hence clause is notapplicable.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company,
funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilized for long

term purposes.

According to the information and
explanation given to us, the company has
not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates

orjoint ventures;

According to the information and
explanation given to us, the company has
not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate

companies.

(@) Based upon the audit procedures
performed and the information and
explanations given by the management,

the Company has not raised moneys by
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xi.

W ¢ U el fham 2

() g8 < T TR 3R FIEIHRT & AR, BT

7 v & SR 3fen a1 yRacd=ar seorat (R oRE
31/aT 313 WU A AT Jehfelds B A IR )
T IS M 3rde a1 fASht tervmie &l foa
2, 3AfeTT QY & WS 3(x)(b) F Ted R
I el gt 81

() & < T GuT 3R BT P IR,
31ege] Ud Ueerdh e it ISR HHeIS HAR
@ facfia rfafiadret & R § fefead ax
T 7 8 @i A1el Stia & a1efe € veee gRT &
TE THBRT & MTAR, FHER HHA PAR GRT
et & A AT 9~ & e
Re a1fier grR &t 1€ g 3iR Ame amH S9
ARITAT & FHe e g 3fiR 5 Rare ot sfaa
2, gufery g Ig fevuoft oy Y Rufy o = &
fh FHISR BHAY PHAR GRT DS GRS D TS
cRISE

() & & T T 3R TUEIHRT & ATRAR B gRT

a¥ & SR fore} enaerdt it g 78 & TR B,
STy U ST, 2013 BT gRT 143 hl
SUYRT (12) & fcRiaq ot (oiar uier iR
olgT Uters ) R, 2014 & PRI 13 & ofcrfa
R uo widt-4 § dg TRBR Bl RAOE =
& LI AT T8I 2

<

way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during
theyear.

(b) According to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has
not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully partially or optionally
convertible) during the year hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order

isnotapplicable.

xi. (a) According to the information and
explanation given to us, CMD Shri CMDE
Kamlesh Kumar and some staff has been
suspended on the charge of financial
irregularities and the case is under
enquiry. As informed by the
management, writ petition against the
suspension has been filed by CMDE
Kamlesh Kumar before Hon’ble High
court and matter is pending before
Hon’ble High court and enquiry is also
pending hence, we are not in position to
comment whether any fraud has been
committed or not by CMDE Kamlesh

Kumar and some staff.

(b) According to the information and
explanation given to us no fraud has been
reported during the year by the company,
hence not required to report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government.

%
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Xiv.

(1) & <) 7 G SR TUEBROT b SFTHAR DU
Pl g9 P IR PIg feddT—sAIR fIprRId urd
eI gL B

xii. DY b [ ot 98 g1 ISR, AR b

e 3(xii) P UTaer o ) T L Erd

xiii. B4 UGF hI T FT IR FIEH0T P IFIAR

ST ¥ AT wtem Ay § FaaT e d
frgfen 2l &t g, S1 & e e |fafa 6
T & HEE H U AR, 2013 &l &Ry
177 & Il 3Masad 81 oiar usiem Iy
G DI TeErdT, e Ud Hae e GIRT i
T S HruAT IfIfRE, 2013 B ORI 177 &
TTaeT & SIIRIR T8l ¢ Heferd &l & |re ot
& ot - Hur i, 2013 Fi Rt
188 & U H g, wigl T @r] &I, fa<fig
foaRuT & fevauft Fwear 31 # favor &1 g
fopam T 21

() &H & TS THBRY iR FIHHRT & AR,
SO § STARD <IRaT uRter vunedt g, ifh I
SN FGITT & 3MBR AR TPfT & ITwT Tl
g1 HU T STRND IRgT uRter Jonel! Bt ee
SR ASTE e i MILIDHT B

(.) 3fifee & @ 3 & folg aTaRe i uRiere

$ RUid IR fo=a foam T

xv. &8 TS AHBRY 3R TR & SRR, g

a1 g 6 ot 7 Mt a1 e Y I3

()

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

According to the information and
explanation given to us, no whistle-
blower complaints, received during the

year by the company.

The company is not a Nidhi company.
Accordingly,provisions of the Clause
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

According to information and
explanations provided to us, the
company has not appointed Independent
Director in the Audit Committee as
required under section 177 of Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of Composition of
Audit Committee.The audit committee
meeting is chair by CMD which is not as
per provision of section of 177 of
Companies Act, 2013. All transactions of
the Company with related parties are in
compliance to Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, wherever
applicable the details have been disclosed
in Note No 31 to the financial statements.

a. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there is internal
audit system in the Company but not
commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. Internal Audit system in the
company required strengthens by the

management.

The Reports of the Internal Auditors for
the period under audit were considered.

According to the information and

explanations given to us, we are of the

%
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opinion that the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him
and accordingly, the provisions of clause

3(xv) of the Orderisnotapplicable.

xvi. According to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the company is not required
to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the
company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India, accordingly the provisions of
clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable.

xvii. According to the information and

explanations given to us and based on the

audit procedures conducted we are of
opinion that the company has
notincurredcash lossesin the financial
year2024-2025and the immediately

preceding financial year2023-2024.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the
statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly, the provision of clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios,(Refer
note number 34.170f notes to accounts)
ageing and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors

& A 112 K
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XX.

and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is notan
assurance as to the future viability of the
We further state that our

reporting is based on the facts up to the

company.

date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

According to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company
does not have any unspent amount in
respect of any ongoing or other than
ongoing project as at the expiry of the
financial year accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xxi. The company has no subsidiaries

company and audit report is given on
standalone financial statements of the
Company accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable.
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WA ol uRieres it RUE &1 srgag-f

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date
to the members of the Sambhar Salts Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2025)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting Sambhar SaltsLimited
(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is
responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established
by the company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
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records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

oraT Tterp ! B R Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified
under section 143 (10) , of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

y/
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basis for our qualified opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
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that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified opinion

Being the Government undertaking, the
Company’s internal control process over financial
reporting is designed by way of various Manuals,
Rules, Circulars and instructions issued from time
to time and our opinion is based on the internal
control process over financial reporting as defined
therein. Based on our audit of financial statements
and according to the information and explanations
given to us the following material weaknesses have
beenidentified as at March 31,2025 :

a) The Company has no comprehensive model
for internal control over financial reporting
incorporating risk assessment, control
process and gap tracking along with the
description of objective, process and risk
associated thereof, as per the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

b) Physical verification procedure for property,
plant &equipment’s, inventories and its
reportingis not proper.

c¢) The Company's internal financial control
system over existence, Completeness,
valuation and allocation of Property, Plant
and Equipment and capital work- inprogress
(including materials lying at site) is not
operating effectively. The company did not
have an appropriate internal control system
over maintenance of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Capital work-in progress
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to matters described in the Basis for Qualified
opinion paragraph to the Independent
Auditor’s Report for the F.Y. 2024-25 is not
operating effectively.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal financial

control over financial reporting, such that there is a

reasonable possibility that a material misstatement

of the company's annual or interim financial

statements will not be prevented or detected on a

timely basis.
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Heres Terd HUAT BT HRT I Fhel B capitalization is not adequate. This material
weakness could potentially result in material
misstatements in company’s Property, Plant
and Equipment, CWIP, depreciation and
expenses.

d) ffdqr degied, ffder wwdxo, @FA-e™  d)  Internal Control System of the company with
fasywur, fSfeer oFa @r 3, TRIg ufdhar &t regards to Tender Evaluation, Tender
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. matters related to Procurement is not
S & G a7 < T ]%5 et 61 A operating effectively. Also, during the audit
ST AT b2 1 T e fopan o 21 process it has been observed that tender
procedure has not been followed as per

Company Policy.

e) Ul &b U fAfe il 3R GAQIRAT & fely Y ¢)  The Company lacks an appropriate control
gy gAY i1 hY gfY ue P & foru Sfera Fsor system for obtaining third party balance
YOI BT 31T & | $4h SFeTal, Ut g & confirmations for various advances &
STl Ay TR BT P T8 et & ORI liabilities. Further, the company does not

— frect Rrol ¥ iy e e B reconcile the periodic balances with the

confirmations, which could potentially result

el & il st i it & e & R in material misstatement of the fiillancial

afRoTFRRe férfter T 2 <Fenet | statements & may lead to fraudulent activity
resulting in financial losses.
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible
effects of the material weaknesses described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control
criteria, the Company has maintained, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial control over financial reporting were
operating effectively as of 31st March, 2025 based
on criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses
identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in
our audit of the 31st March, 2025 financial
statements of the Company and these material
weaknesses have affected our opinion on the
financial statements of the Company and we have
issued a qualified opinion on the financial
statements.

For Bhandawat & Comapny
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000497C

sd/-

Shubham Kumar Jangid
Partner

Membership No. 473715
UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847

Place: Jaipur
Date: 23.07.2025
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Sambhar
Salts Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025).
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Tt H e & Hel &2 I &, ar ol v
ST ST AT & | T O AT o SfereT fesaTer—
fopce gT SITaT 87 (IS SHOIGIAT DI IRBR
Ht 8, A I8 ST AU Ut & denfe
oRET Utereh o forg +ft a1 7)

2024-25 & SR RUGKT GRT BT @Y
g M HAlEr w1 gFed A
KU1/ w01 /&1 3MfS i AThY /98 @ |
ST T hls AT Tl ST T

P |y T, 2013 Y URT 143 el uR Y TE FRATE W ferefar farawon
9. (5) ¥ Taa Fder AT BT IR Iq'\r;mtﬁ
S. Directions u/s 143(5) of the Auditor’s reply on action taken Spact on
No. Companies Act, 2013 he directi financial

P , on the directions Statement
1. | T bl & urT TS et b mregm 1 et | BN <Y TS g SR 39 fun § gAY e & .
GTebT I el HRATTRI e 2l UMt €7 | STJNR, 8H Ped & [ Ul & IR 3Tec! NN
afe &1, ar ST TuTelt & SR ol oied | R & ATy ¥ A kg oFeT @ _
& TRIEDRUN | Tl Bl IRGST W TS el | AR ey b ForT pis Rveq =g &1 ot :'_i?'
: : . . ot
| Elif, du gRT Ceft mreH ufee @ able
Whether the Company has system‘ N | FiredeR BT IRNT IR Hgex Rived
place to process all the accounting .
transactions through IT system? ferear et o1 < e T < 2|
If yes, the implications of processing of | As per details and information given to
accounting transactions outside IT | us and our understanding of this
system on the integrity of the accounts | direction, we state that Company does
along with the financial implications, if | not have system in place to process all
any, may be stated. the financial transactions through IT
System. The Company does nothave any
central ERP System.
However, financial accounts are being
maintained by the company in computer
system using the Tally Prime Edit
LogSoftware.
T HISIGT KU1 2T i GISHT fehal TRIT & AT <poreit & o RN A P ST I
: AT I TS ARITARIEN TfEhATAT b AR W, ,
SRT 3507 G H SRATAT & PRI KOG GRT | . _ Nil
oY o R T ST/ 30T SR A BT GRT 0T GhT H SRFFLAT & HIROT I8
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Whether there is any restructuring of an | As per the information and
existingloan Or cases of waiver/write explanations given to us and based
a lender to the company due to the | hore wasno restructuring of existing
company s ma?lhi[y to repay the loan? If loans or cases of waiver/write off of
yes, the financial impact may be stated. debts/ loans/interest etc. made b
Whethersuch cases are properly he lend h .d i hy
accounted for?(In case, lender is a the lender to the company during t ’e
Government company, then this | Y3l 2_024'25 due to the company’s
direction is also applicable for statutory | inability torepay the loan.
auditor of lender Company)

AT P /I TR i FARre Aisrail @ for | ol 2l figw dAlee s g ot I
YTE /SITel @11 Tt SFRTTST obT S¥ieh il SR ereif o | o HTear 3 qdf He fromT o el Nil
FTER ST WU T/ A T AP | o & g B fg ASE ¥ &
EECE IR CIERIN faRed dg PR AR I5T ot I
Whetherfundsreceived/receivable for | fafSre giomr & forw ffer oy =& ig g2/
specificschemes from Central/State agencies | gy 89 el & iR e SRa w9 4
were properlyaccountedfor/utilized as per its ORIT—IRAT T TRIT o7 3R =T ot &b
term and conditions?List the cases of R
deviation TIRR T |

Company has not received / receivable the

fund for specific scheme from Central

Govt.& State Agency except plan scheme, for

payment of pension of ex salt department

employees through Hindustan Salt Ltd.

Holding Company and which was properly

account for and utilized as per its term and

condition.

I ¥eTad §8 #ul  For Bhandawat & Comapny
gIce a@dR  Chartered Accountants
T TSI HT: 000497 FRN: 000497C
g/- sd/-
W PAR SIS Shubham Kumar Jangid
AEIeR  Partner
FEHRAAT W1~ 473715 Membership No. 473715
SLAE.UT : UDIN: 25473715BNIOFD8847
254737 1591.07.3178.371.7% . 81.8847
FUM: SIYYR Place: Jaipur
fTe : 23.07.2025  Date: 23.07.2025
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W ol URierd i RUIE o1 ey -3t

ANNEXURE D TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(31 9ref 2025 @I FHE a¥ & faxfiy fJavon w® AR
HTeed forfics & Al @1 R W@dF ol uRiad Hi
S} feien &t R it o 7 & @meaR dREms | delfa)

1. @O A goiTd S Wi o (Hesegenddt) & day
4 ot 3T /3 af faegd Repis 781 @1 8187
faroi iR Rafef & evm@ ®, g7 URF®
Hesegasdt, af & qRM uRaeH, |ufy, T 3R
U H ERATART M 3R AZSH IR TRh ARA
Afed THIe Higsegengdt & Feamud axa H
argmref B facfig faemon W gqent ueE uar e
BILERE]

2. @O Afdhel TR gRT YHIRIG Hod & SMER W
3rae Huftrl Bl gsiiepd fhaT 81 dut Ioa Uahfa
g 3R Yot e 3 Sfrd Repts 7 v < 2 oi
gfery 3o urifies et iR foa=or & arma o g9
SHuT hHY FuRy, T 3R Suawu, Hiesegamgdt,
TeIERT 3R @ TR G UG &1 gl ofTH |
arFmef

3. SHU It Hultrl R fIfed 9o ugfi & R wR
qIBR oM @l 8, olfh] o Jufedl § SN St
T 2013 & dgd FfdE 2024 d& R A
AT -GR—ATel dGaldt Y&t & Ud drel a¥ § gafafey
gaTg el foram T 81 3raet Aufrl & Sfud Rt
FT0 G & 31919 H g9 fai i faaro R s v
R feoquft e o araef €

(Referred to in “Basis of Qualified Opinion”

paragraph of our Independent Auditor’s Report of

even date to the members of the Sambhar Salts

Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2025.

1.

The company has not maintained detailed
record of work order/scheme in respect of
Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP). In absence
of these details and records, we are unable to
verify the opening CWIP, additions during
the year, amount transferred to property,
plant and equipment and closing CWIP
including unused material at sites. The
impact of the same on the Financial
Statements is not ascertainable.

The company has capitalized the fixed assets
on the basis of value certified by Circle in
charge. The company is not maintaining
proper records of revenue nature expenditure
and capital expenditure and therefore in
absence of proper relevant records and details
we are unable to ascertain the impact of the
same on Property, Plant and Equipment,
CWIP, Depreciation and Profit of the
company.

The Company is charging depreciation on
fixed assets on written down value method
but in some assets, rates are varying year to
year from rates specified under Companies
Act 2013 till 2024 and no prior period effect
has been taken in current year. In absence of
maintaining proper records of fixed assets we
are unable to comment on the impact thereof
on the financial statements.
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HUH 7 P B oikal D gRAD! ¥ YU HRATAT B
HHARAT & 100% @d T 294.72 NG Irafed fag
21 39 I HHTRAT T Aa M g S fA9y ®u |
13711, & forw v = 3 § Y eRaie Y et
JFFERoN & fIwia 21 3fud Repis /favor & e
4, g9 faciiy fa—ull R g33eh o R feoauft e |
aramef §| HUH 7 T SRIfer & HHETRAT & da
P AL B oE gradt J dfed fhar g,
AfehT W PRl & AaTgRT el 2l g
Ao fifies 6 oxar g § gof fohar mar & <
Q- 15 & IR Tl &

R Y TR U, SR o7, MYfeferdf, IhaR,
U 3R 31T, FeTh A FEfed quamn, g fafde
ST 3fR 1R qer o sfie 3R oy e 9y A
US §1 S 1T, I A off FH1E™ & a1 gt *fk
JAYGD AR b 31efiH &1 Sfua Repls / faaxur &
e ®, g forir faavon wR g9 g wR feoquft
a1 § armef B

& 3MMUBT &I A AT T wrgae fafics
DT HIaN B &b foTg fhY T ¥ 95.00 ARG 39T &
I P 37R BT e § 31k fUset arer | I8
st ot & dad o S &1 81 dut
GRT JUeted FRIY Y fJeR0r 3R RBIS & FAR
fIfrr et & B & IR & oy W o mam)
9 UPR IR J Ugl 19 Pl IF AT T feeh
R foxamar w8 3R Hesegensdt o 31 i
e 31fere IR fm@mIT T B

e pr TR ST

IS A TG AT 301,12 & 3R Ig T
foparm T o1 o Stey oft |7, 0. o7, &t ieaef FhRIcHS

<

The company has allocated 100% expenses of
head office staff in the books of accounts of the
company of 3294.72Lakhs. It includes the
salary of staff who are not exclusively
working for SSL which is in contrary to
matching concept of accounting. In absence of
proper record/details, we are unable to
comment on the impact thereof on the
financial statements. The company has
allocated the staff salary of head office in
books of accounts of the SSL but terminal
benefits of such staff is account for in books of
accounts of the Hindustan salts Limited
whichisnotinaccordance with AS-15.

Old balances are lying in Trade Receivables,
Trade Payables, Suppliers, Contractors,
Loans and Advances, Staff Related Liabilities,
Other Misc. Deposit and Advances and other
debit and other credit balances. Further, these
Balances are also subject to confirmations and
necessary adjustments upon reconciliation. In
absence of proper record/details, we are
unable to comment on the impact thereof on

the financial statements.

We draw your kind attention to payment of ¥
95.00 Lakhs made to M/s Sanbros Spares Pvt
Ltd towards canvas roofing and the same is
showing under head CWIP since few years.
As per details and records provided by the
company expenses incurred for roof repair of
various buildings. To this effect profit before
tax is overstated to that extent and CWIP is

overstated to that extent.

Intereston Loanto HSL

As Per Board Approval Item No. 301.12 it was

approved that whenever SSL’s net worth will
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g oeht, fR3n.fer. v o 3 foeal | derena s
& AT TS DT YR PTA el B, Afhe baet
2021-2022 H oIGT JHIh| H S8 [HD TS o AT
IR R A S P @YU T A g1 SR
fReprs / faaur & arra o, g facfiar faa—ur o= g9
TG R feoqoft o o aRamef €

HUT I GIRT 37TS T3 FAfear wfdsan

&1 et e fIfre fahan /ualt @1 agfua Ay
3R 3BT FAT ATE B | BTeAfeh, DBt TeeT GIRT
39 U H IS UR A o |

(ranfa. fsors & Ot T9e Saares & § =v

ST TTeT PV 1 & F+mfor 8 3199.71 g

& P MY P e H IS

(31) DUt A S Uider R QT STRY fhu famT eiy
TH1IT STIC I UTH TeT— 1 X b YR R fAfe
Afhert & Aqgr i & forq wrf aneer vall o

UeH o f&ar, S dut wa Hifd 2023 &
g 8, STafds dhut fifeT & 38R, T 5 A’
q ftre & RS ey Gelt fAfder ufhar &
e | UG by ST &

ST 7 qepiIh] AGS! Pl GRT U AT T
B 31T UG {3 &1 STRARA Aaa! Y &
femfor 2 Tl 3TIQeT UG e A g, ot A
WG THTOT uF UTH TE fpar g 3R ey
ep-eht ararary oft gt 78 & & | U b o

become positive, HSL will recover the all-
short payment of interest along with penal
interest in one or two installments but the
company has not provided the provision of
interest from differential rates along with
penal interest in books of accounts w.e.f. 2021-
2022. In absence of proper record/details, we
are unable to comment on the impact thereof
on the financial statements.

Tendering procedure followed by the
management of the company

We would like to draw your kind attention on
inappropriate allotment of various tenders to
give unreasonable advantage to specific
vendor/parties. However, no refinement in
the same procedure was done by the
management of the company.

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order of X
199.71 Lakhs for Construction of new RCC
surface well Brine in various salt production
areas at SSL unit.

(@) The company has awarded work order
for surface wells in different circles to
the parties on the basis rate of L1
received from Om Prakash Jat without
floating tender on Gem Portal which is
against the Company Purchase Policy
2023 whereas as per Company Policy,
work order more than ¥ 5 Lakhs to be
awarded through open tender
processing.

(b)  The company has awarded such work
order without fulfilling the technical
criteria. Before awarding the work
order for construction of RCC surface
well, the company has not obtained
experience certificate of the any
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7 v’
FrawTactt &1 JTgUTe by T & Rl arrqer awarder to whom work has been
Jafed & fear mar € @ik Sy hi Ffer allotted and other technical
AR o1 SFET e T B vEEE 3 78 SR qualification also not fulfil and work
3T o5 SN et ep=fiehl TGl Y o)1 v order has been allotted without making
@& TS, Eiee @ e a2 R compliance of company’s Purchase
_ : . . Manual and violated the tendering
Wﬁ%ww%ﬁ@%qﬁﬁyﬂ policy of the company. The
d Management process the file without

checking whether parties are fulfilling
technical criteria or not by the violation
of Company policy in favour of
contractors.
(F) ot o Ui & 71emd | % 21.71 (c) The Company has awarded contract
BT 3BT U fhar g, oifdhT 3% 3MUR W through Gem portal of ¥. 21.71 Lakhs
ST Qe & ey } e s fhe & but on the basis of this ¥.178.00 Lakhsof
178.00 7R3 PT BR STERT aw e 7T work has been allotted without floating
Sl il st AR b G 8 8 o PR tender through Gem Po}ftal whilch is noo’{
: 3 : as per Company Purchase Policy an
S e e et g1 Tl de\I/)iation fljorr? Policy is alsZ not
d approved by Borad of Directors.
HUHT 7 37U IR H ISP T © b opar ifey o O In reply of Company, it has mentioned
1.5 & AR, e W Yy e o ARy & that as per purchase policy para 1.5,
Rt} ofY e BT ST PR BT IR &1 S 1.5 CMD has power to violate the any
o clause of the policy. The Clause 1.5 is as
under: -
/el Viichan frrmaelt & ey § foeer et Deviation with respect to the
BNTT| SRATYRYT AT H, 31edel Ug e e & Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual
fers ;qaqﬁg:[ q, ar;_\q'—i—aﬂ:[ IR TR, T PRUN A shall be rare. In exceptional cases,
feFereT Y SHRY & T bt 2| i 1 G gfie deviation may be permitted for
el 2 e ¥ aree T e T e o recorded reasons with the specific
approval of CMD on case-to-case basis.
The deviation shall be reported to CMD
through Unit heads.
T S ¥ WY Y 9 Ig9 a1 ™ g fF In such clause it is clearly mentioned that
m/mawuﬁmﬁmﬁaﬁéswaﬁﬁwgﬁq deviation with respect to the
Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual shall
B SR e o PR-g-3W AR W berare and deviation may be records reasons
<Heret & fafre g 9, afda Ry amei T ar with the specific approval of CMD on case-
zzzza 126X Z
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1.9/, & 318 W gRT BRI Afgd e &t
LA QTS B 3R 7 oSt gRT e dr o @
TE B 3R Uit Y o Y @iz R Y s v
JEAM g adhT g |

(ii) AT &= H ¢ 4 o feior 3iR sraeass g

1 & AP P o1 T 269.93 I &b BRI A B
Maead |

(31) U 7 g e & H 7Y U o o aiiR
g g g & et & for wrf
ey At uider wR Fifagr SRt fohy fem
3TeqeT AfEG W A UTH Tet 1 &l &R b SMER
R gTfEat p fe, S ot o Aifr 2023 &
faog 8, /& dHu=t Hifd & ™R 25.00
g ¥ 31 & Hrf @it (fder ufoear &
A1 A g s £l

HUHT F T AFGET DY YRT Y T T
orf ey fear &1 9 g & H AU iH &
foefor 3R emaeas g o & e &
forq @Rl emee & | Ugel, dut A R oft
SHER Pl B Iafed far g, DT gy
THOT UF UTH &l far g 3R e daidh!
et @1 SFUTed fhu famm @rf ey
arrafed famam mm 81 ee 7 ShRY & gar §
qIfEat qapidht FFGe @ T aR @ € A
&, Prgel T ufhar § geT fean

(%)

(ii)

to-case basis but in such cases neither
deviation has beenreported by the unit head
of SSL along with reasons nor deviation has
been approved by the CMD and work has
been allotted to awarder ignoring purchase
policy and interest of the company which

may cause financial loses to company.

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order of %
269.93 Lakhs for construction of new pans &
required infrastructure development in
main line area.

(@)  The company awarded work order for
Construction of new pans & required
infrastructure development in main
line area to the parties on the basis rate
of L1 received from Abdul Shahid Khan
without floating tender on CPP Portal
which is against the Company Purchase
Policy 2023 whereas as per Company
Policy work more than ¥5.00Lakhs to be
awarded through open tender

processing.

(b) The company has awarded such work
order without fulfilling the technical
criteria. Before awarding the work
order for Construction of new pans &
required infrastructure development in
main line area and the company has not
obtained experience certificate of the
any awarder to whom work has been
allotted and other technical
qualification also not fulfil and work
order has been allotted without making
compliance of company’s Purchase
Manual. The Management process the
tile without checking whether parties
are fulfilling technical criteria or not by
the violation of Company policy in
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7
favor of contractors.

(#) FfRcT qeeSt & IgER, SheR Dl P (c) As per tender documents it was
3MMAfed R H Ugel ShaR & foTq $1 g™ mandatory for the contractor to take
o eiffarf o1, of dut A fFfder Labour License before allotting the
STt o Sgiad W @ a1 sdTer fhy work to Contractor but Company has
AT T aa e b 21 allotted the work without making

compliance of such clause mentioned in
tender documents.

() e Sas & gER, afg dut & 44 (d) As per Tender Document qualified
TP UG & oI Sugeh Ur STl &, o lowest rate will be applicable for
St 3 SeqreT & § 3 AU 9 fepiyd developing new PAN in other company
) 3 FoTQ = ST ST <R A @nf, production area if company found
e e e deemed fit for PAN salt production

_ o which is only applicable to the extent of
<1 S €1 L&, i peft A et 7 g eligible contract value as per purchase
S Pl W o2 & 3R Spar 1 ekt policy but the Management of the
ARG WR R fopy 811 b Aifer b1 Sgger Company has misused such clause and
R gY U T R SFTafed fapan T 21 allotted the PAN work in violation of

Purchase Policy without considering
technical qualification of the contractor.

(8) U A 9T UIde & ATeTT | $19.28 ARG (¢) The Company has awarded contract
T ey feT 8, AifehT gxih 3o o i through Gem portal of ¥ 19.28 Lakhs but
01 & Hemw ¥ Afder S fee R on the basis of this ¥ 250.65 Lakhs of
2050.65 <Kd 1 Hrf STERa Rpar T R, work has been allotted without floating
S A B s A E o A tender through CPP Portal which is not

_ , as per Company Purchase Policy and
ferrer Ficerep siser g1 +ff rgAifed el 8| deviation from Policy is also not
approved by Borad of Directors.
POl 31 S H S5 W & i r ffd In reply of Company, it has mentioned
& WM 1.5 P SFIAR, e T a4l Faerd that as per purchase policy para 1.5,
1 Aifcr & foeft oft W 1 ST A B CMD has power to violate the any
PR 21 WS 1.5 ST TPR B: — clause of the policy. The Clause 1.5 is as
under: -
3 [ Jgae Uik framTact & dee § fraer Deviation with respect to the
g(—yqu BN SRATYRYT T B, Hxi-g—b5 Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual
IR W 3ehel U yeY FReep & R shall be rare. In exceptional cases,
SR Y 5o DR Y R Y orf &) deviation may be permitted for
& A 128 £ /A
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ST |l 81 foer &t g Sars Ul &
e 3 e T Ta=¢ 12T pl & ST |

W Es ¥ WE WU Q Sg9 B wm g b
%Y / srqde ufehar FawTaett & dae § farae gefy
BT 3R $H-T-H¥ IMYR WX INeq&T UG T¢I
fAeres & fafiTe srgmies @ forRea ol 4 fime
gl FpaT &, Aifb ¥ 7l ¥ |1.91.fo1. & 31
TR gRT A &l RN afeed farerer S s & mg &
3R 7 8 ereyer vg yay fRARerd gRT fme™ &
Hordt St 7 R 3R Hut i s e iR R
Q! FRA gY P Imafed faar w8, o
HUt ! faefta e gl adhar gl

(iii) B9 <73 &7 ¥ T9P IcUTGT & forw Brf smer &
e H Ffe | (sht vy arorsifora)

(31) T IR ST Deede™ du+t gRT i o9 o
TP UG BT BRI TAH IR AT PR
Fot & e R st my aeiferar @
aafed fpam g, S Ut Y s A
2023 & 3FTHY T ¢ TEET GRT SFFAIGH
BT & AT P ATHY T &1 PRI AR b
AR, IIGT DRI dhael I IhGR GRT
feparr 11 Senelt & R 41 ot fomfor o &,
A dHu=ft gRT 3 ol T Ut A& foba
TR

() H9d IR AT dvgae™ duHT F 3ae fapa
3 IR P TR & HRU Ig TP SATGH BT BRI
T FTSIferT Bl g AT AT &
3R Heferd el =1 oft Aicefie uega &t
5 dfcs PRl arcer fvfY aFg @Y ERdTaRd
<TEl feba i1 el it & e 1St b Rt

(iii)

recorded reasons with the specific
approval of CMD on case-to-case basis.
The deviation shall be reported to CMD
through Unit heads.

In such clause it is clearly mentioned that
deviation with respect to the
Purchase/Contract Procedure Manual shall
berare and deviation may be records reasons
with the specific approval of CMD on case-
to-case basis but in such cases neither
deviation has been reported by the unit head
of SSL along with reasons nor deviation has
been approved by the CMD and work has
been allotted to awarder ignoring purchase
policy and interest of the company which
may cause financial loses to company.

Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for
Production of Salt in main line area. (Mr.
Manish Bajdolia)

a)  Production of salt in PAN constructed
by M/s Veer Teja Construction
Company has been allotted to Mr.
Manish Bajdolia on the instruction of
M/s Veer Teja Construction Company
which is not as per Company’s
Purchase Policy 2023. The approval by
the Management is not as per Company
Policy. As per work order production
work can done only by contractor who
has constructed PAN but such terms
have not been complied by the
company.

b)  M/s Veer Teja Construction Company
made application that due to tax
burden he wants to transfer the work of
production of salt to Manish Bajdolia
and concerning staff also made note
sheet that since the work order can’t be

4 129 X

v,

2




%

g, THH SUIGT Bl DRl HA dR Sl
PRI HU B A R Y ot ier
P Irafed w1 I g iR T8 Aranfa. &
Hem UIRIHR GRT AT B I8 TUE w4 |
B Y IR-IRER BTN &1 7T B
y§Ed GRT AT fIfY & favg av-uRER
GakaoEd

(iv) A T3 & § THS SIS ¥ PIATQeT e |
IR (IFgE et

31)

3t I dveaed duet grr g o9 o
TP IUTG BT Hrf F=t sft 9 deeam
Bt & frer oR sft I g et by errafea
fopam mam 8, S duelt Y g iy 2023 F
3T TR €l TEE GRT TgAIGH duT &t
I & gwy T8 81 U§Ed gRT STAIGH
HuHl B AT b TR @ I T B
PRRY & AR, IcUIGT B dhael T
ISR gRT fopar S Apar & R 89 @
fefor fopam g1, @fdT U=t gRT 31 91t bt
T T8 fohdT T &

I 9 ICFI U 7 3T A
IR P R &b HROT I8 FHEH IcATGH BT b st
R %9 TERY Dl geic NG BT aTgel g 3R
Taee 7 I8 off Aicdfie < 5 ax & 9T
<Ed g, TP IUGH Pl PRI WA IH
DT BT b T TR St I J@ ARt
Pl 3Tafed HeT Ifrd g 3R 39 ar.anfer. d
F& AR gRT SrgAIfed @ feam a1 &l
Ig ¥IE HU H DU Pl R-IRER SRVt

<

shifted to others but looking to burden
of tax it is appropriate to allot the work
of production of Salts to Manish
Bajdolia in place of M/s Veer Teja
Construction Company and it is
approved by Competent Authority at
SSL .1t is clearly case of tax avoidance
working of the company. The approval
by the Management is tax avoidance

practice against thelaw.

(iv) Deficiency in allotment of Work Order for

Production of Salt in main line area. (Ram
Sukh Choudhary)

a)

Production of salt in PAN constructed
by M/s Ram Construction Company
has been allotted to Mr. Ram Sukh
Choudhary on the instruction of M/s
Shree Ram Construction Company
which is not as per Company’s
Purchase Policy 2023. The approval by
the Managementis notas per Company
Policy. The approval by the
Management is not as per Company
Policy. As per work order production
work can done only by contractor who
has constructed PAN but such terms
have not been complied by the
company.

M/s Ram Construction Company
made application that due to tax
burden he wants to transfer the work of
production of salt to Mr. Ram Sukh
Choudhary and Management also
made note sheet that looking to burden
of tax it is appropriate to allot the work
of production of Salts to Mr. Ram Sukh
Choudhary in place of M/s Ram

Construction Company and it is

y/
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DT T 8| TEe GRT TgHIe fafer & g
FR-URER BT B B

(v) e samas oiR argeer &t ordf &1 Ut = BRI

(1) ST SEATSI & JTgHIR, SheR Bl HU! &

G & AR gFG g @ e
AT BT 3R U fachiar af & o7 § Reple
& foTU Ut Pl et T Tfcril P AT ShaR
GRI fRid R @l T T SR
PRAT BT, offch frfetfad A o el =

(2) TSR M AT G B A g A

3R, T 180.96 TRI Y AR | R B
famrT wrf fRsR 2023 T@ a1 ST U
qRT TR ST T, S 37t Tep qRT el 83T 2
3R TT T IUTGH H T &l FehlT &

(v)

approved by Competent Authority at
SSL .1t is clearly case of tax avoidance
working of the company. The approval
by the Management is tax avoidance

practice against the law.

Non compliances of terms and condition of

tender document and contract.

(1)

(2)

As per tender documents, Contractor
shall develop the infrastructure as per
approval of the company and submit
the proof of infrastructure developed
by the contractor along with copy of
bills to the company at the end of each
financial year for records but in

T ar farett &t mfer Hrg ik
. A 2 E;T ﬁmﬂ; following cases parties has neither
YT /<0 fT bt fdaRor et submitted copy of bills not submitted
T IR et details of payment done / amount
incurred on the same along-with copy
of invoices: -
ARt GRTETST Aleed Higde ffiics  : 80.95 @i M/S Kharagodha Salts Pvt Ltd :80.95 Lacs
TEIT SR 1 157.70 &g Mahadev Contractor :157.70 Lacs
NENE N :7.89 e Ram Raj Choudhary : 7.89Lacs

As per agreement with Contractor Ram
Raj Choudhary, development of India
of ¥ 180.96 Lakhs to be completed on or
before December 2023 which is still not
completed and it may cause of losses of

production of salt. The management of

PTHIET o fecil a1 e e < the company is not looking after the
VT ¢ SIR FSAT S P uTerT T P interest of the company and making
91g I SBGR o YA el o 3T 81 payment to contractor even after non -

compliance of MOU.

v,

(V1) FTaT ® 100 TFTTaTe Bt 4RI WR Fott RIS
P forg vasid v A Tt forfies & |91y SuAT &
frpR Asia (3MRYR) d BT

(VI) Deficiency in right to use agreement (RUA)
with SJVN Green Energy Limited for
100MW ground mounted solar power
projectat Nawa.

HUHT = AT H 100 WETE 6t - R AR SHott g

& 4 131 X /A
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& foTq Torelies 9 Gt forfiice o arer SUarT &
arftrrR mei (STReT) fmar T & ofiR |wsiiar
U9 & AR BRI Toidl P TN &
IRPR T B T rafdr & e T Bt wfld
aIfifep gJeh & oot A BT 5% DI G A dab TR &
wU H YoH Ue Pl ARl ARG {GR&T SHT B
I / STHT AT 81T, elfeh huit 7 T34.15 &g
1 T Sep MRS € e o B

fRgerd quse At wort & fBems ffage st ax 3Et 81
YU T STaTd Sd Bdr & b pu=t Y Afder aftear o
[epdT 21 394 ofier fafdrsr srfRfaaarsii & arvr, faxi
faaxon o= 3 TR U1 BT U T YT TR B

PR & AT FHSI P IMJAR, SHGR Pl AT -G~
ATt A& BIRTe AT 81T & IR e g1RIeT 1 8F &t
RAfeT H IeuTee AT Rt ST el § ifd doett
R T AT ST e Y 9Tt b SR T2l & AR ot
& Rl & AT &1 Tee gRT 3T HEIed Piider )
¥ 35.24 AR, B GRTENST ek Migde forfies i)
9.67 @R IR I IS TR R 38.68 ARG @l
SJHFAT sy & foly AT R ST T 39 MR w®
¥ T I T 53.59 AIRI A P g1 T qer fAfde
ST 1T 39 ST T ST SIS TS &1 B A
SRRt @1 TS fhaT & S HFGE! & 3FET TRl R
aMGel 4 IR, faTe qETeE AR o 3 W g
&1 Tep PO GRT, GART Y& GRT 3R TRRT QT GRII
ShamReft AT 15 AT o iR TR &t Sl 8, S
15 7 &A1 3 iR sreer v vawe Qe gRT gaTg
& S 2 3R 15 AT & ficR TH 9w < S g,

<
agreement (RUA) with SJVN Green Energy
Limited for 100MW ground mounted solar
power project at Nawa and as per MOU
Implementing agency shall pay/ submit a
refundable security deposit @5% of the total
amount of annual charges including taxes
payable for entire duration of right to use
agreement in the form of bank guarantee to
the first party but company has not taken such
bank guarantee of ¥ 34.15 lakhs

The Company is continuously giving the
tenders without following company policies
and against the Borad Approval. The reply
of the Management indicates that there are
financial irregularities in tendering process
of the company which may cause of suffer
financial losses to the Company. Due to
various uncertainty involved, consequential
impact of the same on Financial Statements
is not unascertainable.

As per agreement with contractor, the
contractor has to achieved target year to year
and in case of non-achievement of target
production penalty has to be levied but the
Management of the Company deferred the
penalty till finalization of the contract which
is not as per term of contract and against the
interest of company. The Management
deferred the penalty leviable of ¥ 35.24 lakhs
on M/s Mahadev Contractor,R 9.67 Lakhs on
M/s Kharagodha Salts Pvt Ltd and %8.68
lakhs on Ram Raj Choudhary for future. To
this effect profit for the year under stated by ¥
53.59 Lakhs and Misc. Deposit overstated to
that extent.The company has constituted
DRC which is not as per norms. As per norms
Dispute Resolution Committee consist 3
members. One by Company, another by Party
and third by mutually both. DRC report to be

y/
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10.

11.

12.

I AHCT HEIRRIAT & foly HoT S| <ifd
qrarfer. & Sfisfier (an) @ik Arsnfer. & o=y 3
ACHT Y regerar § SIRHT a1 Te foha B, atfdet
T SPeR & fopeft off wewr ot wfefer 7 e
g, S AFGS] & TgRY el ¢| Ul BT FEE HichaT
3R fIeft & TTUTeA BT THI TR YTl g1 dRall ©
31R 99 St I freitar Jersa &1 Aeha 2

3R e STy (fevaoft e 32)

&n ot faavon & fevquft wvear 32 &t @R e
& ST PRl & | Buit 7 fachi feron wR dfed
YhGH! & THTT &1 Gl el fopa 21T

AT & IAHTE AR AT F PRI, 9 39 R
feoquly e o srAmef &1

feouult \wear 1.19 <, =reg ad § oAt 7 Hif §
uRac forar & s st fad srafdr & e raf o
fopar o ey =AY af & -1 fawor A Afefera
foparm SITE, @ifdhe fUset af 1 @ us emverfia et
TR $HPT PIE TG & 9T 21 Hut 3 frel af &
TR ITa @RI T 97.04 TR A Tl Bl pl
o Y & - T A Sfie @ e & iR arrel
s & 1Y 7 260.96 TRF B AR PR &1 2,
ST ergien fiforl & o 81 39 TR, T ay &
A ¥ 260.96 ARg 21fere garfar W g iR ey
TTe] IRFURTT ¥ 94.58 @RF 31feres go1fs T8 & 3iR
R—arel uR¥AUfRET 2166.38 Rg 31fda garfs T
2l

B9 3MYepT &1 faxiir o &t fevquft v 20 6
3R I o= &, s R Ry«

ciRicg & IR T 9.19 oG &Y ASHNG

10.

11.

12.

submitted within 15 days thereafter within 7
days by CMD hearing and 15 days to be
dissolve otherwise matter refer to arbitration.
But SSL constitute DRC under the
chairmanship of GGM(O) and other 3
members of SSL but has not include any
member of contractor which is not as per
norms. The Management of the Company is
not punctual in adherence of process and
legal compliances and which may cause of

financial losses to the Company.
Contingent Liabilities (Note No. 32)

We draw kind attention to Note No. 32 of
Financial Statements. The company had not
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
financial statements.

Due to absence of information and
uncertainty involved, we are unable to
comment on same.

Refer to Note No. 1.19, in current year the
company has change policy that expenditure
incurred on kaccha work in a particular
period will be included in the statement of the
profit and loss for the same year but effect has
not been made on deferred expenses lying
since last year. The company has debited
Kuccha work from last year deferred revenue
expenditure of ¥ 97.04 Lakhs in profit and loss
account of the year anddeferred ¥ 260.96
Lakhs in next yearswhich is contrary to
accounting policies. To this effect current year
profit is overstated by ¥ 260.96 Lakhs and
other current assets is overstated by ¥ 94.58
Lakhs and Noncurrent assets is overstated by
3166.38 Lakhs.

We draw your kind attention to Note No. 20 of
the Financial Statements whereby plan assets
of ¥ 9.19 Lakhs over and above the defined
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uRFURRIT &l gdiea &g & ®Y H g1l 1 8, Sl benefit obligation have been shown as
WH-15 CRRICE & 3R SRR RICR AR Prepaid Expenses which is inconsistent to the
: compliance of AS-15.Also, the company has
ot iR, 2013 Y SRR 111 % R 1 & pli f AS-15.Also, the company h
IR PHAN! T P THSIBROT DY e T not Comphid Wl;h the DfISCIOSure
: i t of “Employee Benefits” as per
— requiremen
T 8 Division I of Schedule III of Companies Act,
2013.

13. IR<Ifde Hegib RUIE b SFTAR, AH-BIH IR 13, As per the actuarial valuation report, gratuity

4 IuSH I T19.95 oIRg St T STHT I1(RY 2T, expense should have been recorded in the
g A oI — fraRur o ¥ 5 45 &g rofit ana loss statement o . akh, but
a1y profit and 1 f ¥19.95 lakh, b
eI 21 39 YR, 9Te] a¥ T o 3 14.50 TG the management has shown only X 5.45 lakh
P e e £ Sr ] A o e e in the profit and loss statement. To this effect
the current year profit is overstated by ¥ 14.50
PH G |

TR lakh. and current Liability is understated to

that extent.

14. g7 focfig foovor & geg @8 @aFgRi SUIR 14, We draw attention to Note No. 6 Regarding
(Herfrafy o) & Ay F fewuuft dwear 6 &Y 3R Death cum Retirement Gratuity (Retirement
M 3Mhd wxd g, gy garr i g b Benefit), to the financial statement, which
31.03.2025 % SUGH & folU <gaT gl § describes that Liability for Gratuity as on
% 82.12 oG Ve P TE off, SifhT wH-15 & 31.03.2025 was provided for ¥ 82.12 lakhs in
et amaeTes Brer el R o e &, ot the books, but no investment was made as

-, . . N required under AS-15. Also, the company has
e 2018 I STgegel 1% o & not complied with the Disclosure
3TTAR HHART AT P UHCIDRUT Dl STGLIDBAT BT . “ o
_ requirement of “Employee Benefits” as per
SOeRIS el foam 8| Division I of Schedule III of Companies Act,
2013.

15, facfia af 2024 -25 & forq ovaT gl IR ST 15, There is a difference of ¥ 4.71 lakh in turnover
Uicer & €9 g fosht T3 4.71 ARG BT AR E, S between the books of accounts and the GST
et & foru Jifda &1 fret™ & e &, 89 duht & portal for the financial year 2024-25, which is
Rrefier Ra=oT UR 59 T IR Feooft ey  aeef pending for reconciliation. In the absence of
8 reconciliation, we are unable to comment on

its impact on the company's financial
statements.

16. SUHT BT AR AT GRT 6y M0 Aifs @@ 16, In some heaps there are shortage of salt 75 %
RUd & IR B N T THR B 75% IR I and more as per physical verification report,
Af Y Ft 2 iR T Rad § gorfs ¥ conducted by internal committee of the
3RaT e § SR Eioid & 10 P S company which is abnormal looking to the
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Tl foham T g1 TEEd 7 &R & IR IR
BISTd & HRUN BT IR g1 [T 8 TEe 7 3 67.74
RG & IAET Biord 1 e =g fam 21 s
YHR, AT % 67.74 RI A 1M gafar mam g oik
Tep off St e crep v arferep fexamar /i 2

IS AGDBR

T ST | 000497t

g/~

YHH FHR SIS

ATPIER

AT TN~ 473715
DESIRCIEAG I

254737 1581.77.3718.311.U% . €1.8847
T: SAYR

& : 23.07.2025

<
past trend of wastage. No accounting
treatment has been made for abnormal
wastage in books of accounts reported in
physical verification report. The
Management has not replied the reasons of
abnormal wastage of heap wise. The
Management has not account for abnormal
wastage of . 67.74 Lacs. To this effect profit is
overstated by . 67.74 Lacs and Stock is also

overstated to that extent.

For Bhandawat & Comapny
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000497C

sd/-

Shubham Kumar Jangid
Partner

Membership No. 473715
UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847

Place: Jaipur
Date: 23.07.2025
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ANNEXURE-E TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(31 9rf 2025 @ T ¥ & fO<fiT fJexon R HiR
Aecd fafice & aewdl & & T8 gAY T3 okl wied
&6 S femrifera Rard & fowa o= 7ged & Aol & RETH)

3MyeRt e fevgoft 28 &t 3R anefa fsar Smar
2 oy fachi faemoll & o2 o & 2 & el
SR are] af & SRM P GRT ded B B
araferRae = Y Hifer § uRad= fmar mam 1q af
Fod B DI AR Ioa T B T g &=
=9 {35t | | Ui A arfifes foear # smferRaa
fopaT T STEf% vaveE ¥ gor ol forrr @ 6 @
B IR fpa1 T ot 7 57 g o o am 81 At
as & Y g1 fraxor § wfedyferd famam som fasfta
ifcr & ufkact & FHRor ATe a¥ & T H H. 194.00

R 1 gfg &S|

IS AGIDBR

TR USRI T 0004973t

g/~

¥ PHR SIS

ATSIER

AGHIAT HA&T:— 473715
DESIRCIERG I

254737 15¢1.77.311%.311.U% . 81.8847
TYM: SIAYR

i@ : 23.07.2025

(Referred to in “Emphasis of Matter” paragraph of

our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to
the members of the Sambhar Salts Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2025)

1.

We draw attention to the Note No. 28
regarding Kuccha Work Expenses to the
financial statements, which describes that
during year company has changed the policy
for written off Kuccha Work. In the previous
year kuccha work is deferred as revenue
deferred expenditure is being written off in
five equal annual instalments beginning from
the year in which such expenditure is
incurred whereas in current year
management has decided that the total
expenditure incurred on Kacha work in a
particular year will be included in the
statement of Profit and Loss for the same year.
Due to the change in accounting policy the
current year expenditure has increased by

3194.00lakh.

For Bhandawat & Comapny

Chartered Accountants
FRN:000497C

sd/-

Shubham Kumar Jangid

Partner
Membership No. 473715
UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847

Place: Jaipur
Date: 23.07.2025
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3TUTSAT THT0T-0
& BT erfrfm, 2013 6 aRT 143(5) & d8d
OTRd & I e Teit gRT SR e /Su-fdet &
IR 31 A1 2025 Pl THH I & Ty AR Alecsd
ferfies & arftfes el i arifse &t & 3fiR v v
& o5 g7 g5 SIRY fobu 1w gt Fdant /Su—fcen @
3TgUTeH T gl

s
(TH3TRYA : 000497 T)
8./~
YUT AR SIS
(ATASR)

IS I9IT 473715

T STIYR
feqTd: 23.07.2025

<
Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of annual
accounts of Sambhar Salts Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the
directions/sub-directions issued by the
C&AG of India under Section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have
complied with all the Directions/Sub-
directionsissued to us.

For Bhandawat & Company
Chartered Accounts
FRN-000497C

Sd/-

CA Shubham Kumar Jangid
(Partner)

M.No. 473715

Place : Jaipur
Date : 23.07.2025
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st v IR STife, A Yieiad e Ut § ARIGR
AGECINEIEEICTGINRE

o Y aarE ST Y SR Wil @l U Sk s
forRm gl

o § vvenE Efear Y SMER iR @1 dTed doM
3R SHBT UTeAT B |

o W GRI I T HEVN FPIE H DI AR AT
TR fed 18 B

TS Sfear & ufc=fe & wu §, § frAfafad o

OTeT R T gaT ol g~

o g3y AT 72 37dveror fsaer, SAMGR, I W 3R
Her AP H B |

o H 3fderuT &b SR Ul ot 1 Aot gEenan ot e
MO ST R

o H 3TheuT BT TS FHIS D fpal T ATABRY b AT

I I H IaER AT AR g BT |

o F iperr P TE IHE A T AT NI FY A
IUER 3R anferey Afed foxdt oft UaR &1 Tt

BN T BT

IS TITDR

T USi AE&T: 0004975t

g/~

YUH FHR SIS

ATPIER

AT H&T:— 473715

g 1,378 ¢

254737 15¢1.77.2118.311.U% . €1.8847
AT STIYR

& : 23.07.2025

YR P 7P Ta ggTeidr Tieis B TR AigdT & UTel= & Way o giyor

Declaration regarding adherence to the code of ethics of the comptroller and
auditor General of India

Shri Shubham Kumar Jangid partner in
Bhandawat and Company hereby declare
that:

e [ have read and understood the SAI
India’s code of Ethics

e Iwilluphold and abide by the SAIIndia’s
code of Ethics

* Idonothaveany personal or professional
interestin the audited entity

As a representative of the SAI India, I
undertake to adhere to the following:

e Iwillconduct the auditassigned tomeina
fair, honest, timely and competent
manner.

* I will maintain strict confidentiality of all
information gathered in the course of
audit.

* I will not behave or conduct myself in an
inappropriate manner with any official of
the audited entity.

* Iwill notaccept any kind of inducements,
including gifts and hospitality, directly or
indirectly from the audited entity.

For Bhandawat & Comapny
Chartered Accountants
FRN:000497C

sd/-

Shubham Kumar Jangid
Partner

Membership No. 473715
UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847

Place: Jaipur
Date: 23.07.2025
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31 AT, 2025 &I GUH a¥ &1 Ay fRufa famon
BALANCE SHEET As at 31st March, 2025
(z o=z H)
(% in Lakh)
fewoft 314w, 2025 31 9, 2024
Particulars Note Figures as on  Figures as on
No. 31 Mar, 2025 3] Mar, 2024
3. 91 Ug SRcd
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1.  siererRal & AT/ Shareholders’ Funds
(a1) (a) 3ier Goit /Share Capital 2 100.00 100.00
() (b) IRféT Ta 21fe /Reserves & Surplus 3 (497.55) (341.21)
(H) (c) MR I”< & fawg ue Al
Money Received Against Share Warrants - -
2. 3TGeH AR Igd 37T JTdeH Afer - -
Share application money pending allotment
(597.55) (241.21)
3. iR 919 g/ Non-Current Liabilities
(a1) (a) SHEfaf® IR/ Long-term Borrowing 4 - -
() (b) 3meAfid R SR (Yg) / Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
(A) (c) 3= qafaf®r giificd/Other Long Term Liabilities 5 111.48 184.50
(]) (d)<refafey ur@er /Long-Term Provisions 6 156.40 176.30
267.88 360.80
4. 91e] e/ Current Liabilities
(31) (a) 3fcurafer IUR/Short-term Borrowings 7 4,478.41 4,449.23
(3) (b)@MUR <TdT/ Trade Payables 8
(V) Tgent Sem 3R oY IeH B PoT gbRIT
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 362.49 213.66
() Gew v o ST P AATAT T TGRI
DT Pl FhIIT ST
(B) Total outstsnding dues of Creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 370.65 437.21
(|) (c) 37T =Te], giicd / Other Current Liabilities 9 523.92 372.11
(%) (d) sreumafer wraer /Short-term Provisions 10 309.96 422.95
6,045.43 5,895.16
arT/ Total 6,910.86 6,014.75
zzza 140"
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r( @
BALANCE SHEET (Contd.) (Z in Lakh)
_ feqoft 3149w, 2025 31 AR, 2024
w4 T B AP P 3D
S . Particulars Note  Figuresason Figures as on
No. No. 31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024

B  uRswufaar/ASSETS
(1) R 3] yRFFafcRIT /Non-Current Assets
(31) (a) Hufl, TIF TG IUSRT AR 3t FURT
Property Plant and Equipments and Intangible assets 11
(31) Tt ey G TG YD

(i) Property, Plant and Equipments 2,454.21 2,368.08
(ii) 37 aR|HHAT/ Intangible Assets 0.02 0.04
(iii) ot @ wTfer 9R/ Capital Work-In-Progress 206.23 224.84

(iv) fereprard amd gfReaferdi
Intangible Assets under Development - -
(@) (b) R ﬂ'l?g\ﬁg‘ﬂ/ Non-Current Investments 12 125.00 -

(4) (c) Al ax aReFafeam (<)
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 13 170.20 23.39

(]) (d) <rafafer o wa i

Long-Term Loans and Advances 14 - -
(F) (e) 3 %\'\’ Ale], YRAFYfRIT / Other Non-Current Assets 15 514.49 515.32
3470.15 3,131.67

(2) ﬂTTthlﬁﬂTCIﬁ'Ji / Current Assets
(31) (a) @TeL, faer/ Current Investments

(@) (b) Th4 / Inventories 16 2,918.05 2,001.40
(d) (c) =gmaTie wIfeIg/ Trade Receivables 17 82.87 87.51
(_C{) (d) W q m HHDE / Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 58.91 78.08
(@) (e) YT U7 U 37H /Short-term Loans and Advances 19 204.01 571.27
(R) (f) 37 drel uRAHfeRIT/ Other Current Assets 20 176.87 144.82
3,440.71 2,883.08
arT/ Total 6,910.86 6,014.75
Hgcayut orgie A $iR fachia fawon w Rouforri
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Financial Statements 1-34
TRt St A Y Her oraruRten Ruld & . s
In terms of our report of even date annemeaﬁjiﬂzereto SR HTecs ) &
IR VST 8 HUH AEE FEBR Frders qusa & for oo &1 o 4
For Bhandawat and Company For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants / FRN NO. 000497C Sambhar Salts Limited
(T v PAR STIfS) (WS IR ciep) (TR PAR) (<7< 9)
(CA Shubham Kumar Jangid) (Sandeep Kumar Tak)  (Naresh Kumar) (Sanjay Banga)
RIEEN g Temead (.99 o) e 12y 2ang
(Partner) G.GM (F&A) (Director) | e e
M. No. 473715 fiyoi/DIN: 10043608 Chairman and Managing Director
Tof : STgR / Place : Jaipur Ao/ DIN: 09353339

f&9i® : / Dated : 23.07.2025
& FEIME.TA. : 254737 1581.09.37TE. 3N.Uh.81.8847 /UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847 y
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31 9Td, 2025 P FHIT a9 BT T4 T4 I+ faamor
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025 (¢ o )
(% in Lakh)
feqoft o 2024-2025 a¥ 2023-2024
B3, faaRo e ¥ for ¥ for
S. Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. No. 2024-25 2023-24
ST
REVENUE
L. Ao J Yod / Revenue From Operations 21 4,639.44 6,566.85
II.  3M¥ 3ma/Other income 22 113.86 167.85
IlI. e 31/ Total Income 4,753.30 6,734.70
IV. <a/EXPENSES
IUAIT AR T T/ Cost of Materials Consumed - -
MR § ¥eldh &I WG/ Purchase of Stock in Trade 23 3.39 257.22
¥l # gRac/Changes in Inventories of 24
IR 1t/ Finished Goods (1026.12) (313.79)
@R ATl o/ Work-in-Progress (226.50) (107.86)
IR ¥ ¥eid /Stock-in-Trade - -
PHAR! o9 @98 /Employee Benefits Expense 25 336.43 423.14
a7 @1/ Finance Costs 26 429.18 429.38
BN U4 gRened %1/ Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 27 438.53 381.23
3 @/ Other Expenses 28 3,876.13 3,624.74
Pl 4T / Total Expenses 3,831.04 4,694.06
V.  I9arE R A U SRITERYT ¥ ifiRad Al & gd &
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items 922.26 2,040.64
VI.  3Mag oy 45/ Exceptional items - -
VI o 3@l o (o) /e Ae/
Prior Period Income (Expenses)/ Adjustments Net 29 (2.84) (24.06)
VIL. &R T YR 7S} A g a1
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 919.42 2,016.58
VIII. & ¥ qd @/ Profit before Tax 919.42 2,016.58
IX. @&/ Tax Expense:
(1) =T PR/ Current Tax 226.46 356.63
(2) 3R @R/ Deferred Tax (146.81) (23.39)
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Y Ug g1 e (SIRY) (¢ o )
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT (Contd.) (% in Lakh)

_ fewol @ 2024-2025 a9 2023-2024
EA R CE =T & ferg & forg
S. Particulars Note For the Year  For the Year
No. No. 2024-25 2023-24
fAReR afRermer 3 safd & forg amw
X.  Profit for the period from continuing Operation 839.77 1,683.34
qRATe 9¢ AR W PR 319 TP Y 3afdy &b for ey /g1y
XI.  Profit/Loss for the period from discontinuing Operation
&g by T afReTer 1 R
XIL.  Tax expenses of discontinued Operation
TR & 91g 95 gRaTed A o
XIII. Profit from discontinued Operation after tax
XIV. 3af¥r & fofw o9/ Profit for the Period 839.77 1,683.34
XV. fd §HdT 379 31/ Earning Per Equity Share 30
(1) 5e1/Basic (In Rs.) (% H) 8,397.71 16,833.40
(2) @3Pa/Diluted (In Rs.) ) 8397.71 16,833.40
Hgcaqut orgie Aifoa iR faxiir faxol w Aicw 1-34
Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes on Financial Statements
AR S¥T TR &Y er eramosien RAid & AR . A
In terms of our report of even date annexed hereto TR ¥lecy ) i
TR ST U8 U AEE AATHR Qe wvsa & forg wa it iR A
For Bhandawat and Company For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants / FRN NO. 000497C Sambhar Salts Limited
(¥l e AR wTife) (V&9 BAR <iap) (NI PAR) (<isTar qim)
(CA Shubham Kumar Jangid) ~ (Sandeep Kumar Tak)  (Naresh Kumar) (Sanjay Banga)
RIEE g qemeed (f.qd o) REticd : I
(Partner) G.G.M (F&A) (Director) RGN RARLL N
M. No. 473715 foei/DIN: 10043608 Chairman and Managing: Director

T : SIAYR / Place : Jaipur
f&Aiw : / Dated : 23.07.2025

ISR, : 254737 1581.07.378. 311.Uh.81.8847 /UDIN : 25473715BNIOFD8847

9% / DIN: 09353339
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RIS HaTg faa=ur 31 A1 2025 BT FHI a9 & ford (z @ )
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 (7 in Lakh)
feraor a¥f 2024-2025 af 2023-2024
Particulars Year 2024-2025 year 2023-2024
uRRerrer Tfafaferl @ Aes garg
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 919.42 2,016.58
Y qu g /8F/ Profit/ Loss before Tax
T/A |HEISH & forg/ Adjustments for
&R/ Depreciation 444.41 385.89
3T DX BT UG / Provision for Income Tax 0.00 -
SIS T [ Interest Expenses 429.18 429.38
o % SR R o Rord /
Capital Reserve abjusted during the year (1.01) (1.18)
JHH | JHAH/ Loss by storm - 10.57
SEIR 37fE I =T 3.
Interest Income from TDR etc. (5.71) (2.64)
§t prfefier goit & uRad= & gd uRRemem amy
B Operating Profit before working capital changes 1,786.29 2,829.83
H/ C srfefter gt H uRacfq/ Change in working Capital
IR é?JIFITSﬁ =) Eﬂ?&’/ Increase Trade Payables 82.27 181.24
=g Sefprferd SeIRAT & wHt/
Decrease Other Long Term Liabilities
3 e, gt | i/
Increase Other Current Liabilities 151.81 65.83
IR U § &t/ Decrease Trade Receivable 4.64 0.50
At urae | gfg/Increase Short Term Provision ~ 17.18 (6.82)
i é?J?ITQ =) Eﬁﬁﬁ/ Decrease Other Liabilities (92.92) 45.45
3reaTafy ko7 AR 1 H gfg/
Decrease Short Term Loans and Advances (367.26) (416.16)
3T TTef, IRAHIRT § gfg/Increase Other Current Assets (32.05) (77.15)
weid | gfg/Increase Inventories (916.65) (302.66)
3= IR ATey, uR™Fufma § oY/
Decrease Other Non-Current Assets (0.83) (251.02)
3 ¥ 99 (THEIAR) | HHY/
Decrease Other bank balances (FDR) 4.67 664.28
(412.96) (96.51)
& A 144 X /A
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Year 2024-2025

year 2023-2024

2 gRarer A uTH Fde

D Cash generated from operations

3 YA R ueae aR & forg v

E Adjustments for direct tax paid

% afReErer afafaferl @ g Jes garg

F Net Cash Flow from Operative Activities
Sht fraer nfafafer & g s wae

G Cash Flow from Investing Activities
vorrdt aReIRRE 6 @l @ Rl Ry oo
Purchase of fixed assets & Capital Work in Progress
UTH &I/ Interest received
3 IR - =1ef, URRAURT/ Other Non Current assests

gRawafa & faa I urfear
Proceeds form sale of Assets
Th.E1.3TR H 997/ Investment in FDR

g ey afafafery & Aws varg

H Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Sefprel SURT & g wfer/
Net proceeds from long term borrowing
UTH 3{9T Goil/Share Capital Received
3reuTafy IUR H Eﬂzl&' /Increase in short Term Borrowings
&ITST /3T [ Interest/ Expenses

3MTE Ahe T AP b AIHY H g yNac
I Net changes in Cash and Cash equivalent

St it g & R A Td b D FHDE
J Cash and Cash equivalent at the begining of Fin. Year

& foeiia av & o o Acbg T4 RApg Db AHDBE
K Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of Fin. Year

1,373.33
356.63
1,016.70
(511.93)
5.71
(125.00)  (631.22)
29.18
(429.18)  (400.00)
(14.51)
73.42
58.91

Tand! TaTg faa=uT oikaT A 3 & AR e fafer & I fovar mar g1

2,733.32

28.00

2,705.32

(923.52)
2.64

18.73  (902.15)

(148.60)

(1,237.22)
(429.38) (1,815.20)

(12.03)

85.45

73.42
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TR, AR A 11.40 R BU i THSISTR (el av 10.73 &g 30 (Fw01 & forg uferyferai o forg)

TAH 12 AEN 3 31f¥e & SIIeTR IR g oud (fUset af 4.67 oIRg v ) Afdferd

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on indirect method as per Accounting Standard 3

FDR of Rs. 11.40 Lakhs pledpe with SBI, Sambhar (Previous Year Rs. 10.73 Lakhs) towards securities for OD
loans)

Includes TDR more than 12 months Nil (in Previous Year Rs. 4.67 Lakhs)
faiia af & o # APg 3R THg AT

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the fin. Year
Feha! TaTE faaRUr & TR/ As per Cash Flow Statment 58.91 73.42

12 TEM 3 31f¥e U%h.E1.3TR. /FDR more than 12 Months - 4.67
fewguit 18 & AR FoI: TG 3R Thg FHDBE

Total as per Note 18 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 58.91 78.08

TR S AR Y HeAd aramaRten Ruid & R . A

In terms of our report of even date annexed hereto TR ST ) &

IR YA U8 DT IS AGIPR fraeres Fuse & forg vd 1 3k @
For Bhandawat and Company For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants / FRN NO. 000497C Sambhar Salts Limited

(e v PR STifTs) (F&y R i) (R PAR) (wiora gim)

(CA Shubham Kumar Jangid) ~ (Sandeep Kumar Tak)  (Naresh Kumar) (Sanjay Banga)
ATHER g memeyd (g9 o) [BENES : N
(Partner) G.GM (F&A) (Director) | eI A D
M. No. 473715 foei/DIN: 10043608 Chairman and Managing Director

UM SAYR / Place : Jaipur A% / DIN: 09353339

f&i : / Dated : 23.07.2025

g E3ME.uA. : 254737 1581.09.31ME. 31.UH.€1.8847 /UDIN : 25473715BNIOFDS8847

& )/
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ii.

fowgoft W= : v
31 9T, 2025 &I GHH I¥ & forg
ggcayqut o fewafor

AT BT IR

foreiar fdeRor IRT & 3 dR R Ffigpd oikgia
fygial (WRe S.u.ud) & IgHR TR fhg g
&, i ot 3Tferf=ae, 2013 1 gRT 133 & e
STfeRIfoI @IRgTehT HTeh! o JgUTeT fha ST | |

HUAT M AR TR oRgid &t Adhersel Tumell o
T SRl & JiR Ui drTa e 8iR are]
IR & 3MYR YR 3R iR g Y Hgeayquf Agl
JUTSH P 3MYR TR ggarar ¢l o e &
IR H 3YATS TS SRgieh Ao foeet a8 & 39T
T ifeRt & a7y €, Ryarr 37 it & i a@rat
& fewafor & Sfgfaa g1

AT BT SUIRT

3T AR TR wied ergic fagial & rgRey foxig
foaRunt &t ARt & foTg TEed i JrgAM iR &R
S I ST B ¢ I it faurt &t fify
R IRFURRAT &R SaIRal 61 Rurd & 78 1t
3R IerfTe SHGINAT & Tadianyr iR Ruifér
3rafey & i B Ao P UROTHT Bl gIfad el &
BTG I A IiHH TeT iR FHf & Yo &
FaH S W AR §, ol arfdes giRom
&7 oI ¥ foret 2 et &

uR¥ufR sk IeIRAT &1 are iR R-aTe] &
wY ¥ o

2013 & Igeat 11 # FufRa dufl & ame
aRETe aeh iR 3T ATGe! & AR dTef IT IR—
TTe], b w0 H g fhdT SIIAT 81 S<aTa) bl Ui
TFha! 3R Thal THDE H ITh! UIH & dtar b T

NOTE No. - A:-

SIGNIFICIANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

I

ii.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
ON 31" MARCH, 2025

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP)
to comply with accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies act, 2013.

The company generally follows Mercantile
System of Accounting and recognizes
significant items of income and expenditure
on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention and going concern basis. The
accounting policies adopted in preparation of
financial statement are consistent with those
followed in previous year except those
mentioned in Notes to Accounts.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumption that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
date of Financial Statements and the results of
operation during the reporting period end.
Although these estimates are based upon
Management's best knowledge of current
event and actions, actual result could differ
from these estimates.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as
Current and Non-Current

All assets and liability are classified as current
or non-current as per the companies normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in
schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 Based
on the nature of products and the time
between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash

2 147 X
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P YR R, P gRT YRFAURTT TR SIRAT &b
ATe]~ IR~ FHHROT & I A 12 AgH WR R
ICRIRRIE

Tehd} vraTs faeRor

Fodl garg fIavor wod-3 sl yarg favor
FufRa mr T swce [fY & smaR ® RIR
CRISISI

3afd & forq e[ oy a1 &1, g 3rafdy & wd &iiR
g Hifaal o aRed=

PO AR TR 3@ & ol gg o /&1 + gd
37afes Y AGT P FHT W fexgTa TeRI-5 37afey & forg
"' 91g AT T &1, O <rafdy it 7S 3iR eRaieT Afferat
Y gRacH’’ & UTaeT &l T acil g1 STal eRaiehT
=fifer ageft 1 8, T8t SR werdiawor +ft ez i 2

ERECAALC b G|

i ¥R 3R TR P gegie ard W B
ST &

ii. Reftsr & T$ TRt iR wWhy &1 geidd
SR OR fopam ST 8

iii. 3R IR HEH ITBRT T ¢ FTTbT DT
a¥ & SR 750/ - DR | AP ¢l a9 &
SRM @ T 750/ - B9 Th H AR
aTel Yol 3SR, IRUTe 3iR HH Tl
RIS T H gHTR foby 51Tt 2 |

iv. TH®D P I B Gedied arTd AT g ITH
I g St ot 1 g1, W R S <@ 2l
IR THD P TP DI JedihT 9 a9 h
ATTa /fosht gea a1 adqE gg Wi g
o St oft 5 &1, W T ST a8l

v. SRR o Yo 9y o 3fd N U H sfar
Tp H TS 3R B fIaRUT b MR R
S HHAT IR AR OR {1 ST g

vi. S Hed bl g D Fcld DI oAb

<

equivalent, 12 months has been considered by
the company for the purpose of current - non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow Statement is prepared on the basis
of indirect method to the extent possible as
prescribed in AS-3 Cash Flow Statement.

Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior
period items and Changes in Accounting
Policies

The Company generally follows the
provisions of AS -5 “Net Profit or Loss for the
Period, Prior period items and Changes in
Accounting Policies” by separately showing
prior period items in Net profit/Loss for the
period. Proper disclosure has also been given
where accounting policy has been changed.

Valuation of Inventories /Salt in process

i Stores & Spares are valued at the cost.

ii. Released material and scrap are valued
atcost

iii. Hospital and Canteen equipment are
those exceeding ¥ 750/- add during the
year Loose tools, Hospital & Canteen
equipment costing up to ¥ 750/-
purchased during the year are charged
to therevenue account.

iv.  Saltstocks are being valued at cost or net
realizable value whichever is less. The
old salt stocks are being valued at
cost/selling price of that year or current
netrealizable value whicheveris less.

v.  Work-in-Process is valued at cost on the
estimated quantity based on the depth
and density statement of salt
precipitated in Pans at the close of the
year.

y/
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AT 3R g I IR G S off & gl R
[ERISIGIN

e iR P Ay

foreitar fRufer faeamor o Fang 3iR g Foged ¥ d&
3R g1 # Apg 3R 12 7EH a1 S FH d g
aRUEAT & AT UhIfeldh SHT M &, 3R 12
TEe @ 31fdrep &t gRumar 3T d A9 H fwTs
STt & St gou # gRadd & ue T Sifem &
e B

8. Harfgiy ey

i UeN

T IR & Ut § Sraenfid wHaRal &
forg Gort g & Fay F Yo @ e
IR} e T, RT WRaR, T8 gt &
UTH TG 3 foha ST @1 8, ST 4o the gve
1 T ST &1

ii. SugH

®. fafa sdaial & ol §, SugH @
U9E Ub U NI e GRT fhar
SITar g, foraeh g1 et s Y. aiferdt off 21
HuT gRT FrRIfd SR & fore aef & a7
4 IUGH Il Dl AT BG Hedib Pl
f5gfh dt 21 Tegia ot RUIE & MR W,
o¥C gRT aY i ugelt aracar Bl Uet. 31 .
giferft o9 & a1g AP A Ao
sfftrs afga o w7t &l oelt &, R em-
g W1 H grfar Sirar 1 anfdes Jeiia
& fory, ver.ams <. uiferdy & enfiret ey
& AR & P& FHARK ! forar T 1

Q. Y4 HYHT P FR-IC DT IR Bt &
e S daartt sk dieHa et &
el § SUSH A I & SRR
I BT YT T STl 8

vi.  Stock of Fair Price Shop is valued at Cost
and net realizable value whichever is
Less.

Cash And Bank Balances

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance
sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and
short-term deposit with an original maturity
of 12 months or less, and Maturity more than
12 Months are shown in others bank balances
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changesinvalue.

Retirement Benefits
i Pension

The Payment of Pension regarding
pensionary charges for the staff
absorbed in the company from Salt
Department is being paid from the
Grant-in-Aid received from
Department of Heavy industries Govt.
of India New Delhi is passed on to
Pension Fund Trust.

ii.  Gratuity

a. Incaseofregular employees, Gratuity is
administered by a separate irrevocable
Trust which has taken L.I.C. Policy. The
Company has appointed actuary to
calculate gratuity liability at the end of
the year of regular staff. Based on
Actuarial valuation report, demands
made by the trust including the annual
renewal premium of the L.I.C. Policy
after taking 1st October of the year
which are charged to Profit & Loss
Account. For actuarial valuation, same
employee has been taken as per
employee covered in LIC Policy.

b.  Incase of Bundewals Company's piece-
rate workers, and Company's eligible
daily paid and seasonal workers, the
liability is provided as per the payment
of Gratuity Act.
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7
iii.  STABILT THGIHOT
oRgT a¥ & 3T AP QT NIBI B FHG BRI
& AT BT JoAidd D RAIE F IR W
yrae famar Sirar @ geaiad b Rl &
3MYR W, IET GReh! § MaID TR
fopy a2 |

9.  wufey, §IF 3R SUBRUI U4 Joug™

i orHe AUl @ Rt (fEfor ek TR W
T Afed ) TedaR Dl H e STl AT &

ii. orEe |UftRl W Joue dHuAl e,
2013 &1 gt 11 & dgad aR|uREl &
ANfes IYIF S & TR JIUTRID
JMMYR R et A fAfey R TR ugr faar
ST €, T[@T U a7e 3 ATel Pl BISHR, 40
auf o el X@T fafd R gegsr oA S
g1 95% T IAH 3NeH D HHT qP Ugel A
& JoueRT &I T3 URFURRIT & A § PIg
TR =18 oI TRIT 71T g gTedtfds, 5000/ -
BRI T IA PHH AN dTeit aRAufl W)
100% o™ UG T 1T &

iii. s dea & feid 26-09-1980 &
ol & SFAR T T Y R TR’
Heft YT ggfd (TTerH) w40 asf |

SR AT 21
10. 3Ffct wufcR
i.  URfY% qadr 3R #19 Bl gRT 3Mavdh
e i,

1 Iuft sl Mg 2, omd W
q=Ial UH €, 91 ° "9 o § F Gid

10.

<

iii. Leave Encashment

The liability for leave encashment due at
the end of the accounting year is
provided on the basis of actuarial
valuation report. Based on the actuarial
valuation report, necessary adjustments
are made in the books of accounts.

Property, Plant & Equipment and
Depreciation

i.  Fixed Assets are stated at cost (including
expenses on erection and
commissioning) less depreciation.

ii. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is
provided consistently on Diminishing
Balance Method on pro rata basis in
accordance with the over useful life of
assets under Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 except in case of
Gudha Jhapog dam, being depreciation
charged in 40 years on straight line
method. No depreciation has been
charged in the case of assets already
depreciated to the extent of 95% or
more. However, 100% depreciation has
been provided on the Assets individual
costing of ¥ 5000/- or less acquired
during the year.

iii. Depreciation on Gudha Jhapog Dam has
been charged on straight line method
(SLM) in 40 years as per decision dated
26-09-1980 of Board of Directors

Intangible Assets
i. INITIAL RECOGNITION AND
MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are required by the
company, which have defined useful

oReMeT ok WRE BIf 2R @) a9 e life, are recogtni'zeddat Costtsubseiqlient
o measurement is done at cost less
fopam STt &, < 5 wuftr @t e g accumulated amortization and
SUIRT & oy IR &= o oIy 3Taeges g accumulated impairment losses, cost
oft gcger ©U A TR 3Mh D I Mfie includes any directly attributable
Kz 150 X 7
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11.

12.

BT
il HTIATYE hAT

TP SR HURT BT T AT ¥E Y e
ST & S8 S SUAN IT SHp Huee A
afsy ¥ I anfefes oy srférd =g g 21
T URAU TR o oY g 3 Fde W e 3iR
I 1 fFeRoT e SR St uReafct
& TgT b AT JoT IReb T ST & 3IR ot
IR I el 2 fareror o H=aelT T Akl 21
i gRenem

ord uRfuRml & w9 H AEgAr W
AlFedRR Bt aFd @1 uRenes dieft war
TG IR YA & fafrep arferpr i arafer ar
3 a9 9t oft 1 B, WX T ST 21 3 nget
Rt @1 aReneq et Y@r ugfa w®

SUANT & faftres 3R fi arafdr a1 Feferd
T o ST o oft 7 &Y, IR b ST 21

ARG ST BT AT

i ol goft/fem arf & fog smeerfia geft
IS -HERIdT H FAFIANG T ST &l
AR aTett TRAUTRRI TR JeugR &l ot
SRT UTH 3FSH-\gId iR dFd 981 &
rguTe H IR Yoft M -gaT 3iR
T BRI Tt H I ST T €

ii. od Pl b og @Y oy ik gy @ o
ST fhaT ST 21

I IR FT Y q=7aT

RO / R 31R @R /AT Bl 31 AR WR IS
& YR R A F foram e & araifes o arffa an
2R fpy STt 1 A1t Y bl & Yo d uga
ST § 919 dTfied T Hgeaqul ey 3R s
GRIGR & gdia N &l Sar gl

11.

12.

incidental expenses necessary to make
the assets ready for its intended use

ii. DERECOGNITION

An intangible asset is derecognized
when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon their
disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of
an item of intangible assets are
determine by comparing the processed
from disposal with the carrying of
intangible assets and are recognized in
the statement of profitand loss accounts

iii. AMORTIZATION

Cost of software recognized as
intangible assets is amortized on
straight line method over a period of
legal right to use or 3 years whichever is
less. Other intangible assets are
amortized on straight line method over
a period of legal right to use or life of the
related plant whicheverisless

Accounting for Government Grants:

i Against the completed
Capital/Development work is
transferred to Deferred Capital Grant-
in-Aid. The depreciation on subsidized
assets is being charged to Deferred
Capital Grant-in-Aid and Profit and
Loss Account in the ratio of Grant-in-
Aid received and cost borne by the
Company.

ii. Against kaccha works is directly
credited to profitand loss account.

Recognition Of Income and Expenditure

Revenue / Income and expenditure / cost are
generally accounted on accrual basis as they
are earned or incurred. Revenue from sale of
goods recognized when the significant risk
and reward of ownership transfer to the
buyer.
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13.

14.

15.

THe &b TTP IR BioTd & forg urae

TP P IR BT AP IR [T MR W s
AT 9T T8l & b T9P P X BT ATHR
T BiaT 1 IR fdes e &t a9 FHRIS
fopaT STIaT & 519 <X Y 3ifeH ©U | AT fasar ST
21 ol of & S SauTfed /eiRd 7T 6 10%
B R A Biord & 1w grge b o € 3ik af &
SR ifom ®Y 9 I fhv 10 o’ R I1fReh
Tae (IS DI 8Y) B FHRINT A b IIQ
3ifcH U A AT el Y MY TR b e H st
TCTh IR 5% T a9 P R | yrger fopu o &1
[T T BT T BT AT

R § PRRA o Ud WML, g% |addn
IfIBRY 3R ot Afa & IreTrar g FHHaTRAT
&1 RIS AR Alecd farfics # gafar i g1

YT 3R AT

TG IR b ara (srfeprfed sradt dufal
Pl ARG & 3relTar) S a9 § T & U J ATt
STett & o a8 e o STt E|

16. 3T R BRI & forg @i

17.

DT IR AT, 1961 &b ded FfifE R
IAHT JTIPR UG xa] & 3R 3eerfig o) FufRy
3R JTReRIf R IT Y TUFT IR SR 3R R ffey
B AT b DI el & SN et fRRfy fawor 6
ARRG T STAAHT IT Beh! 8§ b SffIFIHd
& gd &1 IRUMT IR Fuferal 1 dhaet I AT
Tb =T < St 8, STg g9t Uiy i Sferd
fSf¥ydar gt 21 g fofia Rufa faaror fofér oy,
MR R gRufRl &6l ag fr @ gHfda
TTfy 3 forq grsiifare foma St 21

PICEIE]

3 gyt J 3ff¥s THT | FHRT AR W 3R
T &Y Fefterm oy & afd § Y et & SR Tee
Dl X, ST i 6w SrHfEiadr & Arer

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

<

Provision for Wastage on Salt Stocks

The Physical verification of salt heaps on
accurate and reliable basis is not feasible
because of the irregular shapes of salt heaps.
Actual wastages are adjusted as and when
heaps are finally cleared. The provisions are
made for wastages @ 10% of the quantity
produced/stored during the financial year
and @5% per annum on the opening stock in
respect of  heaps not finally cleared after
adjusting the excess provision if any on heaps
finally cleared during the year.

Apportionment of Common Corporate
Office Expenses

The Remuneration of other staff posted at
Head Office except CMD, Chief Vigilance
Officer & Company Secretary booked in
Sambhar Salts Ltd.

Research & Development

Research and development Cost (other than
cost of Fixed Assets acquired) are charged as
an expense in the year in which they are
incurred.

Accounting For Taxes on Income

The Company provides for current income
tax at the rate specified under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and the Deferred Tax Assets and
Deferred Tax Liability is calculated by
applying tax rate and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the
Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are
recognized only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty of its realization. At each
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of
Deferred Tax Assets are revived to
ascertained realization.

Provision For Bad and Doubtful Trade
Receivables and Advances

Trade Receivables and Advances
Outstanding for more than 3 years are
reviewed at the close of the year and
provision made on case-to-case basis in case

y/
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18.

19.

20.

21.

o AT - SR —-HTHT MR YR YTae= S S 21

aRafml e

yA% oy R fqavor fafyr w aRqufrit 6
T AT P e Hr Sl &1 I 3nidRep /9r=r
PRBT P YN T I BT DI Jobd erdr g, al
forett afvufcr Y ag= fd ST axgett A Afr |
31fRYep B UR &1 Y JT=rdT <) STt 21

RYFI IoRE I B 93 WY A STeAAT
TAfeTd HelT o TRIR, JTRLIFIT IoRd & &l I
a9 A g% R gY UTd aRTR ATffep ol H 92 T
4 ST ST & o U < fohat ST 2|

yeee 7 g for g 6 foedt faey af # o= aprd
R o T gt 9 I v & e -gr feaRor §
AT foharm S|

gef, TS BRI R T @, AT Ve, FelluR,
ST FaTga, fohareaR 31k e+ anfe wR fapw g
Y DY IR oG - T S 37K 3 a
3 YR Rl gU UTd I aTfiep fhedl 7 9 @t
ST SITQT FoRTs QT &3 ot T &

IR R yRASHT =T
RIS R By TU @ & g IR-adq=
IRATfRR & w9 @R ST @ 3R 99 ay H
TNt/ Pelied e S R meed g
RASHT B AR R @1 ol forn ST 2
3T, A e aRASHT B AL el vt / §ig
PR BT ol e 8, O ot oo R =g S
¥ & o IR B & fIaror § arot fman S @
Rraw v fofa foram S g1

S qdf &l TreTe & yRUTRERY I H G &
3iR AT & afee &Y Fra @1, O FIdT uH
aRA & forg gafe Jmm o e iR AU & I8
Y| D IRAURFT B F ar 7= of

18.

19.

20.

21.

of uncertainty in the realization of
outstanding amount, in the opinion of the
management.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed
ateach Balance Sheet date. Incase thereisany
indication of impairment based on
Internal / External factors, an impairment loss
is recognized wherever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Write off of Deferred Revenue Expenditure

As per practice in vogue, the deferred
revenue expenditure is being written off in
five equal annual instalments beginning from
the year in which such expenditure is
incurred.

The management has decided that the total
expenditure incurred on Kacha work in a
particular year will be included in the
statement of Profit and Loss for the same year.

Expenses incurred on P.Way works and
related expenditure, i.e. rails, sleepers, dog
spikes, fixtures and fastenings etc. are treated
as Deferred Revenue Expenditure and
written off in five equal annual installment
beginning from the year in which such
expenditureisincurred.

Preliminary and Project Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects is shown as
other non-current assets and will be charged
/ capitalized in the year in which it is decided
by the management to implement the project.
Otherwise, in case, the management decides
not to implement / close the project,
expenditure on such project is charged to the
statement of Profit & Loss for the year in
which such decision is taken.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities &
Contingent Assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of

estimation and measurement for recognized,
when there is present obligation as a result of
pastevents and itis probable that there will be
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¥ 1000/ - & 20,000 FHAT 3791

(7 a9 20,000 HHAT 379)

20,000 Equity shares of ¥ 1000/ -each
(Previous year 20,000 Equity Shares)

forifaa, s1fYe< va ued
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

yd% T 1000/~ & 10,000 FHAT 37
(7a a 10,000 HHT 379)
10,000 Equity shares of ¥ 1,000/ - each

(Previous year 10,000 Equity Shares)
INT/ Total

fewouf} : o 7 S 3ier e TR SR fhu &

Note: The company hasissued the above shares as under:

7 v’
STt g 3fR 7 & forcfr foaont & Set e an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets
ST 21 3R oeiRal, Ife wifte & o are neither recognized nor disclosed in the
Rroufr & e W spe B e £ financial statements. Contingent liabilities, if
material, are disclosed by way of notes.
22, SYRFT 22. Borrowing Cost
IRy gRgufrl & ifemrgor, T a7 Icre b BT Borrowing costs that are attributable to
BN aTell SR AR BT Wit IRRIURRN B AT B acquisition, construction or production of
o iR qualifying assets, are capitalized as part of the
few éﬂsqﬁf T ST 81 0 At cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an
T T afteafer & o gfebsct Sua & forg TR 8 asset that necessarily takes a substantial
Y Qe A T g1 3T A YR o &l ART A period of time to get ready for intended use.
SR g1 o freRur o 1ot Bt STl 21 All other borrowing costs are charged to the
Statement of Profitand Loss.
23.  GIfd Y& YhIHRoT 23. Related party Disclosure
FHut RIFRE, 2013 & GRT 133 & dad As per Accounting Standard 18 “Related
SRR ol I 18 SR s TR % Party DlSClOSLleeS as notified under section
) ) ) .. 133 of Companies act, 2013, the company has
SR, ot 7 feeoft e 31+ Frafiv wafera entered related party transactions as set outin
el oiFie | yde fopam &, i Ut b feeil b wrer Note No. 31, which are not likely to have a
TIRIG T FHTGT Tl 2 conflict with the interest of the company.
31 971e 2025 B FUTH a¥ & forv faxiiy faxor = fewafor
Notes on Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March ,2025
feugut e 2 3ier goft 3191, 2025 B STids 319, 2024 &Y Tids
Note No. 2 Share Capital Figures As On 31-03-2025 Figures As On 31-03-2024
e
Authorised

200.00 200.00

100.00 100.00

100.00 100.00

QUG 3791 guf UGt & ©U H PRR & dad A g H UTH fohd o1 ST 6 21

The above shares are alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being
received incash

{31 1.10.1964 I AR AT ST DI IRNATARRIT 3R SIATRAT & ATEUT Dl Vel H &R o=t 37 (gt AlecH
AP T (SR ¥ & 31yaT SR g FAIIT eafaidl o i &) uf e Ui T 1,000/~ & 6,000 39T |

6,000 shares of ¥1,000/-each fully paid up to the Holding company viz Hindustan Salts Limited
(in its own name or in the name of its Nominees) in consideration of taking over of Assets and
Liabilities of Sambhar Salts Unitas on1.10.1964.

y/
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A . PIUHTERY 31aTE 3 SRR e MIBRT Y TasT H ISR FRBR b guf Ugd U 31,000/ - & 4,000 37T |
4,000 shares of ¥ 1,000/ -each fully paid up to the Rajasthan Govt. against their Royalty Rights in
terms of V.T.Krishnamachari Award.

B % UTT aet T & Aol & 3ier § Rig T 3T gl ST 8, T 99ed 1000/ - 21 3f#het AT &1 s aRS
Tfcl I”R Teh i 3R U= gRT AT AT Y g 2l

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of
1000/ -. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and dividend as and when

declared by the Company. _ o
mﬁ%wﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁ Sfepct RR g At rfem 3Rt & faeRoT & 91g ol Y 9w aRauftRl 8 § 3o oft
UTH &~ & EhGR BT |

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
any of the remaining assets of the company, after the distribution of all preferential amounts.

dAle-2.1: 5% A AfP AR 3G aTet ILTIRST BT fAa=or
NOTE -2.1 : Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares

31 97, 2025 &I 3AThe 31 9T, 2024 &Y 3Ahe
Figures As On 31-03-2025 Figures As On 31-03-2024
s34 TH afoft &Y &TROTT o afert oM
SNo Name ik BT % &) FE BT %
No. of % of No of % of
Shares Holding Shares Held  Holding
fegw ATecd fafics
1 Hindustan Salts Ltd 6,000 60 6,000 60
NSRRI HXhR
2 Govt of Rajasthan 4,000 40 4,000 40
P
Total 10,000 100 10,000 100

Ale-2.2 : 99 b SR FHRT 3720 HY AT BT fara=or
NOTE -2.2 : Details of number of Shares Outstanding during the Year

31 9T, 2025 B3NP 31 9T, 2024 B 3NHS
Figures As On 31-03-2025 Figures As On 31-03-2024
et i Gl o7 3fert At
| i 61 g
No. of In No of In
Shares Lakhs Shares Held Lakhs
¥ 6 TR H FHRIT 7
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the Year 10,000 100 10,000 100
¥ & R IR fhY T IRR
Shares issued during the Year
¥ & SRE I TN TV IRR
Shares bought back during the Year - - - -
¥ & T H PRI IRR
Shares outstanding at the end of the Year 10,000 100 10,000 100
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7 e ) : <)
qIc 2.3 : ¥ & 3T H THISR] gIRT 9T 39T
Note 2.3 : Share held by Promoters at the end of the Year
31 9T, 2025 &I 3AiBS
Figures As On 31-03-2025
HF. TR A RO ot el % ¥ & IR
SNo Promotor Name T BT % gRads
of % of total % Change during
Holding Shares the year
fegw wrecd fafics
1 Hindustan Salts Ltd 6,000 60 -
NS IRDR
2 Govt of Rajasthan 4,000 40 -
P
Total 10,000 100 -
31 9, 2024 & 3PS
Figures As On 31-03-2024
HH. TR B AW gifesT ol IR % a4 &b IR
S No Promotor Name FT BT % gRad
of % of total % Change during
Holding Shares the year
feged Hieed fofics
1 Hindustan Salts Ltd 6,000 60 -
NS IRDR
2 Govt of Rajasthan 4,000 40 -
P
Total 10,000 100 -
(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
31914, 2025 31 A, 2024
feogutt-3 Jafafd sar B DS B 3PS
Note No 3:- Reserves & Surplus Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
v, it amRfar
A. Capital Reserve
URfE 9
Opening Balance 1,041.94 1,041.94
SNS: I Y TR
Add: Current Year Transfer - -
aifem Ay
Closing Balance 1,041.94 1,041.94
/
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7 <
3149, 2025 31 44, 2024
fewauft-3 Srafafy SuR @I 3MHS EARCIC
Note No 3:- Reserves & Surplus Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
1. ST 4ot 31S/B. Deferred Capital Grant
TR AT
Opening Balance 15.17 16.35
SITS: G gy FATROT
Add: Current Year Transfer _ _
15.17 16.35
TTIY: N Jode H | URMYS auf § SFar T gedh e T
Less: Adj.as depreciation less charged in Early Years - -
geTd: eI & w9 § AR
Less: Adjusted as depreciation 1.01 1.18
14.16 15.17
. ey
C. Surplus
TR A
Opening Balance (1,399.36) (3,082.69)
ad & fory s / (geH)
Addition / (Deletion) for the year 839.77 1,683.33
(559.59) (1,399.36)
3. IR qea I g b A1 fady
D. Surplus with Fair Price Shop 1.04 1.04
et - -
Total (497.55) (341.21)
w RIfIT ISt EM WA H 1.0 1 g 39 &I A 39 uRAuftrl R Jeger™ & IaRice d Gafdd 8, fF W
TRBRT IS gRT FfRAS & et ]
**  InDeferred Capital Granta/camounted Rs.1.01lakhsisrelated to adjustment of depreciation on the
assets of which are subsidised by the Govt. Grants.
ek TR Hed gebT b U ST chl YUl AT goreh SepTs A e €, TorAepT FeiTer huil GIRT eI &b olH &
forq fépan T 21
*** The whole amount of Surplus with fair price shop isrelated to the seprate entity which is operated by
the company for the benefit of the employees.
559.59 aTg B0 (fUeet af 1399.3 &g &I Tl &I Bl Q& 8, DU GRT qY o QIR PIg TIel Bl
el fepar T 2|
In view of commulative losses amounting to Rs.559.59 lakhs (Previous Year 1399.3 lakhs), No
dividend has been declared during the year by the company

4 157 X

2




]

& A 158 K

7 v’
(z oz #)
(% in Lakh)
_ 319w, 2025 31 4rd, 2024
fewquft W 14 Jefepifers SR B oS B 3B
Note No :4 Long Term Borrowings Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
Total - -
(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
_ _ 319w, 2025 314, 2024
fequft Wi 5:- 3 SredIferd qaan Y 3B Pl B
Note No 5:- Other Long Term Liabilities Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
() gRam S
(a) Security Deposits 111.48 184.50
(T) 37 gan
(b) Other Liabilities
(1) IRSRY faIum Bl 7, 3 A
(c) Due payables to Govt. Departments
111.48 184.50
(z = =)
(% in Lakh)
_ 314w, 2025 31 9w, 2024
feoquft W 6: - efepiferss e BT TTS BT TP
Note No 6:- Long Term Provisions Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
(T) et ey
(A) Employees Benefits
1. Ycg Wg QaTfghi SueH & forg
1. For Death Cum Retirement Gratuity
fUser o R faeRur & SIgaR
As per Last Balance Sheet 88.47 102.92
e ¥ & SR UgH fhar
Add:Provided during the year 3.96 -
92.43 102.92 y




)

(z @@ )  in Lakh)

v,

ot W= 6: - Jtefoprfore yau™

Note No 6:- Long Term Provisions

314, 2025

Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025

31 91, 2024

Figures as on
31 Mar, 2024

EARCICS)

Tey: I /¥ & SR FHRISa
Less:Payment/ Adjusted during the year
ga(1)
Total (1)
2. 3T ABGIPRU b foTg
2. For Leave Encashment
Fa(2)
Total (2)
P (1 +2)/ Total A (1+2)
(&) 37 (B) Others
1. THF F TP DI Biod & g

1. For Wastage of Stock of Salt
el fodta Ruf faeror & IR

As per Last Balance Sheet
Sie: g9 & R ugH fhar
Add:Provided during the year

el af & gRI SRl &1 3ifem FieprRit W gierd
Less : Wastage on final clearance of heaps
during the year

TV ITfNth Uraen= aroy forar =

Less : Excess Provision written back

HiT F ANTAR IR H ¥ I Herdt df T8
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per contra
2. SU-IUIE / FHIferd 9 Fi Siord & forg
2. For Wastage of By-Product/ Processed Salt
el ot feufr faaur & orgaR
As per Last Balance Sheet
S : 9 & SRM e foa

Add : Provided during the Year
gct: 9¥ & SR FHRNA

Less: Adjusted during the Year

10.31

296.16

399.10

14.45

160.63

284.78

695.26

67.00

14.97

445.41

92.04

57.21

613.29

613.29

0.56

0.56

296.16

296.16

0.56

88.47

78.83
176.30

0.56
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

3197, 2025 31 A, 2024
fewquft W= 6: - efprfers wmaum B IAHS CARCIE]
Note No 6:- Long Term Provisions Figures ash on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
B¢l D ATAR IR H ¥ I Herd! o T8
Deducted from Stock in Trade as per contra 0.56 0.56
P (2)
Total (2) - -
FAadt (1+2)
Total B (1+2) - -
gar( g+t )
Total( A+B) 156.40 176.30

SHUT 7 At TATT ST b foly Ha Fafdr 3R 31.03.2025 TP T ASIGY! & MER W IUGH AT IGH b 8, 3R
frafid FaTial & foTg eRgie 7 R 15 & SR JTaeTd SiHifdhd Jedidh & MR UR oIl UG &l 2]

Company has provided gratuity liability only for confirmed labour on the basis of length of service and
wages payable as on 31.03.2025, and regular employees liability provided on the basis of actuarial
valuation as required in term of accounting standard No.15

(; @@ H) (% in Lakh)

3149w, 2025 31 9w, 2024
feoquft W= 7:- SreuTafy SUR BT 3T Pl AP

Note No 7:- Short Term Borrowing Figures as on Figures as on

31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024

qrfar

Secured -
3feuTgfer KU T gdHE gRTehd

Current Maturity of Short term Debts

YR BrUHI fEged Alocd ferfies A RgRIeT sk

Unsecured Loan from Hindustan Salts Limited

(Holding company)* 3,576.50 3576.50

Kz 160 X 7
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

v,

IR H @R T 8

shown in short term borrowing

_ 3149w, 2025 31 9, 2024
fewquft W 7:- sreumafy IuR @I aniwe P AHS
Note No 7:- Short Term Borrowing Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
SIS GRe P! A AT KU1 R AR AR T =Tl
Add: Interest accured and due on Term Loan 901.91 4478.41 872.73 4,449.23
from Holding Company
et L L
Total 4,478.41 4,449.23

T JfereT B T2 7 @i el ot af # S0 R < Afed e oy ST i Sl 8, 3¥fert 39 sieudsiferds

*Amount become overdue and expected to pay in next financial year including interest thereon hence

(; == ) (€ in Lakh)

feoqutt 7.1:- 131 va g &t s@fy
Note No 7.1:- Amount and Period Of Defaults

31 97, 2025
P 3D
Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025

31 9m, 2024
Pl 3PS
Figures as on
31 Mar, 2024

SIRIh & Feg H K0T iR @1eT d gATaE hHr faf
ol fRufy faerur it TR T FRAR I & Tt H

In case of continuing default as on the
balance sheet date in repayment of Loans
and interest with respect to above

1. b I Ay

1. Period of Default

2. g DI A

2. Amount of Default

RSP BT W FeT BT

Total Loan from Holding Company

Fe1 K0T (5 arfifes fvedt o <)

19 24 g
1 to 24 Years

19 23 af
1 to 23 Years

Total Loan ( Payable in 5 Yearly Instalment) 3,576.50 3,576.50

HeN: SEfaprferds Ko7

Less: Long Term Debts - -

Ay Af 3rferey actw gRugsan

Balance overdue Current Maturrities 3,576.50 3576.50
% 7 161 X
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

3149, 2025 31 Ard, 2024
Hic W1 8: - ATUR Il Y 3B BT IATBS
Note No 8:- Trade Payables Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
q&H Ud oY Al &b PR
Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 362.49 362.49 213.66 213.66
30/ Others
A B o
For Goods 105.28 106.39
g & forw
For Expenses 113.17 152.00
=R} ¥ B
For Others 152.20 370.65 178.82 437.21
oo - -
Total 733.14 650.87

* 3&W wd o1y Semil ol o, R THTeas YT 0R srSt o Mg W wfttiferd 8 ©. 2.11 @ (Tefae 0.02 I
*Due to Micro & Small Enterprises including Provision for Interest on MSME Payment Rs. 2.11 lakhs
( Previous Year Rs.0.20 lakhs)

TR 3T IYART 3rafdy FefRor sriws
Trade Payable ageing schedules (k @@ %) @ in Lakh)
31 97, 2025 &1 STiﬁ/Figures as on 31 Mar, 2025
Wae & 37 fafd & Feaferf@a safd & forg gamr/
%. 9. faeRor Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
S.No. Particulars
Syt TH Y | FH B 3 a¥ W 31fdw
Not Due Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen Total
1 year 3 Years

1. THUHAUHS

MSME 357.98 451 - - - 362.49
2. I

Others 89.99 79.26 32.98 0.21 168.21 370.65
3. [EEUESIECIRI

Disputed Dues

THTHTAS

MSME
4, [EEUESIEEIRI

Disputed Dues

3T

Others

zzza 162 X 7
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)
31 9, 2024 &Y 37iFHS / Figures as on 31 Mar, 2024
WA & 37 ffd 7 F=ferf@a safdr & forg gomrr/
%. . [CERL Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
S.No. Particulars
T R O o & 1-298  2-399 3 4 @ Ser
Not Due Liss than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen Total
year 3 Years

1. TR

MSME 169.03 44.63 - - 0 213.66
2. I

Others 119.05 29.22 1.35 0.81 286.78 437.21
3.  fourfea sern

Disputed Dues

RENSIGH]

MSME
4. foarfea s

Disputed Dues

3

Others

8.1 WeH, oy 3R Heaw S fAdw aiffiaw, 2006 (2006 #1 27) (TTHATELS! ff™aw, 2006)

P I T IpNuT:

8.1 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(27 of 2006) (“MSMED Act, 2006”):

(t = #) (€ in Lakh)

3197, 2025 31 A, 2024
Particulars Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
TS oGl I & 3id § At amyfefepaf @ argr 7 & T 7o
fer iR I R T I ;
(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon 362.49 213.66

remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year;

THURAUHEE! IR, 2006 H URT 16 & 3R Pl GRI
I Y TS 1T DY A T YAP oidl a¥ & GRE f4ad
&7 & 915 emyfcfardt @1 Ay U g & wfer;

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
16 of MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

319w, 2025 31 9, 2024
Particulars Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024

(iii) TAM B H Ieiq di sm@fdy & foly <7 iR Jram I &t &
IR (RrFepT e a9 & SR Fad R & a1g fmam e 2) faeg
59 rftifem & ed FifdE st at Sig
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of - -
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under this Act;
(iv) TP oiar 9 & 3 7 Affa ik s o B fdr; @
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 211 0.20
end of each accounting year; and
(v) THTHUASS! ST, 2006 &1 €RT 23 & IfcRid ekl A/ 2T
& B H APl & TS, 9 e ga g iR
auf o ol S &GIoT I AN, S TP &p IWRIeh 9T =TS arerd |
T T DI PIA T T e Bl
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable - -
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for

the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006

(z @@ #) /€ in Lakh)

314w, 2025 31 Ard, 2024
feoquft W= 9:- 3 BT JIAY BT 3PS PI B
Note No 9:- Other Current Liabilities Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
3 T (YRS HUl)
Others Payable ( Holding Company)
fegeaM wecy fafics (gre U B o
Due to Hindustan Salts Limited (Holding Company) 10.96 7.14
k]
Others Payable
RIECHISICIDE IR
Advance from Customers 190.01 137.93
SR ST
Security Deposits 132.44 66.11
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(z @@ #) /  in Lakh)

_ _ 31 4T, 2025 31 9™, 2024
feroquft st 9:- o1 TTe] TG P TS BT TP
Note No 9:- Other Current Liabilities Figures as on Figures as on

31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
R | Ao g
Staff Related Liabilities 35.76 44.54
EEIRCICORIN
Statutory Liabilities 50.82 52.50
ggT R <o g
Lease Rent Payable Account 30.25 30.25
fafaer s
Misc. Deposit* 73.68 33.64
Pl - -
Total 523.92 372.11

“faer STTet B, T WRETST Hiee Uigde fifiics & . 9.67 g B HEIGd dlwgder Us IRR & .
35.24 ARG 3R 5 I I AR} & . 8.68 7RI NG D TR A F Feiferd g iR JafAr fer s §t 18
2 s ATe 3ifer frofy & forv dfa g1

*In miscellaneous deposits, Rs. 9.67 lakh of M/s Khargodha salt Private Limited, Rs. 35.24 lakh of M/s

Mahadev Contractor & Supplier and Rs. 8.68 lakh of M/s Ram Raj Chaudhary relate to penalty as per the

contractand the penalty amount has been withheld as the case is pending for final decision.
(z @@ 7) / € in Lakh)

3149w, 2025 31 A, 2024
feoquft W 10:- sreurafer urau™ P TP B 3B
Note No 10:- Short Term Provisions Figures as. on Figures as on

31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
AR & fTq yrae=
Provision for Income tax 226.46 356.63
o AT a1 BT TTaLT
Provision for Leave with wages 6.96 7.72
g9 &1 W=/ Provision for Bonus 15.71 16.94
BHIAT U ITGATRID Yooh DT UL
Provision for Legal & Professional charges 0.59 0.59
ferfepeam wifergfel o1 wraeT
Provision for Medical Reimbursement 4.07 4.07
AP ABGIBRUT BT YT/ Provision for Leave Encashment 56.17 37.00

%7/ Total 30996 295

& 4 165 X /A
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11.1 Yot &rf wrfey R (Fssegemstt)
11.1 Capital work in progress (CWIP) (z o3 #)
Arescgansdt srafer Brisv (% in Lakh)
CWIP ageing schedules ¥ /Year : 2024-25
F.9. ICERYI Heeegensht wr & A3 srafdr & forg wfen
S.No. Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
T 3qf |
wHiecegamsdt Sk 1-2q8  2-3a¢ fp oo
CWIP Lessthan  1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen Total
1 year 3 Years
UIRATSHT ST R &
1 Project in progress 79.70 10.44 116.09 206.23
URAISHIY SRRl Y 3 A
2 Projects temporaily suspended
T OR T ¥ YOI B & forg, s @31 8 | < 81 9ot © A1 ot AnTa &t Arern &Y o 5 s
BT E
for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan following CWIP
.9, [EEAYI 4 1 fFar ST B
S.No. Particulars To be completed in
TP T 3qfd
wHecegamsdt Sk 1-2a€  2-3af o el
CWIP Lessthan 1-2 Years 2-3Years Morethen Total
1 year 3 Years
URATSHIY 1
1 Projects 1 0 0 0 0 0
RAHTY 2
2 Projects 2
& A 168 X /A
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11.1 Yot &rf wrfey R (Fssegemstt)
11.1 Capital work in progress (CWIP) (z o3 #)
Hresegamdt srafer srimw (k in Lakh)
CWIP ageing schedules a¥ / Year : 2023-24
F.9. ICERYI Heeegensht wr & A3 srafdr & forg wfen
S.No. Particulars Amount on CWIP for a period of
T 3qf |
wHieeegamsdt AP 1-2a¢  2-3qf siferes
CWIP Lessthan  1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen Total
1 year 3 Years
UIRATSHT ST R &
1 Project in progress 107.72 117.12 - - 224.84
URAISHIY SRRl Y 3 A
2 Projects temporaily suspended
T IR I I GoiiTd &1 & forg, forads qr1 89 3 30 81 gt 8 a1 R arTa 9 arern &t e | aifdrs
SR
for capital work in progress whose completion is overdue of has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan following CWIP
&.4. feRor ¥ qRT b ST B
S.No. Particulars To be completed in
T 3qf |
wHieeegamdt AP 1-2a¢  2-3qf sifres
CWIP Lessthan  1-2 Years 2-3 Years Morethen Total
1 year 3 Years
RIS 1
1 Projects 1 0 0 0 0 0
RIS 2
2 Projects 2
(z e =)
(% in Lakh)
3191, 2025 31 O, 2024
feuguft W 12:- AR-a1e] Faer B 3P Dl 3Mhs
Note No 12:- Non-Current Investments Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
ST TPQIDRY & oTq ATafer ST
Fixed Deposit for Leave encashment® 125.00 -
AT/ Total 125.00 -
" STapTeT TSRO F forg wrafdy ST F FAder ofR Uuit gwaR i aRugse srafd s af F 3 21
*Investment in fixed deposit for leave encashment and the maturity period of such FDR is more the one year.
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
3197, 2025 314m, 2024
fewguft weaT 13:-amRAfid #R a7l (31g) Pl AP DI AP
Note No 13:-Deferred Tax Assets (Net) Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
IMAUfIT HR gR[ufrEr/ CUGIY / Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities
YRI%eh ST/ Opening Balance 23.39 -
Sirs: a9 & GRM SRR HR gkl
Add : Deferred Tax Assets during the year 146.81 23.68
g0 gy & SR JRAMNT PR ST
Less: Deferred Tax Liability during the year - 0.29
Pci/Total 170.20 23.39
HU 7 170.20 ARG BUY (TaY 23.39 ARG) Y IRAFT BR GRFURRIT Paet I9 HHT I 99T &, STei ey
& AR AT & T |/ S wifR it Iy e 21
The Company has made deffered Tax Assets of Rs.170.20 Lacs (P.Y. Rs. 23.39 lakhs ) only to the
extent there is reasonable certainty of its realization from future profit as per Management.
(z = =)
(% in Lakh)
319w, 2025 31 Arf, 2024
oot wear 14:- Sefarfere BT 31k 3w Pl AP DI 3PS
Note No 14:- long Term Loan & Advances Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
@1/ Total - -
zzza 170 % A,
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
3197, 2025 3197, 2024
fewquft- 15 f=are uRawafomi BT 3B BT 3B
NOTE NO.-15 NON CURRENT ASSETS Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
(31) (a) Sefafer TR Tt R (ST ST ot
R QMUR Ui Af2d)
Long-term trade receivables (including trade
receivable on deferred credit terms)
RI&r, 3res wHel T
Secured, considered good 7.22 1.23
dfeegr / Doubtful 16.77 17.39
23.99 18.62
gersd: iy IR It I &
forg urae (A & FER)
Less: Provision for doubtful
trade receivables (as per last year) 16.77 7.22 17.39 1.23
() / (b)3mefia 3awa @ag** / Deferred Revenue Expenses ** 299.00 357.87
(H) (c) uRareHT e (AR gRasHT 9fed) /
Project Expenses (Including Solar Project) 38.37 25.64
3T AP 9T iR Arefifren Fepral & arr gRam s
Security Deposit with Other Govt. Deptt.
& Public Bodies 65.82 65.83
1Ay ST § Uiie=g & AR BHATRAT, ShaRI AR 37
&1 wfergfert (ewHarRal & forg g wfga)
Securities of Staff,Contractors & Others as per
contra in term deposits (including Nil for staff) 63.23 64.75
*The A1 IG b U N I UTH g & 0 a9l fohar ST Ahar @
*Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to received 40.85 -
I/ Total 514.49 515.32
Sfaret IcuTe o fofy, @it =1 TR T gt T=ur OXT IR foa g 3iR IR fht 9% &1 718 81 a7 ik mefird &
eI ST ARTAT Y GoTiepel b T 7T & 3R ST IS el i TR 2 o U H ol bl TR &l
TG I 9% D ®Y H I U Ficrthel & ©Y H ajelt I, $HH HAH GRTEIST Ao Ugde foffics &l 68.07
G o9 4o & 12340 Hifgew e & SRl & folg 40.85 oRE Y oM 8 3R Ueed 7 Pt AT bl 13.61
ARG 9 Tifey a &Y uig A9 arfifep fovedi & dien & fofa foran 21 uget foned forefiar af 2024 -25 9 re off 1
]

& 4 171 K
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“Z %
% IR YR @RT 299.00 ARG 93 (fUsel I 357.87 @R I0) ol i iR TelloR, ST TUT8a~T 31
P AT 1 A9 8, FoTgepT 3FTer aYf o g1 uRRener foham Se|

For Algae production, Company has completed first phase of the project and initial sale has started. All the
costrelated to plantand machinery has capitalized and other revenue nature booked as project expenses.
*Recoverable in cash or kind or for consideration receivable, includes Rs 40.85 lakh for handover of 12340
MT worth Rs 68.07 lakh to M /s Khara Godha Salts Pvt Ltd and the management has decided to deduct the
total amount in five equal annual installments of Rs 13.61 lakh/- per annum. The first installment has been
deducted in the financial year 2024-25.

** Deferred Revenue Expenses Rs.299.00 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 357.87 Lakhs) is balance of Kaccha work
& cost of Sleeper,dog spikes etc., which will amortize after next year.

(z @3 #)
IR 9T 317y, fAreiRor sregat (% in Lakh)
Trade Receivables ageing schedules 31 97, 2025 &I 3PS
Figures as on 31 Mar, 2025
.. [EEAYI g $t 3@ fif & frferfaa safdr & forg somn
S.No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
_ 6 HEH | A 3afw
3 T8 JiR6TEH- 19§ -2  2-3 ¢ ferp Gyl
Not Due Less than 6 Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More then  Total
& 6 Months- 1 Years 3 Years
wfdarg @R gy
Undisputed Trade Receivables
T FHSAT AT
Consider Good 7.22 - - 7.22
fdarg R gy
Undisputed Trade Receivables -
e IR AT T
Consider Doubtful 16.77 16.77
Afdare gUR gy
Undisputed Trade Receivables
T FHHAT T
Consider Good
wfdarg @R gy

Undisputed Trade Receivables

Afy W 5T ™
Consider Doubtful

zzza 172X 7
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(z @3 #)
IR U1 3 fA4Ror Ry (% in Lakh)
Trade Receivables ageing schedules 3197, 2024 &I b
Figures as on 31 Mar, 2024
.. [EEAYI g $t 3@ fif & frferfea safdr & forg somn
S.No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
_ 6 HE | W 3af ¥
g gl IiR6TEH- 19§  1-29f  2-3 o e T
Not Due Less than 6 Months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More then  Total
& 6 Months- 1 Years 3 Years
ffdfare =g g
Undisputed Trade Receivables
ST HHHAT AT
Consider Good 1.23 - - 1.23
ffdarg @R g
Undisputed Trade Receivables -
Hfrer Fwe T
Consider Doubtful 17.39 17.39
[BICEISSEEIRR
Undisputed Trade Receivables
T FHSAT AT
Consider Good
ffdarg =R g
Undisputed Trade Receivables
Hfrer Fw T
Consider Doubtful
& 4 173 X /A
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
3149w, 2025 31 9T, 2024
fewquit- 16 =re aRwwfAT (Fei®) @I anid @I anide
NOTE No.-16 CURRENT ASSETS (INVENTORIES) Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
(Jever GRT THIRIG Ud Jonid & rgRIR foram )
(As taken valued & certified by the Management)
(A) = 9Tef/ Raw Material SY I (T) Sub Total (A)
(B) @ wIfel WX/ Work in process
(AW W) (at cost) 39 AT () Sub Total (B) 863.53 637.02
(C) &R AT Finished Goods 9 T (3f) Sub Total (C)
(D) &mUR H ¥eid/Stock in Trade
(ST / € It AR eI TR ST DA &)
(at cost/net realisable value whichever is less)
Hb / Salt 2,514.73 1,480.26
gered: Biod & folg wae/ Less: Provision for Wastage 6.13.28 296.15
1,901.45 1,184.11
HATET 79 / Processed Salt 61.46 69.81
gered: Biod & foly wae/ Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
61.18 69.53
U 341G/ By-Product 0.28 0.28
gcrgd: Bivid & forg orae/ Less: Provision for Wastage 0.28 0.28
- 0.00
39 AT (£Y)/Sub Total (D) 1,962.63 1,253.64
(E) ¥R iR sifiifRew goi/Stores & Spare Parts 103.31 114.85
oId WX/ at Cost
SR ATEft 3fiR ¥hd/ Released Material & Scrap
(SFFATFIT g TRt AT T W)
(at estimated net realisable value) 3.72 10.27
107.03 125.12
He:— 919 G TR 3Mged & oy yaes
Less:- Provision for Non Moving Store Items 15.71 14.95
39 AT (3)/Sub Total (E) 91.32 110.17
(F) @Il SUBRV/Loose Tools
(e &I¥d qed W)/ (at Depreciated value) 0.00 0.00
AT 3R B Iuaur/ Hospital & Canteen Equipments 0.56 0.56
(9ea &I¥d qed W)/ (at Depreciated value)
U IR (Th)/Sub Total (F) 0.56 0.56
(G) 34 (ST qea g I ¥<iab)/Others (Stock of Fair Price Shop)
AN 4R/ (at cost ) U IR (Th)/Sub Total (G) 0.01 0.01
P AN (+T+eT+3+S1+3+TH) GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)  2,918.05 2,001.40
ez 175
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AR TR H U 15.7 1 7R3 o9 (el 9 14.95 &R 1 IR—aefi a3t R AT IS B g8 & ol SehT qTaeT JRiepi o fopT 1T
B 2T S NI WR graes) H grfan T 81 e i g H efief} 7fy & g areft aregei @t g gew forg 1 g 9 ifdren 1

BT H BIS U FER § why & HIFd 3.72 g 393 (fsel af 10.27) onfid €, R g 4o WR forn Tam &1

*Provision for losses if any on the non moving items amounting to Rs. 15.71 lakhs (previous year Rs. 14.95

lakhs) lying in General Store has been made in the books and the same was shown in the Inventories at cost.
In the opinion of management the current value of slow moving items is more than the value taken

Released stores in hand including the value of Scrap amounting of Rs. 3.72 lakhs (Previous year 10.27)
taken at the book value.

(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
3191, 2025 31974, 2024
feout s 17:-aUR ey =i are =i are
Note No. 17:-Trade Receivables Figures as- on Figures as‘ on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
JRI&d 3T AHST AT
Secured Considered good 82.87 87.51
e e T
Considered doubtful - -
82.87 87.51
TeN - Afgy o & o uay™
Less : Provision for doubtful debts - 8287 - 87.51
Pai/Total 82.87 87.51

*orfEat, e R SR TR RvRT 3 $e 3 fde S B gt sitv foretr o oref 21

*The Debit and Credit balance of parties, Salt Department and Government Department are subject to
confirmation and reconciliation.

& 4 175 X /A
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(z @3 #)
IR U1 3 fA4Ror Ry (% in Lakh)
Trade Receivables ageing schedules 31 97, 2025 & 3PS
Figures as on 31 Mar, 2025
.. [EEAYI g $t 3@ fif & frferfea safdr & forg somn
S.No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
2-3 99 T
< el 6 7€M W B g;}irﬁ;:j 1-29¢ 3qfAARE Pt
Not Due Less than 6 Months Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
& Morethen 3 Years
fHfefarg R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
3Y IS U
Consider Good 4.51 8.08 - 70.28 82.87
feyfdfarg R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
SICEASEE RN
Consider Doubtful
fyfdfarg =R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
BT FqHS AT
Consider Good
fyfdfarg R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
SISEREGEERIY
Consider Doubtful

Kz 176 X 7
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(z @3 #)
% in Lakh)
3197, 2024 & fids
Figures as on 31 Mar, 2024
.. [EEAYI g $t 3@ fif & frferfea safdr & forg somn
S.No. Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
2-3 g9 a1
< el 6 7€M W B g;ﬁrﬁg‘j 1-29¢ 3qfAARE Pt
Not Due Less than 6 Months Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
& Morethen 3 Years
ffdarg =R
Undisputed Trade Receivables
Y TS ™
Consider Good 6.86 0.06 80.59 - 87.51
feyfdfarg R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
SISCESEERN
Consider Doubtful
fHyfdfarg =R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
37T TS MY
Consider Good
ffdfarg =R e
Undisputed Trade Receivables
SISCESEERN
Consider Doubtful
& 4 177 X /A
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

<

T U (fUsat o 47.22 ARg TUA) iy HoT 3R AT & U uraea= & Fu=fSid |

_ _ 31 9T, 2025 314w, 2024
fewoft W= 18:- FHg T AP AHBE B i B i
Note No 18:- Cash & Cash Equivalents Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
(v) orggfia dl & v wfer
(A) Balance With Schedule Banks
EIGREIR R
In Current Account 47.40 62.42
ARy SHT (THSIRIR) |
In Term Deposits (FDR) 1140 58.80 10.73 7315
e gifvre o
Cheque in Transit - -
TG AR feepe gy
Cash & Stamps in Hand 0.11 0.26
() o= ¥ Il
(B) Others Bank Balance - 4.67
Pai/Total 58.91 78.08
*11.40 TG TU B THIMR 12 7EH F iR aRus grft
*FDR of Rs. 11.40 Lakhs to be matured within 12 months. (X o= fi) Z in Lakh)
31 9T, 2025 31 A, 2024
fewgoft W 19:- SreuTafey ot 3iR 1w B AP Pl 3PS
Note No 19:- Short-Term Loans and Advances Figures as‘ on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
34/Others
Rf&, 318 W9 TYSecured, considered good - -
IRIRI&I, 3798 WUH TYUnSecured, considered good
FHHATRAl @ 1T Af/ Advances to Staff 5.64 7.44
fafae a1fi /Misc. Advances 8.09 12.34
ST fepar T @1 3R / Advance Income Tax Deposited 128.81 434.00
*qehe 1 9% & ®U § aelt ART I/ *Recoverable in cash or in kind or
eI UTH &= AT/ for value to be received 60.02 110.32
IRfTT afed | WR SmIaR weldl/
Income Tax Deducted at Source Including TCS
i) fUset af/Earlier year 11.23 16.78
ii) "Tef g/ Current year 3.78 15.01 414 2092
T TRBRY fA9TT ok A et & urT gRam ST/
Security Deposit with Other Govt. Deptt. & Public Bodies 0.31 0.12
217.88 585.14
HeTU: i 360 Ud A b forg graer
Less : Provision for doubtful loan & advances 13.87 13.87
Pel/Total 204.01 571.27

Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 47.22 Lakhs) Adjusted in Provision for Doubtful loan & advances.

4 178 X
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*21g I Favg a1 9g & B H T AT TR & U H et A 7, e 3 @RTEeT diecd Uigde fAfiics @t 68.07 @Rg 39 9ed &
12340 g T & AR 2g 13.6 1 ARI B A & 31R Tae 7 Pt A T 13.6 1 R 39 UfT af &l g F1 anfifes fopeat o

e o1 HufT foram 21 ugett fohea facfig af 2024 -25 H et 1€ 2

*Recoverable in cash or kind or for consideration receivable, including Rs 13.61 lakh for handover of 12340 MT worth Rs 68.07 lakh to M /s Khara
Godha Salts Pvt Ltd and the management has decided to deduct the total amount in five equal annual installments of Rs 13.61 lakh /- per annum.
The first installment has been deducted in the financial year 2024-25.

(; @@ ) (€ in Lakh)

_ o 319w, 2025 3197, 2024

fewquft Wi 20:- 37 =TT aRwufET B ATBS B ATBS
Note No 20:- Other Current Assets Figures as on Figures as on
31 Mar, 2025 31 Mar, 2024
HIGfer SHT 4R 37 &75T / Interest Accrued on Term Deposits 0.16 0.10
qur g by U @8 / Prepaid Expenses 16.05 7.05
RIS IoRe &g Deferred Revenue Expenses 160.66 137.67
Pel/Total 176.87 144.82

IR IS T 160.66 AT U (TAGY 137.67 TG YY) Pl BRI BT AY R FeAlUR Y R &, Roraepr
3rTel a9 ® uRene fBar Sre|

Deferred Revenue Expenses Rs. 160.66 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 137.67 Lakhs) is balance of Kaccha
work & cost of Sleeper,dog spikes etc., which will amortize in next year.

(t = ) (€ in Lakh)

) a¥ 2024-25 ¥ 2023-24
feoquft we=m 21: - aRRenes & o = fro =
Note No 21 :- Revenue From Operations For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
5T / Revenue
AMT 96 g FATRIT 9% / Common Salt & Processed Salt
Icqrgl Bt feht (feoqoft 21.1 @1 dvgef o)/
Sale of products (Refer Note NO. 21.1) 4,639.44 6,566.85
Pa/Total 4,639.44 6,566.85
(t g #) € in Lakh)
foof) wese 21.1:- e 1 Y TR0 s A
Note No 21.1:- Sale of Products For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
AT 96 / Comman salt 3,495.16 4,602.76
HATYT A (dTHdY) / Process salt (PSP) 1.51 21.31
URSpd F9eh (SHTHIR) / Refined salt (GSR) - 52.35
qiRsehel e (TIUHRIR) Refined salt (NSR) 1,142.77 1,890.43
Pl Total 4,639.44 6,566.85

% 2 179 X
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

) ¥ 2024-25 a¥ 2023-24
feoavft Wi 22:- =1 3 352w e
Note No 22:- Other Income For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
31T /Income
Toi/Interest
HEfer SHT 9%/ On Term Deposit 0.92 0.46
3T &g161/ Other interest 4.79 2.18
3 WIfai/Other Receipts
THATR-Yie Tfcfaferi | urfer
MR-Receipt from Tourism Activities 28.54 27.54
THAIR-Fhy i et/ MR-Sale of Scraps - 26.53
arg fafdy TS/ other misc receipts 11.84 10.31
fafde oiferi (geT) /Misc. Receipts (Total) 40.38 64.38
gfkuferl & fosht &R @ (g€)/Profit on sale of Assets (Net) - 8.77
|qHRSH / FYHTRU/Adjustments/ Transfers
faferer smor 9 fer oy fordt g/ Sundry credit balances written back 0.14 0.02
SR 1 3ifc Freprdl TR &g SISt ! 1o’y ferar
Wastages on final clearance of heaps written back 67.00 92.04
fReh Urae 99vF forar 1/ Excess Provision Written Back 0.63
Pa/Total 113.86 167.85

= fafay ferl & oT foR™) & @1 H 7.88 @RI Y, GBI H FHG HeR Wie & T § 0.81 ARg 39, fafde
3= TRl & @I § 3.15 oG o9 (fUsel auf ¥ g9 3.19 ok B9 3iR 0.66 oRg T, iR 6.46 R )
qfeferd €1 ad & SR fAfYe @R shfse 9y S ¢ 1feT, Wi <IdTy, Jiddi+es SIdm, 3haR STHT 31 | 0.14 &G
I (s af 0.02 g T ) 92 Wi § 8l Y|

Other Misc. Receipts Includes Rs. 7.88 on accounts of Rent Received, Rs 0.81 Lakhs on accounts of opeing of

salt stores on holidays, Rs. 3.15 Lakhs on account of various other receipts (previous years Rs. 3.19 Lakhs
and Rs. 0.66 Lakhs, & Rs. 6.46 Lakhs respectively).

During the year various old credit balances like amount payable, purchases liability ,unpaid liabilities,

contractor deposits etc. write off Rs. 0.14 lakhs ( P.Y.Rs. 0.02lakhs). (? NG ﬁ) (Z in Lakh)
] o af 2024-25 a¥ 2023-24
fevquft wieaT 23: - AR § wie H @ig 35 2m ¥ fro
Note No23 :- Purchases of Stock in Trade For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
Pl 7P @I/ Purchases of black salt - 6.79
qfRsehel e bl @RI/ Purchases of refined salt - 30.94
URSHT THB—TTUHINR @l BRI/ Purchases of refined salt-NSR 3.39 219.49
3.39 257.22
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)
oot vt 24:- e AT 31k e T . 1 et aRad “g’%‘” 317, 2020
Note No 24 :- Change in Inventory of Finished . )
Goods & W.LP. For the Year Figures as on
2024-25 31 Mar, 2024
RS ¥€1db / Opening Stock
AR THh / Common Salt 1,480.26 1,134.89
HATT 99/ Processed Salt 69.81 101.39
JY-3U1G/ By-Products 0.28 0.28
B} Wil 9/ Work in Process 637.03 2,187.38 529.17 1,765.73
3ifer 99/Closing Stock
ATYROT THh / Common Salt 2,514.73 1,480.26
HATT 99/ Processed Salt 61.46 69.81
JY-3U1G/ By-Products 0.28 0.28
@1l WIfcl R/ Work in Process 863.53 3,440.00 637.03 2,187.38
fgfg(+) /79(-) ¥eTd H/Accretion(+)/Decretion(-) In Stock (1,252.62) (421.65)
IR €I/ Finished Stock (1,026.12) (313.79)
@l Wil 7%/ Work in Process (226.50) (107.86)
(t =@ 1) (% in Lakh)
N sz afze-a
Note No 25 : Employee Benefits Expenses For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
Jd9 Ud 91 /Salaries & Allowances 191.45 256.93
3TAPBIT Faavol (T a8t & 31 3raerer & A Afead)
Leave Encashment (Including payment of Earned leave for earlier years) 7.84 -
I Afed raep1eT/ Leave with wages 6.53 7.79
g9/ Bonus 21.13 21.24
g 9E AAIgRT SUGH/ Death cum Retirements Gratuity 11.42 43.62
afosg ffer § frarhT a1 siveH
Employer's Contribution to Provident Funds 77.83 78.29
ST &/ et #iHr fifiEm/ Deposit Linked Insurance Premium 3.34 3.28
TS iy 2R LEANE W UeRA+D Job
Admin Charges on Provident Fund & EDLI 3.39 3.29
$THATS H TEE BT I,/ Management Contribution to ESI 11.78 7.05
fora¥sT (al) / Liveries (Uniform) 1.72 1.65
Pel/Total 336.43 423.14
& 2 181 X /A
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(t @@ #) € in Lakh)

Proquft T 26:— Frdta AT af 2024-25 ¥ 2023-24
Note No 26 :- Fiance costs & fere & fere
For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
TS/ Interest
qhg U1/ iy HMT/ 3 W)
On Cash Credit/Overdraft Limit/Other - 0.20
MDA R (IR Hro! fgAn.fe1., STagR | mafees ko)
On Term Loans (from Holding co. HSL,jpr.) 429.18 429.18
429.18 429.18
(t @@ 1) (% in Lakh)
fRvquft v 27:- YeuE SR aReies @ Ty 2024-25 af 2023-24
Note No 27 :- Depreciation and Amortisation Expense & fere & forg
For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
e 3R aReNgT Pol =
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 438.53 381.23
Pel/Total 438.53 381.23
- (t oma )
(% in Lakh)
¥ 2024-25 ¥ 2023-24
feoqoft S 28: - ST ¥ forw ¥ forw
Note No 28 :- Other Expenses For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2024-25
T/ (A) SeT @7 (S fewft 4. 28.1) /Manufacturing Expenses (Refer Note No. 28.1) 1,983.27 1,892.17
&t/ (B) R 7 TEREE(qW feunoht . 28.2) /Repair & Maintenance (Refer Note No. 28.2) 577.43 576.48
ft/ ovar Frfa @r(ed feunft |. 28.3)/ Corporate Office Expenses (Refer Note No. 28.3) 294.72 233.50
gt/ (D) TR (S fewoft . 28.4) / Township Expenses (Refer Note No. 28.4) 136.21 173.60
3/ By Td Biva (e et 4. 28.5)/ Provisions & Wastages (Refer Note No. 28.5) 384.13 227.57
T/ (B @(qw fewoft 6. 28.6) / Administrative Expenses (Refer Note No. 28.6) 187.19 182.30
St/ (G Repa @ faaRor =ri(ew fewoft 4. 28.7) /Selling & Distribution Exp. (Refer Note No. 28.7) 301.66 288.96
T/ (H) 3 fafdg s (Sxd fewaoft 4. 28.8) / Other Misc. Expenditure (Refer Note No. 28.8) 11.52 50.16
AT/ Total 3,876.13 3,624.74
28.1 Seured =gg/Manufacturing Expenses
IeUe g et @/ Manufacturing & Excavation Charges 1,489.53 1,190.35
[IERY T $I Wi/ Purchases of Comman salt - 182.45
e wHep Jeare (d.gw dt.) / Manufacturing of Process Salt (PSP) 22.66 4448
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
af 2024-25 af 2023-24
I AT 28: - 3T I ¥ forg ¥ forg
Note No 28 :- Other Expenses For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
aReepel e BT Fedre (S8R, ) / Manufacturing Of Refined Salt (G.S.R.) 22.82 30.72
aRspd THe BT Jedre (T1.09.31R.) / Manufacturing Of Refined Salt (N.S.R.) 150.04 157.34
3rmiepT faRmm 1/ Freight Inward 0.10 -
féera @ arfer =g/ Electricity & Power Charges 325.20 301.71
uger fmmar/ Lease Rent 5.50 5.50
e 9ieR Td Al T T Td IEREE
Mtc & Running of Loco & Diesel Shunter 39.47 35.25
T~ fastelt ofik Soff & 7 7 ageft
Less :- Recovery on account of Electricity and Power (72.05) (55.63)
AT/ Total _1,983.27 _ 189217
28.2 7Y 9 W9 ¥@d/Repair & Maintenance
99/ Building 27.64 48.27
2 @ #eftt/ Plant & Machinery 170.15 196.26
=g qec / Other Repairs 313.56 204.51
& 9 &1 w@wEd™/ Maintenance of P. way 66.08 127.44
AN/ Total 57743 57648
28.2.1 37 #x#</Other Repairs
7 &1 1 /Repairs to Works 204.57 75.81
aTgHl &1 WaTed ge 3@v@d /Running & Maintenance of Vehicles 108.99 128.70
ary/Total 313.56 204.51

o & SR el DIl W EY T 242.50 ARI b Y Pl I 185.49 @RI b AWHA PRI, I 49.37 @RI & fAfHI0r 3R
epTers gob 3R T 7.64 ARG & I+ 407 & dier arafed oo T g1 avf & SR weiem = fofa fora g 1o fandt faey
¥ § 3= HRf R HU T PoT g Bl I af & A $iR g & favor § anfie forar ST 39 ugel e i
IR IToTd & & &Y H gof T T AT 3R gy aut & forgr 7 o1 319 Jeee J fAofy fora g o fooedt fady af o

el Rl IR R T et g oY At 9 o 1T BT g1 & fora=on 7 enfiret fopam STe | eiRaien fifer 5 agetra & HRoT are]

T b g H T 194.00 oIa 1 G g 2!

* Expenditure incurred on kacha work during the year of ¥ 242.50 lakh has been allocated between repairs to work of ¥
185.49 lakh, manufacturing and excavation charges of ¥ 49.37 lakh and building of ¥ 7.64 lakh . During the year the
management has decided that the total expenditure incurred on Kucha work in a particular year will be included in
the statement of Profit and Loss for the same year. Earlier the kacha work was recorded as deferred revenue
expenditure and written off over the five years. Now the management has decided that the total expenditure incurred
on kacha work in a particular year will be included in the statement of profit and loss for the same year. Due to the
change in accounting policy the current year expenditure has increased by I 194.00 lakh.
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7 2
(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
ay 2024-25 ay 2023-24
fewauft Wi 28:- sFa @™ & forg & forg
Note No 28 :- Other Expenses For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
28.3 num srafea @@d/Corporate Office Expenses
Afasg Ffer R gerIs 2
Administrative charges on Provident Fund 0.75 0.66
afysy 4 7 Eivarens J e @1 areE
Employer's Contributions to Provident Fund & EDLI 19.79 16.49
9a/Salaries 27418 294.72 216.35 _233.50
Total 294.72 233.50

e errfery § ST Frifia el 1 dae, sreaer Td ey FiQeis, G Tdad] e SfiRed 3R du
feg & da 1.1, 6l oikaT gl § gt 3 ST g

*The salary of regular staff posted at head office except salary of CMD, CVO and Company secretary booked in books
of accounts of SSL.

28.4 TR =4 3R 317 AHTISTD FHU

Township Expenses & Other Social Overhead

TR =39/ Township Expenses

&1/ Depreciation 0.02 0.02

Hai @1 ¥@w@d/ Maintenance of Building 26.27 24.22

JHIE &3/ Sanitation Expenses 11.81 16.17

3 & @€/ Accommodation Expenses - 11.62

Sfet 3mgfef R/ Water Supply Charges 12.71 15.25

~50.81 6728

Hergd: et/ Less: Recoveries

Te f=mr/House rent 6.29 11.36

St 3mgfed/ Water Supply 1.26 1.58

7.55 43.26 12.94 54.34
377 wrTfoTe Fast @9/Other Social Overhead
&1/ Depreciation 0.07 0.07
S ATSITe, STEdTe], AT Tfifafery @l g
Donation to the Public School, Hospitals, - 0.23
TRl & ffdbear @1 g sRudrel @y &l fgfd
Reimb. of Medical Expenses to employees & Hospital Expenses 3.42 11.15
IRYATA TT HedTuT I fAeierd Teith & da- Ud HIWRI3R g Hod gealfe
Salaries & Allowance etc, of Hospital / Welfare and School Staff 61.98 90.17
wicaam/ CSR 28.40 18.65
T 9387 12027

gerey: et e/ Less: Hospital Receipts 092 ~9Z95- 1.01 TI92Z%
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Z <
(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
ay 2024-25 Ty 2023-24
fewauft Wi 28:- sFa @™ & forg & forg
Note No 28 :- Other Expenses For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
aw/Total 136.21 173.60

feoqull: feld o SteT aMyfel < gerp—gerd T8l o ST W 3R gAY Yerp—gerp T8l oIt MY |

Note: Electricity and water Supply charges could not be segregated and hence not disclosed seperately.
28.5 U199 d Biord/Provision & Wastages

T P TP DI VIS b 1Y

For wastages on stock of salt
TP b b Pl IR AT TaUH

Normal Provision on Salt stock required 598.31 238.94
ShfE: SRl B Fremlt ) Ffdead giom
Add: Wastages determined on clearance of heaps 67.00 92.04
ST SR & sifer FaRoT o= g T St raErE
Add: Excess provision found on Final Clearance of Heap 14.97 57.21
680.28 388.19
gerey: IR 9w/ Less: Opening Balance 296.15 160.62
o g1+ @ § 91/ Debited to Profit & Loss Account 38413 22757
pei/Total 384.13 227.57

IRGTep TIeT AT 13 I & H Gl Y, ¥ b QM TS T8 723 1.240 Hifgrep & 7ep bl wdfal, RAepT Je 67.00 ARG 30 2, I SuYeh WP Y
STer / STgHTe & Sref Ao fomar T &1 (a¥ 10380.384 Hifgds e wHas Y Biora, e Jeg 92.04 TR TWI B) |

In view of Accounting Policy No. 13, wastages of 7231.240 MT Salt valuing Rs. 67.00 lacs found during the year has
been adjusted subject to investigation/approval of Appropriate Authority. ( P.Y.wastages of 10380.384 MT Salt
valuing Rs.92.04 lacs).

28.6 vemfia @/ Administrative Expenses

BUTg 4 o Al wWR/ Printing & Stationery Charges 4.45 5.74
31, AR W@ caipie/ Postage, Telegram & Telephones 4.07 451
R Ug &Y/ Rates & Taxes 1.92 2.29
RS T &R H944/ Entertainment & Business Promotion 1.19 417
DRI DRV BT dlef, W Waw@rd/ Running & Mtc. Office Equipment 3.44 3.30
e M =g/ Security Guard Exp 114.33 115.77
g @1/ Travelling Expenses 4.98 8.76
fafere v eareiyies R/ Legal & Professional Charges 24.27 18.59
3idberal 3 rar/Payment to Auditors

sitpar g/ Audit Fee 2.95 1.68

AT et /<f s @1/ TA /DA expenses 0.48 3.43 0.16 1.84

wigfer gob/ Filing fees 0.11 0.03
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
ay 2024-25 ay 2023-24
feeooft s 28:- s7a & forg & forg
Note No 28 :- Other Expenses For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
&1 ywR/ Insurance Charges 7.02 7.16
sgw,/O.EM 2.36 1.74
s I8 @1 w@v@E@/ Maintenance of Circuit House 13.72 8.26
TTUHS g1 R &1/ Interest on MSME Dues 1.91 0.20
187.20 182.36
gergd: AAferrg it wiftrri/ Less: Guest House Receipts 0.01 0.06
AN/ Total 187.19 182.30
28.7 a3 7 faarur =@g/Selling & Distribution Expenses
fasio @ waR/ Advertisement & Publicity 12.43 7.22
f3eht ik fauv @1/ Sales and Marketing Exp. 0.45 0.52
9ot ¥R/ Despatch charges 24.54 51.25
e @rdr/ Discount Account 145.93 86.11
4f ua apor w9R/ Packing & Forwarding Charges 118.31 143.86
301.66 288.96
28.8 a9 fafdg =g/Other Misc. Expenditure
I KU1 F I A A9 B 3MYeRGT*
Bad debts & other Debit Balance written off* - 2.01
TR WA § H 3eiRgH
Less: Written off out of provision - 2.01
39y g faert =/ Research & Development Expenses 10.53 21.13
U W HaT e/ Service charges on Scrap 0.23 1.50
g A b/ Loss by storm - 10.57
iR 7 =R #&l & =@d/ Non Moving Store Items Exp. 0.76 14.95
11.52 50.16
% ar/Grand Total 3,876.13 3,624.74

a¥ & SRM o A~ R Sfde 9N S ¥eR o 31, fafdy @1fiH, 79e & SR 3nfe @ 9ec | 7 STen

T (Y 6. 2.0 1 A9)

* During the year various old debit balances like Store purchase advances, Misc Advances, debtor of salt etc. write

off Rs. NIL (P.Y.Rs. 2.01 lakhs)
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
ay 2024-25 ay 2023-24
feoqoft . 29 : gafafd waRISH & forg & forg
Note No. 29 : PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
<qg T <qg ey
Expenses Income Expenses Income
3G @8/ Manufacturing Expenses 5.01 2.24 9.95
2 (qiafer o)
Corporate Office (Prior Period Expenses) 1.23
YA 9 ¥ERE1E/ Repairs & Maintenance 3.62 0.54 0.36
TR T G 3= AHINTD SR T
Township & Other Social overheads 1.65
g 28/ Adminsitrative Expenses 0.87 0.37 147 1852
fehl T&f faavor R @99/Selling & Distribution Expenses 46.20
3MIAR o1 Y™/ Payment of Income Tax 19.80
3fciReh wrge™ a9 forar a1/ Excess Provision written back 21.07
g™/ Deprecation 477 3.40
Other (Misc) Income /3% (fafde) sm 0.92 3.18 3.05
Ir1/Total 10.91 8.07 76.65 52.59

gafaftr FERISH (I6) & IR 00 g6 A (+) & (-) (IS)

Net Income (+)/Expenses(-) on account

of prior period adjustments (Net) (2.84) (24.06)
e & SR, fUsel g J gof 1feiReh <adT & forw . 0.37 (a1 af <. 0.01 ARF) Y AfA BT A=y forg foram T Forr vemafie
g H fzman |

During the year a sum of Rs.0.37 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.0.01 Lakh) towards excess liability booked in earlier year
written back and shown in Administrative Expenses.
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(z == H)
(% in Lakh)
ay 2024-25 ay 2023-24
fewquft s 30 : Uty sier g ¥ e ¥ fore
Note No0.30 : Earnings Per Share For the Year For the Year
2024-25 2023-24
A (+) / & (=) 3fer &Y dear @y iR '
fFa=or & IR (% ol )
Profit (+) / Loss (-) as per statement of Profit
& Loss usual as the Numerator (¥ In Lakhs) 839.77 1,683.34
ARR DT ARG 3T FE=AT
Weighted Average Number of Share
MRT Y ot AT
Basic Number of Shares 10,000.00 10,000.00
R Pl TP T
Diluted Number of Shares 10,000.00 10,000.00
AT 3ieT & IR 3ifhd geu (3. /7T 9RR)
Face value as per Equity Share (Rs./Per share) 1,000.00 1,000.00
gfel FHAT 39T 3/ Earnings per equity share:
71 T (% #)/Basic EPS (in ?) 8,397.71 16,833.40
agPa $uie (3 #)/Diluted EPS (in ?) 8,397.71 16,833.40

Ic W 3 1 F T T&T Hehd 1hvuT

1. ARG IS AGBR FEAM GRT SR Feerd uar
ThEIhRUT TR oRdT e — 18 & SFUTe | AT
TehCIRUT | TAIh STDBRT FFATTAR & T8 &: —

&I Y e PIftieh:
o ft fardg ey Hiwel 01-04-2024 ¥ 31-03-
2025 dd (31fIReh T9R)

& A 188 XK

NOTENo.31 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

1.  Disclosure as required under in compliance of
Accounting Standard-18 on "Related Party
Disclosures" issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The required
information are given as under: -

Key Management Personnel :

. Sh. Shivendra Nath CMD w.e.f. 01-04-2024 to
31-03-2025 (Additional Charge)




fRouf} Wiz 32- SR RTE Jgara & forg yrayT T8k
o e: -

T.
1.

THRIP 3TATT

Bt & RIATH gral P K0T & B9 F FBR T8I
fpam T &, ST ST Y T Y IR ST Pl Bl
7.23 g 30 ¢ (fUsel axf 7.23 a~g ud) grar
B T Y IR =T b faRRed|

TSRS STIYR GRT PIcT GUR et YTaR T Dl
& g8 § IR T g v (fUset Y 3.65 ARG
B9 ) Y e TRE & BRI AT A PIE &Y

3T gl S dut M Rys wU A STRGRN §
(STai #iik STat S e mar 2, 3 erfRer <fd ot
Ol Tl I ST HehelT 2) |

ST /AT /¥ 3R 3T "1l & BRoT fafrt aRol
o =grerTeral H ifed ganet & ferg gl

AR ATeed & A TS U ga~i Iq1gT & & fory
frsorfea me ST orgey H g ™ &
faer o forq gaft Aoy <t GR1 R 25.75 TRIS &

Note No. 32- Contingent Liabilities not provided

for:-
A

1.

Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debts work out to ¥ 7.23
Lakhs excluding interest on claimed amount
(Previous year ¥ 7.23 Lakhs) excluding
interest on claimed amount.

Liability, if any, on account of Bank
Guarantee amounting to I Nil Lakhs
(Previous Year X 3.65 Lakhs) issued by SBI,
Jaipur in favour of Kota Super Thermal
Power Station, Kota.

Other cases in which the Company is
contingently liable (amounts not
ascertainable except as and where
mentioned).

Claims on account of labour/service/land
and other matters for the suits pending in
Courts at different stages.

Claims of ¥ 25.75 crore filed by Ms. Sarju Devi
for development of infrastructure in salt
production contract executed for Main Line
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2% %%
-3 T fAaur Hgcaqut UeYd fegwr wrecy fofacs gyl
Details of Transactions Piftfep JIfePR aTett HFU Total
Key Management Hindustan Salts Ltd.
Personnel (Holding Company)
FY 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
UTRR81ff% Remuneration - -
3T oY Other Benefits - -
1ot B TS
Purchase of Goods - -
et &t fadhT Sale of Goods - - 3.26 19.48 3.26 19.48
RefafRie /e &1 }
Transfer of Assets / Stores - - - - - -
19 3BUT Loan Received - - - - - -
3 ST Interest payable - - 429.18 429.18 429.18 429.18
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T1AT SRR haT TRIT © 37K AT Hearerar d «ifed 2|

Qe AUse 7 AMESIV 2017 P forv iR et
3R IS TRl & fow 01.04.2024 1 7d I
RN & HRIT=aa & foru wReaTa uTRa s & @ik
01.04.2024 A BRIFGIT & oy IR} IR G
DT IR IR o T 81 12 9EN Y ey |
TR drarRet & prrfraee R facfia Fifgaref 2 2.16
RIS (SRTHT) BT | Tehiepfey bt wrefler 21

- .
ot @ W ST by ST aret srgael & B
g Af¥r 336.15 oK@ Iud (fUser o
734.49 ARG TR B

feogofY W 33: - s AT fewufor
1.

RTSTERI TRPR FIEH ST, 1961 & waem i
& Tgd A3 FUHER & REPR & AR, I
Afgd orEe HUfy IR ARAR A HUAT P,
STRIGR | gEAdRd 8 T8 & iR Rfa vrd
TREBR Pl TAT S TS 2

oReuf & g1 R O 9FM$-28 & ded
MMALTH B &b foIU Urger= amaedes &l & Faife
§ee Y I § ww-28 & ey ¥ Bt fi
uRuferRl 6 Brg g1 8l 1

HUHT Yehel IR /IeUTG AT THD BT HaTe
Rl 8, 3Ty We RulfEn &t sraezrear gl 21

UEE DY IR H, AN W I IRAUHRI, K00
3R @1fim | aftfa gea W Ife e & JH=T %d
T oIt ohaT T BT AT ST aftfd ol Brea et
ST SIAT3T & fofg Tae uaty gf deim geifad s
< NI M A 1fYh /HH 7 &

Note No. 33: - Other Notes of Accounts

1.

<

Pan Works production area of Sambhar Salts
and matter is pending in arbitration.

The Board has passed the resolution for the
Implementation of 3rd PRC for IDA 2017 and
7th Pay commission for CDA employees from
01.04.2024 and proposal has submitted to
Ministry of heavy Industries to implement
from 01.04.2024.The financial implication on
implementation of 3rd PRC over a period of
12 months would be ¥ 2.16 Crore (Approx.).
Acceptance is awaited.

Capital Commitments

Estimated amount on account of contracts
remaining to be executed on capital account ¥
336.15 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 734.49 Lakhs).

The immovable property including land
stands transferred from Govt. of Rajasthan to
the Company, in succession, in terms of V.T.
Krishnamachari's Award under the
provisions of Rajasthan Government Grants
Act, 1961 and the position stands
communicated to the Government of India.

Provision for impairment of loss as required
under Accounting Standard-28 on
impairment of Assets is not necessary as in
the opinion of management there is no
impairment of the Company's Assets in term
of AS-28.

The company operates the single line of
business/product viz. Salt as such segment
reporting isnot required.

In the opinion of the Management, current
assets, loans & advances on the
Approximation. On the value stated if
realized in the ordinary course of business
and provisions for all known liability except
as otherwise stated are adequate and not in
excess/short of the amount reasonably
necessary.
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5. JAfaRh SATFDPRY .

5. Additional information.

v,

STRITA BT 1. 37TE. 0. qog
C.LF. Value of Imports

2024-25 (&. #) g A
2024-25 (in Rs) in Lakh  2023-24 (in Rs) in Lakh

2023-24 (&.7) arg o

eI HTe I I
i(a) Raw Materials Nil Nil
geh 3R FRR g1 I =T
i(b) Components & Spare Parts Nil Nil
USiiTe Aret S I
i(c) Capital goods Nil Nil
foceft gor o @ T LTI
ii. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
faceft gg1 o oM g T
iii. Earnings in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
faceft ggratl & &= vwor T T
SICINIEARS ]
iv(i) Remittances in foreign currencies on Nil Nil
account of dividends
arfarf SRRYRD! hHY Fear I I
iv(ii) Number of Non-Resident Shareholders Nil Nil
mferd wd Feqeft e AT T o
Vv Value of imported and indigenous raw
materials, stores, spares and components
consumed
EEIEIC TR, W 3R
K CrE)
Raw-material Stores, Spares and
Components
% % % (R in Lakhs)
KAIDIIRG I I I I
(@) Imported Nil Nil Nil Nil
waqeft 100% Sl (100%) =
(b) Indigenous 100% Nil (100%) Nil
6. fUoel af & afipsl @I @ MWD &, YT 6. Figures for the previous year have been
g 3R g afRud fopar i 2| regrouped and re-arranged wherever
necessary.
7. SIS T AN o WY o O b W Fipe gl 7, Figures are nearest to lakh rupees with two
decimals.
Y Z 191 X
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feoaft wear 34. 3R Fame serR!
Note No.34.Additional Regulatory Information

<

(1)- ot & =9 o= 7 & T 3rarer QU B w@ified fao a¥ 2024-25 & forg
(1)- Title deed of Immovable Property not held in name of the company For the Year 2024-25
i RS faavor  \ufy 6t wg 1 fawor AHd Ig o F W R ¥AIed o a1 2@rged S wufty e arta HUY &b AH R T
# urife wm RS TR, Fges A uRv B TE § T ST BT HROT
3MseH 7 yHIeR / R ere &1
Reder a1 yHIeR/
e o1 et &
Relevant line Description of item Gross carrying  Title deed held in Whether title Property held  Reason for not
item in the of property value the name of deed holder since which being held in
Balance Sheet is a promoter, date the name of
director or relative the company
of promoter/
director of
employee of
promoter/director
ot k&l
PPE Land
(v) sfter &t fiy (ofir Bes) TORT A TE
(e1=57600.00 Thg)
(A)Lake Area Land Not
( Lease Hold) Ascertainable
(Total=57600.00 Acres
1. 2648 Tds (6620 ) O g el T TBR A
et
1. 2648 Acres Not 2004 Disputed with
(6620 Bigha) Ascertainable state govt.
2. 424.80 Tbg O AT T fafeer {5l me Fmfor
SR e
2.424.80 Acres Not Not Enchrosed by
Ascertainable Ascertainable  private salt
manufacture
(&) TR ufE (B dies) o AR T
(31=660.35 THs)
(B) Khatedari Land Not
(Free Hold) Ascertainable
(Total=660.35 Acres)
1. 16.41 Ths O A e THTHCET g7 TR
aifeeT, AR
(v =are §
afar)
1.16.41 Acres Not 06/03/1977 SSLV/s
Ascertainable 09/04/1984 Nagar palika,
sambhar(Case
pending with
Court)
2. 18.12 Ths TORT AN T THCE SH
U860, Nl
SHEgR (Y SEgR
P IRT AT ciferd)
2.18.12 Acres Not 28-04-84 SSL V/s N.W.
Ascertainable Railway
Jodhpur(Case
pending with
Railway
Jodhpur)
& a 192 X /A
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3.23.71 @8 ToRT A TE I GARI el & TS S AT
A R FHART I el (I
fafar, 2017 TARIE T H e
IES))
3.23.71 Acres Not
Ascertainable Namantaran SSL V/s Gram
Date in the name Panchayat
gram panchayat Gudha (Case
gudha,2017 pending with
Gram
Panchayat
Gudha)
LER]
Building
Fufr ¥ AT ax gy o
Investment Land
Property Building
g o1 wfpa Ity W
IwAT A ger far
T 3R fuer &
forq <
PPE retired Land
from active Building
use and
held for
disposal
=1/ others
farm f3=it orcf ar geofram= it srafer fAfde fag
Without specifiying any terms or period of repayment
FUThd! bl UPR ST FKUT DT UepfcT H K0T AT U7 b UpfT H Pt 0T 3R
e e 31 1 gfcrera

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or advacne in
the nature of loan outstanding

percentage to the total Loans and
Advances in the nature of loans

YqIex / Promoteres
IRERED / Directors

Ppurdt/ KMPs
Heifer urféat/ Related Partied
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PHY=T &b 19 IR 7 W 7T 3l WU BT w@ificd fJeg

Title deed of Immovable Property not held in name of the company

¥ 2023-24 & forw
For the Year 2023-24

<

o fRafy famor
¥ URifie arga
g

Relevant line

ARy & 7S BT faavor

Description of item

GELERER )

Gross carrying  Title deed held in

& A R W@Ificd Qo o1 erged Sl

YR TR, s
1 yHIeR / fAeere &1
Reder a1 yiex/

T o1 FHAR &

Whether title

Wy et Ak
AIRTH TS g

Property held

PO P TAH R T
Y ST BT BRI

Reason for not

item in the of property value deed holder since which being held in
Balance Sheet is a promoter, date the name of
director or relative the company
of promoter/
director of
employee of
promoter/director
ot kG
PPE Land
(1) fier &1 ft (efist Ere) O T
($e1=57600.00 TP3)
(A)Lake Area Land Not
( Lease Hold) Ascertainable
(Total=57600.00 Acres
1. 2648 Tds (6620 dftar) o AN gl T PR A
Tt
1. 2648 Acres Not 2004 Disputed with
(6620 Bigha) Ascertainable state govt.
2. 424.80 TS TORT AN T fea @ fosft mes Fmfor
SRI e
2.424.80 Acres Not Not Enchrosed by
Ascertainable Ascertainable private salt
manufacture
() TR 3 (T Eles) TORT A T
(F1=660.35 T@E)
(B) Khatedari Land Not
(Free Hold) Ascertainable
(Total=660.35 Acres)
1. 16.41 Tds O AT A 1], s TR
qrfereT, HR
(vmer =gred §
afaq)
1.16.41 Acres Not 06/03/1977 SSLV/s
Ascertainable 09/04/1984 Nagar palika,
sambhar(Case
pending with
Court)
2. 18.12 TS TORT A TR wr.4nfer.
.36, Nerd
SEgR (Yo SEqR
& U HIHAT AfT)
2.18.12 Acres Not 28-04-84 SSLV/s N.W.
Ascertainable Railway
Jodhpur(Case
pending with
Railway
Jodhpur)
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3.23.71 @8 ToRT A TE I GARI el & e s am
A W AR I el (I
fafar, 2017 TARIE T H e
IES))
3.23.71 Acres Not
Ascertainable Namantaran SSL V/s Gram
Date in the name Panchayat
gram panchayat Gudha (Case
gudha,2017 pending with
Gram
Panchayat
Gudha)
BLING]
Building
Fufr ¥ AT ax gy o
Investment Land
Property Building
g o1 wfpa Ity W
IwAT A ger far
T 3R fuer &
forq <
PPE retired Land
from active Building
use and
held for
disposal
=1/ others
farm f3=it orcf ar geofram= it srafer fAfde fag
Without specifiying any terms or period of repayment
SYREA! BT DR ST FKUT DT UepfcT H K0T AT U7 b UpfT H Pt 0T 3R
e e 31 1 gfcrera

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or advacne in
the nature of loan outstanding

percentage to the total Loans and
Advances in the nature of loans

YqIex / Promoteres
IRERED / Directors

Ppurdt/ KMPs
Heifer urféat/ Related Partied
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2.

%

10.

11.

12.

13.

g & SR Ut B Fuly, AT 3R SUBRT BT
Y egTeh gl fha T |

U P U fIpT o e 3T Hufy 8l 2|
HuftrRat 5 g e el 21

HU B P TE—D BUT 8l 2, TARIY HUA
(o &Y T R ufaey) B, 2017 & Ay
IR Y URT 2 BT @S (87) AR AR BT 21

HUAt 7 af & R U e uRwuREl @
g cATeh Tl [haT gl

¥ & SR BT F gHIext, Fgerdt, dugdt @ik
qefod uel (duet ififm 2013 & dgd
aRUTT ) DY TRT— 3T AT fhd} 311 =afeh & wmer
Hgh WU W U R AT R

a¥ & SR AT oA (fe) erfaffm 1988
(1988 @1 45) 3R AP dgd 91T TV T &
ded forsdt oft St Sy @ e & forg doeht &
T I BHRIATE g% a1 S T8 21

TR Rod d@ gR1 9RT fhy 0 SIHeEas
Jahardian b fGemfEer & SF_R, dHu=ht a ot oft
do a1 foxter v (ot erfirfeRm, 2013 & d&d
IRYTIY) a7 fohsdt 31T RIS AT 9 FY GRT
ST Jehdhclt BN ATal fraT /T B |

¥ b SR HYAT 7 DUt AT 2013 HY gRT
248 1 Hy=T FfAFRIH 1956 &Y URT 560 & dgd
§¢ Y T HUAT &b T Dlg Ao A8l paT 2

af & GRM AR & AT DI o IT [
Gofigpat T2l 1T B

a¥ & SR BHuT TffRm 2013 &t oRT 230 A
237 & ITAR TR GRT PIg Fawel ASHT IR
T &Y TS & /e MRt & uT oifed T 2

St gRT fpft o aafep(at) ar swean(Ay) @,
o faqeft et (veawer) enfiet €, 18 oft fAfer
1 a1 ko A7 9T e Y 7 R (IR a8 SuR o

10.

11.

12.

13.

<

During the year Property, Plant & Equipment
of the company notrevalued.

Company has not held intangible assets
under development

Thereis no investment in properties.

The Company does not have any subsidiary
hence clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read
with the Companies (Restriction on number
of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued its intangible
assets during the year.

During the year company has not granted
loan to promoters, Directors KMPs and the
related partied (as defined under Companies
Act 2013) either severally or jointly with any
other person.

During the year no proceedings have been
initiated or pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the
Benami transaction (Prohibition)Act 1988(45
0f 1988) and the rules made thereunder

The Company has not been declared as wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution
(as defined under the Companies Act, 2013)
or any other lender or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful
defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of
India

During the year, company has not made any
transaction with companies struck off under
section 248 of the companies Act 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act 1956

During the year no charges or satisfaction
registered with ROC.

During the year no Scheme of Arrangement
has been formulated by the Group/pending
with competent authority in terms of Section
230 to 237 of the companies Act2013.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other

y/
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14.

15.

16.

¢ 1Y 8 a1 IR st a1 fhedt s |re ar iy
& UBR A ) 3 T & A1, AR fIfad w9 A ot &
T =, b HeIRe Ul gRT AT IHDT IR A
uga™ T ug (i emereff) et Sur g ar e
HAT| o= 7 fomedt oft war () (Ffer 2 arel wer) &
=T T93T & A1 Pig (A urg &l Y g b Hut
T T T BY I HUT gRT T AP R A
UgAM TV 31T Ifehal a1 wverran (3fform amereff)
B YR it A1 e et ar eife arrffay it
3R Y PIE TR, GRE T bt

BT I P SR PR ANfH, 1961 & dad
N frrerfeor o, @rar 98t ° 31 & U H Ugel 9 gof A
fopq Q foredt oft @1a 1 A a1 et gl fhan
2l

S 7 ot af & SRM fopeer @t T afara
AT H IR 7 9T T2l fopam 21

e wfafafera & s & TN -

(v) af & SRE HUt gRT @ & ST grelt
MG VMY, 3. 28.40 ARG

(&) T KT, 28.40 ag
GhELC SR gl
() foreel aut 61 ot Y gl
(¥) it 1 HROT EIVGH]

() HoaerR wfcfafer & gefa, dom Har o
IR AT, 11.36 TG

TITE YR I H INSH T B, 17.04 G

14.

15.

16.

person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend
or invest in party identified by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The
Company has notreceived any fund from any
party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.

The Company has not traded or invested in
Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during
the financial year.

Disclosure regarding CSR activities:-

(@) amount required to be spent by the
company during the year, Rs28.40 Lakhs

(b) amount of expenditure incurred,

Rs 28.40 Lakhs
(c) shortfall at the end of the year, Nil
(d) totalof previousyearsshortfall,  Nil
(e) reason for shortfall, NA

(f) nature of CSR activities,
Amount Contribute in PM Care
Rs 11.36 Lakhs

Amount Contribute in Swachh Bharat Kosh
Rs17.04 Lakhs
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7 v’
() wafer ureh o - &1 fdeRur, S, URIfe oi@m  (g) details of related party transactions, e.g.,
TG & TR HITHAR g & T § Husi gRT contribution to a trust controlled by the
it e : company inrelation to CSR expenditure as per
Wﬁ ! m:@ relefant}j%ccountingStandardl,) NA P
(7a) et frelt wel § e AR U b ey (h) wherg a prqvision is made with .respgct to a
i - liability incurred by entering into a
et fhar T2 & AQrTT Qi & ded, af & contractual obligation, the movements in the
QR a9 H g dlel Sqeral I S I g provision during the year should be shown
ST ITfRu| GIWGH] separately. NA
17. Hgcaquf Igich=T 3IUT BT fIaR0T 396 UPKR 3:-
17. Details of significant accounting ratio are mentioned as :-
H.]. U e TSI 3197, 2025 319w, 2024 3. fevaut
S.No. Ratio Numerator Denominator @' 3158 Bl B Diff. Remarks
As on Ason
31.03.2025  31.03.2024
CREIE] CREIE] gq= o 1 Tl vd A
ECIR] Ayt MUK g ¥ gd % BRUT
i Current Current Current 0.57 0.49 16.33  Due to increase in
Ratio Assets Liability current assets and
Current liability
FT 3PSt gl 3feT URSD IRRGRET & et
HCIN] EUl gfepct 4 gfg & PRuT
ii Debt Equity Total Debts Shareholder 7.49 -18.45 (140.60) due to increase in
Ratio Equity shareholders
equi
ot AaT T, PR AR TS Pl EEARICZIRC RIS |
BeRST U HoUe T I fohdr & T &b BRI
gfRenes A
el $T HAE
iii. Debt Earning Interest Paid 0.36 0.58 (37.93) due to decrease in
Service Before sales and payment
Coverage  Interest. of interest
Ratio Tax and
depreciation
&
amortization
FHAT 3T diedt JTYRD HDRICHD JHAYRD
TR Hfehel gfepct gfract & BRI
iv Returnon  PAT Shareholder 1.41 -6.98 (120.20) due to Positive
Equity Shareholder, Equity
& A 198 £ /A




)

7
qTet fareht S TQ A7 sifaa ATe Pl I H FH &
3T &hl AT / HIY—HT FHAG ¥ieh

I § FHH & HROT

\4 Inventory  Cost of Good Average 0.46 1.04 (55.77)  Due to Decrease in
Turnover  Sold / Inventory total expenses along
Ratio with increase in

closing stock value.

OR U I aita ur=r IoRG Td $A U
BHRITR AT g Pt & BROT

vi Trade Revenue Average 54.46 138.34 (60.63) Due to decrease in
Receivables Receivable revenue and total
Turnover receivable
Ratio
MR @ -ic hise aitra VRG]
oaaR g / IR I Pt & PRoT
S EIn

vii  Trade Net Credit Av.Trade  1.89 3.65 (48.22)  due to decrease in
Payable Purchase /  Payable credit purchases
Turnover
Ratio
€ Yol oREe @ Rl fosht afR @y
BHRIER R ot ¥ Pt & BROT
3AJUTd

viii ~ Net Capital Revenue Working -1.78 -2.18 (18.35) due to Decrease in
Turnover  from capital sales and profit
Ratio operation
g o IR P IS M G oY Ud Iod |
RN ik FH! &b PHRUT|

ix Net Profit PAT Revenue 0.18 0.26 (30.77)  Due to Decrease in
Ratio net profit. and
franfora oot fufee a4 & forg revenue
W WIfH 3NALD TAL AT § HH & BROT

X Returnon  PBIT Capital due to Decrease in
Capital Employed  1.56 20.45 (92.37) profit
Employed
faer w® IqG AT a4 & forg Mg H e P HROT
Bl AILAD A

xi Returnon  Net Income Capital 0.97 14.08 (93.11)  due to Decrease
Investment Employed in income
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afeafid R Frufrr /Siicd g9
18. D eferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net)
AT B IRFURMAT: / Deferred Tax Assets: 31.03.2025 9P 31.03.2024 d%
TR & 3R & PRI As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024
on account of timing difference in
THD ! BISIA/ Wastage of salt 116.03 23.68
TeaeRT iR aRenem e
Depreciation and amortization expenses 4.57
3T UTIYT Other Provisions 49.60
Heper AT B gR¥UREAT
Gross Deferred tax assets 170.20 23.68

AR S QI / Deferred Tax Liability:
T & AR &b PRI/ on account of timing difference in
Hedel™d 3iR afRenes =g/ Depreciation and amortization expenses

0.00 0.29
el AR B ggar
Gross Deferred tax Liability 0.00 0.29
IR FR uReufcrT /<aa] ()
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net) 170.20 23.39
TR St ARG A Her arEraRien R & SgaR . S
In terms of our report of even date annexed hereto AR Hleed _ ®
I ST G8 Ul A AETHR e qose & ferg vd H1 ok 4
For Bhandawat and Company For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants / FRN NO. 000497C Sambhar Salts Limited
(¥he opm PR SHifTs) (WS HuR i) (NI PAR) (s gim)
(CA Shubham Kumar Jangid) (Sandeep Kur(nélr T%k; (Nare%lé Kumar) (Sanjay Banga)
e "Iy (14.99 . R o
(Partner) G.GM (F&A) (Director) ) STE U o4 ﬁfq’%ﬁﬁ .
M. No. 473715 fAYaRF/ DIN: 10043608 Chairman a_md Managing Director
¥ : SRR / Place : Jaipur {9/ DIN: 09353339

f&tes : / Dated : 23.07.2025
g 3.0, : 254737 1581.TH.37E. 3.UH.€1.8847 /UDIN : 25473715BNIOFDS8847
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